# APPROPRIATION ACCOUNTS

## CONTENTS

					Pages
	INTRODUCTORY			••	1-2
	SUMMARY OF APPROPRIATION ACC	OUNT	'S		3-11
Cer Ind	tificate of Comptroller and Auditor Ge ia	enera	l of		12-13
	APPROPRIATION ACCOUN	NTS			
1.	General Administration Department			 	14-24
2.	Home Department			 	25-33
3.	Planning and Development Department			 	34-38
4.	Information Department			 ••	39-42
5.	Ladakh Affairs Department			 	43-46
6.	Power Development Department			 ••	47-56
7.	Education Department			 	57-63
8.	Finance Department			 ••	64-71
9.	Parliamentary Affairs Department			 	72-74
10.	Law Department			 	75-78
11.	Industries and Commerce Department			 	79-85
12.	Agriculture Department			 ••	86-105
13.	Animal Husbandry Department			 	106-116
14.	Revenue Department			 	117-124
15.	Consumer Affairs and Public Distribution Department	••		 	125-129
16.	Public Works Department			 	130-137
17.	Health and Medical Education Department				138-154

18	Social Welfare Department		••	••	••	155-165
19	Housing and Urban Development Department					166-171
20	Tourism Department	••		••	••	172-178
21	Forest Department					179-184
22	Irrigation and Flood Control Department					185-189
23	Public Health Engineering Department					190-194
24	Hospitality, Protocol and Toshakhana Department					195-197
25	Labour, Stationery and Printing Department					198-201
26	Fisheries Department					202-204
27	Higher Education Department					205-208
28	Rural Development Department					209-215
29	Transport Department					216-218
	APPENDICES					
	Expenditure met out of Advances from Contingency Fund					221
II	Grant-wise Details of Estimates and Actuals in respect of Recoveries adjusted in the Accounts in Reduction of Expenditure	••		••		222-223
	The state of the s	• •	• •	• •	• •	

#### **INTRODUCTORY**

This compilation containing the Appropriation Accounts of Government of Jammu and Kashmir for the year 2009-10 presents the accounts of sums expended in the year ended 31<sup>st</sup> March, 2010 compared with the sums specified in the schedules appended to the Appropriation Acts passed under Sections 81 and 82 of the Constitution of Jammu and Kashmir.

In these Accounts –

'O' stands for original grant or appropriation

'S' stands for supplementary grant or appropriation

'R' stands for re-appropriations, withdrawals or surrenders sanctioned by the competent authority.

Charged Appropriations and expenditure are shown in italics.

2. In a significant departure from the budgetary practice envisaged in Jammu & Kashmir Budget Manual, the State Government placed lumpsum Budgetary Grants with the controlling officers against some specific schemes having various primary units and the Drawing and Disbursing Officers continued to incur expenditure on various schemes, not contemplated in the approved Demand for Grants.

Besides, Plan provision has invariably been indicated in lumpsum form below each Major Head of Account. Although, a Plan Budget document has been issued separately, this publication proved inadequate to distribute the lumpsum provision among proper schemes for preparation of Appropriation Accounts. Further, the supplementary grants in most of the cases have been obtained in lumpsum against the respective Major Heads without giving schematic breakup there under.

Due to these deviations from the basic Government Accounting Principles, Audit has been deprived of:

(a) making comparisons of excess/ saving sub head-wise to the extent of ₹ 56,44.67 crore which constitutes 22.73 percent of total provision of ₹ 2,48,23.68 crore.

- (b) Comment as to whether the expenditure incurred on the schemes was legally available and not utilized on any "New Instrument of Service/ New Service" not provided for in the approved Demand for Grants.
- (c) Comment as to whether there was the need for obtaining additional funds for a particular scheme or and whether the supplementary grants obtained were fully utilized on the schemes for which these funds were obtained.

Suitable comments have been made in the respective Grants in this publication.

## SUMMARY OF APPROPRIATION ACCOUNTS

		SUMMA	KI OF AFFIC	JI KIA I IOI	NACCOUNT	3			
	Number and	Amount of	Expenditure	Saving	Excess	Percent	tage of S	aving/ E	xcess
	Name of Grant or Appropriation	Grant/ Appropriation				Reve	nue 2009-10	Capi 2008-09	tal 2009-10
	11 1		(₹i	n thousand)					
1	General Admin Department-	istration	,	,					
	Revenue-								
	Voted	1,31,80,92	1,05,84,22	25,96,70	-	14	20		
	Charged	9,01,27	7,51,51	1,49,76	-	7	17		
	Capital-	, ,	, ,	, ,					
	Voted	29,15,23	36,90,71	-	7,75,48 (7,75,48,159)			27	27
2	Home Departmen	nt-							
	Revenue-								
	Voted	20,32,20,87	18,92,27,94	1,39,92,93	-	5	7		
	Charged	94,49	93,99	50	-	10	1		
	Capital-								
	Voted	11,07,98	2,10,04	8,97,94	-			2	81
3	Planning and Dev Department-	velopment							
	Revenue-								
	Voted	1,35,69,59	37,38,47	98,31,12	-	43	72		
	Capital-								
	Voted	5,33,84,87	1,52,31,33	3,81,53,54				37	71
4	Information Depa	artment-							
	Revenue-								
	Voted	25,85,41	22,64,42	3,20,99	-	18	12		
	Capital-			•					
	Voted	3,47,56	1,49,09	1,98,47	-			59	57

## ${\bf SUMMARY\ OF\ APPROPRIATION\ ACCOUNTS\ (Contd.)}$

	Number and	Amount of	Expenditure	Saving	Excess	` ′	tage of S	aving/ I	Excess
	Name of Grant or	Grant/ Appropriation	•			Reve	_	Сар	
	$\Lambda$ ppropriation	11 1				2008-09	2009-10	2008-09	2009-10
			(₹	in thousand)					
5	Ladakh Affair Department-	S	( •						
	Revenue-								
	Voted	2,44,97,87	2,42,15,58	2,82,29	-	1	1		
	Capital-								
	Voted	1,42,82,27	1,42,78,23	4,04	-			14	-
6	Power Develop Department-	oment							
	Revenue-								
	Voted	24,35,65,95	27,95,20,00	-	3,59,54,05 (3,59,54,04,750)	8	15		
	Capital-								
	Voted	12,83,00,00	10,35,05,40	2,47,94,60	-			1	19
7	Education Dep	artment-			-				
	Revenue-								
	Voted  Capital-	19,37,21,69	16,85,10,90	2,52,10,79	-	15	13		
	Voted	2,80,34,17	1,58,39,48	1,21,94,69	-			30	43
8	Finance Depart	ment-							
	Revenue-								
	Voted	17,44,04,26	17,23,35,18	20,69,08	-	5	1		
	Charged	19,50,44,09	21,38,23,68	-	1,87,79,59 (1,87,79,58,577)	1	10		
	Capital-				( ) / / / / / /				
	Voted	8,21,00,00	5,98,77,96	2,22,22,04	-			82	27
	Charged	8,08,46,00	35,73,90,47	-	27,65,44,47 (27,65,44,47,231)			448	342

		SUMMAKI OI	AIIKOIK	IATION.	ACCOUNTS	(Conta.)			
	Number and Name of Grant	Amount of	Expenditure	Saving	Excess		_	Saving/	
	or Appropriation	Grant/ Appropriation				Reve	2009-10	Ca <sub>1</sub>	oital 2009-10
			( <b>₹</b> in	thousand)	1				
9	Parliamentary A	ffairs	( 111	diousaire)					
	Department-								
	Revenue-								
	Voted	20,50,57	18,87,71	1,62,86	-	5	8		
	Charged	61,22	35,07	26,15	-	44	43		
	Capital-								
	Voted	3,00,00	4,95	2,95,05	-			91	98
10	Law Department-								
	Revenue-								
	Voted	1,14,08,29	71,08,66	42,99,63	-	19	38		
	Charged	18,39,85	13,07,77	5,32,08	-	19	29		
11	Industries and Co Department-	ommerce							
	Revenue-								
	Voted	1,34,30,20	1,15,16,27	19,13,93	-	9	14		
	Capital-	,,,	, , , , ,	, , ,					
	Voted	1,11,29,34	1,14,29,62	-	3,00,28 (3,00,27,503)			14	3
12	Agriculture Depar	rtment-							
	Revenue-								
	Voted	4,00,25,07	3,65,51,34	34,73,73	-	5	9		
	Capital-								
	Voted	2,28,91,37	1,69,34,99	59,56,38	-			15	26

	Number and	Amount of	Expenditure	Saving	Excess			Saving/	Excess
	Name of Grant or	Grant/ Appropriation				Rev	enue	Cap	oital
	$\Lambda$ ppropriation	11 1				2008-09	2009-10	2008-09	2009-10
				in thousand)					
13	Animal Husb	andry	\						
٠	Department-								
	Revenue-								
	Voted	2,20,24,08	2,03,58,63	16,65,45	-	3	8		
	Capital-								
	Voted	24,62,90	15,75,88	8,87,02	-			48	36
14	Revenue Depa	rtment-							
	Revenue-								
	Voted	3,99,34,18	3,84,46,23	14,87,95	-	6	4		
	Capital-								
	Voted	1,35,03,50	62,98,83	72,04,67	-	-		88	53
15	Consumer Aff Public Distribi Department-								
	Revenue-								
	Voted	3,97,19	5,52,43	-	1,55,24 (1,55,23,918)	11	39		
	Capital-								
	Voted	11,68,16,90	8,57,28,94	3,10,87,96	-			9	27
16	Public Works	Department-							
	Revenue-								
	Voted	4,76,75,86	4,68,94,51	7,81,35	-	7	2		
	Capital-								
	Voted	12,16,91,86	14,65,23,05	-	2,48,31,19 (2,48,31,19,101)			19	20

	Number and Name of	Amount of Grant/	Expenditure	Saving	Excess	Percent Reve	~	Saving/ I Cap	
	Grant or Appropriation	Appropriation					nue 2009-10	2008-09	2009-10
	11 1			n thousand)					
17	Health and M Education D <b>Revenue-</b>			,					
	Voted Capital-	8,73,16,72	8,30,75,57	42,41,15	-	10	5		
	Voted	3,00,96,00	2,88,99,75	11,96,25	-			30	4
18	Social Welfare	e Department-							
	Revenue-	•							
	Voted	2,78,70,66	2,81,66,42	-	2,95,76	4	1		
	Capital-				(2,95,75,719)				
	Voted	1,82,67,32	1,99,58,76	-	16,91,44 (16,91,44,141)			22	9
19	Housing and U Development	Urban t Department-							
	Revenue-								
	Voted <b>Capital-</b>	2,54,19,86	2,51,54,22	2,65,64	-	4	1		
	Voted	3,76,79,55	2,80,69,66	96,09,89	-			63	26
20	Tourism Depa	artment-							
	Revenue- Voted	74,43,06	69,23,31	5,19,75	-	47	7		
	Capital-								
	Voted	1,13,82,32	1,71,77,30	-	57,94,98 (57,94,98,209)			29	51
21	Forest Depart	ment-							
	Revenue-								
	Voted <b>Capital-</b>	3,35,54,87	2,89,13,36	46,41,51	-	10	14		
	Voted	96,36,00	48,41,15	47,94,85	-			35	50

## ${\bf SUMMARY\ OF\ APPROPRIATION\ ACCOUNTS\ (Contd.)}$

	Number and	Amount of	Expenditure	Saving	Excess	Percer	ntage of	Saving/	Excess
	Name of Grant or	Grant/ Appropriation				Rev	enue	Сар	oital
	Appropriation					2008-09	2009-10	2008-09	2009-10
				in thousand	l)				
22	Irrigation and Control Depa		·						
	Revenue-								
	Voted	2,86,56,03	2,50,46,82	36,09,21	-	5	13		
	Capital-								
	Voted	4,53,32,61	3,89,09,40	64,23,21	-			26	14
23	Public Health Department-	Engineering							
	Revenue-								
	Voted	5,21,93,25	4,96,60,82	25,32,43	-	2	5		
	Capital-								
	Voted	3,45,31,00	5,05,00,28	-	1,59,69,28 (1,59,69,27,533)			-	46
24	Hospitality Pro Toshakhana D								
	Revenue-								
	Voted	1,06,45,79	1,01,29,68	5,16,11	-	7	5		
	Capital-								
	Voted	-	46,91	-	46,91 (46,90,989)			100	100
25	Labour Station Printing Depa								
	Revenue-								
	Voted	36,02,92	83,71,60	-	47,68,68 (47,68,68,153)	30	132		
	Capital-								
	Voted	71,76,28	1,96,51	69,79,77	-			95	97

	Number and	Amount of	Expenditure	Saving	Excess	Percer	ntage of	_	
	Name of Grant or Appropriation	Grant/ Appropriation				Rev- 2008-09	enue 2009-10	Ca <sub>3</sub>	pital 2009-10
	пругоримаон		(3	in thousand	<u> </u>				
26	Fisheries De	partment-			'				
	Revenue-								
	Voted	30,08,84	28,78,66	1,30,18	-	2	4		
	Capital-								
	Voted	10,05,00	10,59,80	-	54,80 (54,80,029)			1	5
27	Higher Educa Department- <b>Revenue-</b>	tion			(01,500,027)				
	Voted	2,75,95,84	4,50,25,47	-	1,74,29,63 (1,74,29,63,191)	19	63		
	Capital-								
	Voted	1,91,72,00	1,28,23,16	63,48,84	-			47	33
28	Rural Develop Department- <b>Revenue-</b>	oment							
	Voted	1,49,22,64	1,37,45,29	11,77,35	-	2	8		
	Charged	2,22	2,22	-	-				
	Capital-								
	Voted	1,74,01,44	1,61,81,59	12,19,85	-			53	7
29	Transport De	epartment-							
	Revenue-								
	Voted	21,67,02	18,63,80	3,03,22	-	15	14		
	Charged	1,00	50	50	-	-	50		
	Capital-								
	Voted	25,40,40	54,06,97	-	28,66,57 (28,66,56,859)			5	113
	Revenue-	4.45 00.00 50	4.04.02.28.84	0.40.0#.0#	W 0 < 00 0 <				
	Voted	1,37,00,89,50	1,34,26,67,51	8,60,25,35	5,86,03,36				
	Charged	19,79,44,14	21,60,14,74	7,08,99	1,87,79,59				
	Capital-	02 24 07 07	70 52 40 74	10 04 60 06	£ 22 20 02				
	Voted	83,34,87,87	70,53,49,74	18,04,69,06	5,23,30,93				
	Charged	8,08,46,00	35,73,90,47	-	27,65,44,47				

The excesses over the following voted grants require regularisation;

#### **Revenue Portion**

- 06- Power Development Department-
- 15- Consumer Affairs and Public Distribution Department-
- 18. Social Welfare Department-
- 25- Labour, Stationery and Printing Department-
- 27- Higher Education Department-

#### **Capital Portion**

- 01- General Administration Department-
- 11- Industries and Commerce Department-
- 16- Public Works Department-
- 18- Social Welfare Department-
- 20- Tourism Department-
- 23- Public Health Engineering Department-
- 24- Hospitality Protocol and Toshakhana Department-
- 26- Fisheries Department-
- 29- Transport Department-

The excesses over the following charged appropriations require regularisation;

#### **Revenue Portion**

08- Finance Department-

#### **Capital Portion**

08- Finance Department-

The expenditure shown in Summary of Appropriation Accounts does not include an amount of ₹1,37,84,391 met by advances from the Contingency Fund which was not recouped to the fund before the close of year, as no provision for recoupment was provided for in the Demand for Grants against the said Advances. Details are given in Appendix-I.

As the Grants and Charged Appropriations are for gross amounts required for expenditure, the expenditure figures shown against them do not include recoveries adjusted in accounts in reduction of expenditure. The net expenditure figures are shown in the Finance Accounts. The reconciliation between the total expenditure as shown in the Appropriation Accounts for the year 2009-10 and the Finance Accounts for that year is given below:-

	Cha	rged	Vote	d
	Revenue	Capital	Revenue	Capital
		(₹ in thou	usand)	
Total Expenditure				
Appropriation Accounts	21,60,14,74	35,73,90,47	1,34,26,67,51	70,53,49,74
Deduct Recoveries				
shown in Appendix-II	-	-	2,62,93,13	7,70,61,42
Net Total Expenditure				
as shown in Statement				
No. 10 of the Finance				
Accounts	21,60,14,74	35,73,90,47	1,31,63,74,38	62,82,88,32

The details of the recoveries referred to above are given in "Appendix-II"

#### Certificate of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

This compilation containing the Appropriation Accounts of the Government of Jammu and Kashmir State for the year ending 31-03-2010 presents the accounts of the sums expended in the year compared with the sums specified in the schedules appended to the Appropriation Acts passed under Articles 204 and 205 of the Constitution of India. The Finance Accounts of the Government for the year showing the receipts and disbursements of the Government for the year together with the financial results disclosed by the revenue and capital accounts, the accounts of the public debt and the liabilities and assets as worked out from the balances recorded in the accounts are presented in a separate compilation.

The Appropriation Accounts have been prepared under my supervision in accordance with the requirements of the Comptroller and Auditor General's (Duties, Powers and Conditions of Service) Act, 1971 and have been compiled from the vouchers, challans and initial and subsidiary accounts rendered by the treasuries, offices, and departments responsible for the keeping of such accounts functioning under the control of the Government of Jammu and Kashmir and statements received from the J & K Bank/Reserve Bank of India.

The treasuries, offices, and or departments functioning under the control of the Government of Jammu and Kashmir are primarily responsible for preparation and correctness of the initial and subsidiary accounts as well as ensuring the regularity of transactions in accordance with the applicable laws, standards, rules and regulations relating to such accounts and transactions. I am responsible for compilation, keeping of the accounts, preparation and submission of Annual Accounts to the State Legislature. My responsibility for the compilation, preparation and finalisation of accounts is discharged through the office of the Principal Accountant General (A&E). The audit of these accounts is independently conducted through the office of the Principal Accountant General (Audit) in accordance with the requirements of Articles 149 and 151 of the Constitution of India and the Comptroller and Auditor General's (Duties, Powers and Conditions of Service) Act, 1971, for expressing an opinion on these Accounts based on the results of such audit. These offices are independent organizations with distinct cadres, separate reporting lines and management structure.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the Auditing Standards generally accepted in India. These Standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the accounts are free from material misstatement. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

On the basis of the information and explanations that my officers required and have obtained, and according to the best of my information as a result of test audit of the accounts and on consideration of explanations given, I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the Appropriation Accounts read with observations in this compilation give a true and fair view of the accounts of the sums expended in the year ended 31-03-2010 compared with the sums specified in the schedules appended to the Appropriation Acts passed by the State Legislature under Articles 204 and 205 of the Constitution of India.

Points of interest arising from study of these accounts as well as test audit conducted during the year or earlier years are contained in my Reports on the Government of Jammu and Kashmir being presented separately for the year ended 31-03-2010.

Date:	(VINOD RAI)
Place:	Comptroller and Auditor General of India

11.18

#### GRANT NO. 1 – GENERAL ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT

	OR HEADS				
2012	President/Vice President/Go	overnor/Admi	inistrator of Union T	Territories	
2013	Council of Ministers				
2015	Election				
2051	Public Service Commission				
2052	Secretariat General Services				
2055	Police				
2070	Other Administrative Service	S			
2075	Miscellaneous General Servic	es			
2251	Secretariat Social Services				
2501	Special Programmes for Rura	l Developmen	t		
3435	Ecology and Environment				
3451	Secretariat Economic Services	S			
3452	Tourism				
4070	Capital Outlay on Other Adm	ninistrative Ser	vices		
4075	Capital Outlay on Miscellaneo	ous General Se	ervices		
4515	Capital Outlay on Other Rura	ıl Developmen	it Programmes		
5425	Capital Outlay on Other Scien	ntific and Envi	ironmental Research		
5452	Capital Outlay on Tourism				
			Total Grant/	Actual	Excess (+)
			Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess (+) Saving (-)
			Appropriation		
Reven	nue :		Appropriation	Expenditure	
<b>Rever</b> Voted			Appropriation	Expenditure	
	-	1,27,56,23	Appropriation	Expenditure	
Voted Origin	- al		Appropriation	Expenditure	
Voted Origin	-	1,27,56,23 4,24,69	Appropriation (	Expenditure ₹ in thousand)	Saving (-)
Voted Origin Supple	- al		Appropriation (	Expenditure ₹ in thousand)	Saving (-)
Voted Origin Supple	- ementary nt surrendered during the year		Appropriation (	Expenditure ₹ in thousand)	Saving (-) (-)25,96,70
Voted Origin Supple Amou	al ementary nt surrendered during the year d		Appropriation (	Expenditure  ₹ in thousand)  1,05,84,22	Saving (-) (-)25,96,70
Voted Origin Supple Amou <i>Charge</i>	al ementary nt surrendered during the year d	4,24,69	Appropriation (	Expenditure ₹ in thousand)	Saving (-) (-)25,96,70
Voted Origin Supple Amou <i>Charge</i> Origin	al ementary nt surrendered during the year d	4,24,69	Appropriation (	Expenditure  ₹ in thousand)  1,05,84,22	Saving (-) (-)25,96,70

Total Grant/ Actual Excess (+) Appropriation Expenditure Saving (-) (₹ in thousand) Capital: Voted-Original 23,10,23 29,15,23 36,90,71 (+)7,75,486,05,00 Supplementary Amount surrendered during the year

Notes and Comments:

#### **Revenue Section**

- 1. In Revenue Voted Section, Supplementary provision of ₹ 4,24.69 lakh proved injudicious as the expenditure did not come even upto the level of Original Provision of ₹ 1,27,56.23 lakh.
- 2. Persistent saving in the Grant (Revenue Voted side) occurred during the last five years also.

Year	Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
		(₹ in Lal	xh)
2004-2005	1,19,52.94	1,04,80.16	(-)14,72.78
2005-2006	1,33,02.10	1,15,50.38	(-)17,51.32
2006-2007	84,08.08	82,17.66	(-)1,90.42
2007-2008	96,61.18	78,89.00	(-)17,72.18
2008-2009	1,05,67.06	90,58.44	(-)15,08.12

3. Significant saving occurred mainly under the following Heads; reasons for which were not communicated.

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
					(₹ in Lakh)	
2013	101	0099	General			
		0429	Forest Department			
			O 18.50			
			S -	18.50	11.21	(-)7.29

(₹ in Lakh)	
2013 101 0099 General	
0431 Chief Minister's Secretariat	
O 36.80	
S 4.00 40.80 35.76	(-)5.04
0479 Revenue Department	
O 20.00	
S 0.20 20.20 13.91	(-)6.29
0519 Department of Administration	
O 10.20	
S 0.50 10.70 4.39	(-)6.31
1237 Housing and Urban Development Department	
O 35.00	()0.02
S 1.50 36.50 27.48	(-)9.02
2052 090 0099 General	
0418 Finance Department	
O 4,90.53 S - 4,90.53 4,01.82	/ \00 71
S - 4,90.53 4,01.82 0431 Chief Minister's Secretariat	(-)88.71
O 2,26.25	
S - 2,26.25 2,14.73	(-)11.52
0507 Law Department	(-)11.52
O 4,96.66	
S - 4,96.66 3,61.18	(-)1,35.48
2052 092 0099 General	()1,55.10
0451 Translation Cell of Law Department	
O 93.16	
S - 93.16 57.52	(-)35.64
0516 Non-Gazetted Recruitment board	· /
O 3,94.18	
S - 3,94.18 3,04.16	(-)90.02
1342 Facilities to Ex-Chief Minister	
O 28.90	
S - 28.90 2.75	(-)26.15

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
2055	445	0000			( Tir Danii)	
2055	117		General			
		0460	Civil Aviation Department			
			O 3,00.00 S -	3,00.00	2.24.00	()75.10
2070	104	0000	General	3,00.00	2,24.90	(-)75.10
2010	104	0517	Commissioner of Vigilance			
		0317	O 10,14.50			
			S 56.00	10,70.50	9,81.60	(-)88.90
2070	105	0099		·,····	.,	()
		0456		'ribunal		
			O 1,65.39			
			S 59.64	2,25.03	1,81.75	(-)43.28
		1344	Justice O.P.Sharma Comission	of Inquiry		
			O 14.10			
			S 5.50	19.60	0.40	(-)19.20
2070	800	0099				
		0244	Direction And Administration			
			O 1,48.00			
2254	000	0000	S -	1,48.00	81.94	(-)66.06
2251	090	0099	General	.•		
		0332	State Board of Technical Educ O 68.00	сапоп		
			S 57.01	1,25.01	1,01.45	(-)23.56
		0412		1,23.01	1,01.43	(-)23.30
		0112	O 2,84.34			
			S 0.90	2,85.24	2,08.97	(-)76.27
		0419	Commissioner Education	,	,	( )
			O 1,88.60			
			S 17.83	2,06.43	1,71.84	(-)34.59
		0421	Health and Medical Education	Department		
			O 1,75.36			
			S 48.35	2,23.71	2,14.35	(-)9.36

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
2051	000	0000	C1		,	
2251	090		General Sagratariat Diagramage			
		0430	Secretariat Dispensary O 18.13			
			S -	18.13	10.70	(-)7.43
		2301	Department of Culture	10.15	10.70	(-) 1,-13
		2301	O 1,10.61			
			S -	1,10.61	37.27	(-)73.34
3435 04	800	0099	General	1,10101	07.27	()/0101
			Prevention and Control of Pol and Environment Department O 90.63			
			S -	90.63	78.90	(-)11.73
		2172	Additional Director, Council for Technology		10.50	()11.13
			O 1,25.52	105 50	01.07	()22 55
2451	090	0000	S - General	125.52	91.97	(-)33.55
3451	090	0411	Information Department			
		0411	O 87.34			
			S 31.70	1,19.04	30.21	(-)88.83
		0425	Agriculture Department	2,22.01	30,21	()00,02
			O 2,35.91			
			S 4.10	2,40.01	2,17.00	(-)23.01
		0429	Forest Department	,	,	( )
			O 1,95.64			
			S 1.75	1,97.39	1,77.90	(-)19.49
		0437	Transport Department			
			O 1,18.22			
			S 1.20	1,19.42	65.84	(-)53.58
		0445	Power Development Department	ent		
			O 1,69.28	. =		
			S 2.70	1,71.98	1,46.04	(-)25.94

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
3451	090	0099	General			
		0446	Ladakh Affairs Department			
			O 50.19			
			S 0.75	50.94	33.53	(-)17.41
		0465	Hospitality and Protocol Depart	rtment		
			O 44.75			
			S 0.75	45.50	28.81	(-)16.69
		0467	Labour Department			
			O 1,13.68			
			S 1.75	1,15.43	1,02.25	(-)13.18
		0469	Animal and Sheep Husbandry	Department		
			O 1,27.94			
			S 4.30	1,32.24	1,10.35	(-)21.89
		0472	Co-operative Department			
			O 80.25			
			S 3.15	83.40	38.92	(-)44.48
		0490	Industries and Commerce Dep	artment		
			O 2,48.67			
			S 4.60	2,53.27	2,04.62	(-)48.65
		0508		Distribution		
			Department 1 92 77			
			O 1,83.77 S 3.00	1.06.77	1 22 22	()(2.54
		1241		1,86.77	1,23.23	(-)63.54
		1341	Rural Development Department	at		
			O 1,72.45 S 5.60	1 70 05	1 ( / 1 )	()12.02
		1025		1,78.05	1,64.12	(-)13.93
		1023	Planning Department O 2,11.30			
			O 2,11.30 S 4.40	2,15.70	1,79.51	(-)36.19
3451	101	0099	General	2,13.70	1,77.51	(-)30.17
JTJI	101	0442	Advisory Board for Gujjars and	l Bakarwale		
		0114	O 48.24	i vanai wato		
			S 0.30	48.54	24.86	(-)23.68

Saving was partly counterbalanced by the excess under the following Heads; reasons for which were not communicated.

1	not comm	nunicat	ed.			-
Head				Total Grant/	Actual	Excess (+)
				Appropriation	Expenditure	
					(₹ in Lakh)	
2013	101		General			
		0445		pment Department		
			O -			
			S 6.35	6.35	9.58	(+)3.23
2015	102		General			
		0414	Election Depa	rtment		
			O 12.84			
			S -	12.84	34.50	(+)21.66
2052	090	0099	General			
		0443	Home Departs	ment		
			O 1,86.84			
			S -	1,86.84	2,10.53	(+)23.69
		0479	Revenue Depa	rtment		
			O 1,60.79			
			S -	1,60.79	1,74.29	(+)13.50
		0712	Information as	nd Technology		
			O 83.29			
			S -	83.29	84.79	(+)1.50
2052	092	0099	General			
		0420	State Subject C			
			(Revenue Dep	artment)		
			O 26.63			
			S -	26.63	36.39	(+)9.76
2070	105	0099	General			
		2300		Muzaffar Jan Commission of		
			Inquiry			
			O 3.00			
			S -	3.00	12.51	(+)9.51
2251	090		General			
		1237	_	Jrban Development Department		
			O 2,25.66			
			S 6.87	2,32.53	2,55.64	(+)23.11

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Excess (+)
2501	04 105	0099	General		,	
		1521	IREP			
			O 2,06.36			
			S -	2,06.36	4,25.52	(+)2,19.16
3435	04 800	0099	General			
		2173	Chief Executive Officer J A K	ΕDA		
			O 1,72.97			
			S -	1,72.97	3,98.15	(+)2,25.18
3451	090	0099	General			
		0440	Public works Department			
			O 3,15.00			
			S 37.03	3,52.03	3,71.69	(+)19.66
		1241	Tourism Department	•	,	, ,
			O 1,16.48			
			S 6.95	1,23.43	1,45.86	(+)22.43
5		-	ovision through re-appropriation d Heads/Schemes.	proved meagre in v	view of savings in re	espect of
Head			,	Total Grant/	Actual	Saving(-)
				Appropriation	Expenditure	_
					(₹ in Lakh)	
2052	090	0099	General			
		0518	General Administration Depart	tment		
			O 15,40.87			
			S -			
			R (-)15.00	15,25.87	8,80.23	(-)6,45.64
2052	092	0099	General			
		0448	Training Branch General Depa	rtment		
			O 99.53			
			S -			
			R (-)1.50	98.03	83.79	(-)14.24
		0519	Department of Administrative	Reforms and		
			Inspections			
			O 1,29.43			
			S -	4.00.00	07.40	() (0 1 :
			R (-)1.50	1,27.93	85.49	(-)42.44

Augmentation of provision through re-appropriation proved meagre in view of excess under the following Head/Scheme which require regularization.

Head		Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess (+)
			(₹ in Lakh)	
3452 80 001 0099	General			
0244	Direction and Administration			
	O 6,25.04			
	S 6.92			
	R 15.00	6,46.96	7,88.38	(+)1,41.42

7. Expenditure under the following Heads was incurred without budget provision; reasons for which were not communicated.

Head				Actual Expenditure
				(₹ in Lakh)
2070	105	0099	General	
		2190	Committee for EOD	2.23
2070	800	0099	General	
		0573	Grant of Award	1.02
		2108	State Accountability Commission	5.92
2075	800	0099	General	
		0409	General Department Training Branch Other Expenditure	1.44
2501 01	800	0099	General	
		1354	Setting up of Integrated Rural Energy Planning Cells at State	1,35.24
3451	090	0099	General	
		0444	Secretariat	3.60
3451	090	0011	State Plan Normal	
		0418	Finance Department	27.33
3451	102	0099	General	
		0563	Constituency Development Scheme	4.20
3451	102	0011	State Plan Normal	
		0557	Planning Machinery (SP)	20.47

8. Entire provision in respect of below noted Schemes remained un-utilized throughout the year; reasons thereof were not communicated.

Head					Fotal Grant/ ppropriation
					(₹ in Lakh)
2052	090	0011	State Plan Normal		•
		0712	Information and Technology		1,00.00
2055	117	0099	General		
		0431	Chief Minister's Secretariat		12,00.00
9.	In the	harged s	ection, supplementary Provision of ₹ 1,33.29 la	akh proved injudic	ious as the
	expendit	ure did	not come even upto the level of original provision	ı of ₹ <i>7,67.98</i> lakh ;	reasons for
	the same	e have :	not been communicated. In the charged approp	riation saving occu	irred mainly
	under fo	llowing	Heads/Schemes; reasons for which were not comm	nunicated.	
Head			Total Grant/	Actual	Saving(-)
			Appropriation	Expenditure	

		Ap	propriation	Expenditure	
			(₹	in Lakh)	
2012 03 090	0099	General			
	0461	Secretariat			
		O 3,80.43			
		S 78.35	4,58.78	3,64.15	(-)94.63
2051 102	2 0099	General			
	0439	State Public Service Commission			
		O <i>3,87.55</i>			
		S 54.94	4,42.49	3,87.35	(-)55.14

10. Persistent saving in the Grant (Revenue *charged* side) occurred during the last five years.

Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
(=	₹ in Lakh)	
3,87.73	3,61.67	(-)26.06
4,60.64	4,37.27	(-)23.37
4,81.34	4,53.54	(-)27.80
5,93.74	5,59.91	(-)33.83
7,78.78	7,21.19	(-)57.59
	3,87.73 4,60.64 4,81.34 5,93.74	Appropriation Expenditure  (₹ in Lakh)  3,87.73 3,61.67  4,60.64 4,37.27  4,81.34 4,53.54  5,93.74 5,59.91

#### **Capital Section**

11. Supplementary provision of ₹ 6,05.00 lakh proved inadequate in view of excess of ₹ 7,75.48 lakh. The excess requires regularization.

The excess in the grant mainly occurred under following Heads; reasons thereof were not 12. communicated.

Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess (+)
						(₹ in Lakh)	
4070	800	0011	State	Plan Normal			
		0262	Insti	tute of Management	and Public		
			Adm	ninistration			
			Ο	1,18.28			
			S	1,50.00	2,68.28	6,44.81	(+)3,76.53
4075	800	0011	State	Plan Normal			
		0712	Info	rmation and Technol	ogy		
			Ο	9,57.00			
			S	4,55.00	14,12.00	25,80.72	(+)11,68.72
13.	Against pro	vision	of ₹	3,32.20 lakh an exp	enditure of ₹ 52.54 lakh	was incurred un	der Sub-head
	0868-Scienti	ific Se	ervice	and Research subor	rdinate to Major Head	5425-Capital Outl	ay on Other
	Scientific an	d Env	vironn	nental Research resul	ting in saving of ₹ 2,79.60	6 lakh.	
14.	Entire provi	ision i	in rest	pect of below noted	Heads remained unutilize	ed throughout the	year reasons

for which were not communicated.

Head					otal Grant/ propriation
					(₹ in Lakh)
4515		102	0011	State Plan Normal	
			1521	IREP	1,57.00
5425		800	0011	State Plan Normal	
			1700	New Renewable Sources of Energy	1,80.75
5452	80	800	0011	State Plan Normal	
			0270	Civil Aviation (State Plan)	5,65.00
15.	Exp	penditu	ire was	incurred under following Heads without budgetary provisions; reasons	for which
	wet	e not c	commu	nicated	
Head					Actual

Head				Actual
				Expenditure
				(₹ in Lakh)
4075	800	0031	Centrally Sponsored Scheme	
		0712	Information and Technology	2.13
5425	800	0011	State Plan Normal	
		2172	Additional Director, Council for Science and	4,12.64
			Technology	

#### **GRANT NO. 2 – HOME DEPARTMENT**

MAJOR HEADS				
2055 Police				
2056 Jails				
2070 Other Administrative Serv				
2235 Social Security and Welfar				
4059 Capital Outlay on Public				
4070 Capital Outlay on Other A				
4235 Capital Outlay on Social S	security and Welfa		Λ1	E (1)
		Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess (+) Saving (-)
		прргорнацон	-	Saving (-)
			(₹ in thousand)	
Revenue:				
Voted-				
Original	18,75,49,58			
		20,32,20,87	18,92,27,94*	(-)1,39,92,93
Supplementary	1,56,71,29			
Amount surrendered during the y	ear			•••
Charged .				
Original	_			
Oliginal		94,49	93,99	(-)50
Supplementary	94,49	,	,	()
Amount surrendered during the y	rea <b>r</b>			
	Car			•••
Capital:				
Voted-				
Original	11,07,98			
		11,07,98	2,10,04	(-)8,97,94
Supplementary	-			
Amount surrendered during the y	ear			•••
Notes and Comments:				

#### Revenue Section

1. Supplementary Grant of ₹ 1,56,71.29 lakh proved excessive in view of the final saving of ₹ 1,39,92.93 lakh. No portion of the final saving was anticipated and surrendered.

<sup>\*</sup>Excludes ₹ 1,29.72 lakh (₹ 30.40 lakh prior to 2009-10 & ₹ 99.32 lakh for the year 2009-10) spent from out of advance from Contingency fund but not recouped to the fund by debit to Major Head 2055-Police till the close of the year.

2	D : :	1 . 11 1 1 1	1 1 1	.1 1 . C 1
Z.,	Persistent saving as	detailed below has	occurred during	the last five years also.
	2 0201000000000000000000000000000000000	ere consider to exc in a solic	000000000000000000000000000000000000000	,

4.	Persistent saving as detailed below na	s occurred during the last five ye	ears also.	
	Year	Total Grant/	Actual	Saving (-)
		Appropriation	Expenditure	
		(₹	in Lakh)	
	2004-2005	10,87,14.21	9,71,34.12	(-)1,15,80.09
	2005-2006	11,74,35.10	10,59,30.84	(-) 1,15,04.26
	2006-2007	13,01,83.94	11,93,54.47	(-) 1,08,29.47
	2007-2008	14,74,75.50	12,68,77.18	(-)2,05,98.32
	2008-2009	17,21,67.61	16,34,22.82	(-)87,44.79
3	Significant saving occurred mainly un intimated.	der the following Heads/Schem	es; reasons for	which were not
Неа	d	Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
2055	001	0099	General			
		0758	Armed Police			
			O 8,26.86			
			S -	8,26.86	7,79.45	(-)47.41
		0780	Traffic Police			
			O 1,60.27			
			S -	1,60.27	1,37.08	(-)23.19
		0784	7.5	ammu		
			O 5,48.69			
			S -	5,48.69	5,15.05	(-)33.64
2055	003	0099	General			
		0181	Education and Training			
			O 11,20.20			
			S -	11,20.20	9,59.40	(-)1,60.80
2055	101	0099	General			
		0779	CID (Crime)			
			O 25,16.82			
			S -	25,16.82	21,75.61	(-)3,41.21
		0783	CID Staff for Protecting	g Hijacking		
			O 11,17.26			
			S -	11,17.26	9,65.33	(-)1,51.93

Head					otal Grant/ opropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
2055	101	0785	General CID VIP Security O 13,53.36 S -		13,53.36		(-)11,80.66
2055	104	0099	General JKAP 5th Battalion				
		0769	O 16,62.15 S - JKAP 12 <sup>th</sup> Battalion		16,62.15	15,20.99	(-)1,41.16
		0773	O 17,17.68 S - JKAP 9 <sup>th</sup> Battalion O 16,42.80		17,17.68	15,05.95	(-)2,11.73
		0774	S - Special Police JKAP O 20,36.96	3rd Battalion	16,42.80	13,76.25	(-)2,66.55
		0775	S - JKAP 8 <sup>th</sup> Battalion O 16,81.66		20,36.96	8,68.69	(-)11,68.27
		0777	S - JKAP 7 <sup>th</sup> Battalion O 16,04.39		16,81.66	14,66.33	(-)2,15.33
		0787	S - JKAP 4 <sup>th</sup> Battalion O 16,88.78		16,04.39	13,70.27	(-)2,34.12
		0700	S - JKAP 6 <sup>th</sup> Battalion		16,88.78	16,56.02	(-)32.76
		U/00	O 17,85.40 S -		17,85.40	16,84.14	(-)1,01.26
		1356	I R P 9 <sup>th</sup> Battalion O 31,69.13				
			S -	-	31,69.13	26,09.71	(-)5,59.42

Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
2055	104	0099	Genera	ıl			
		1820	JKAP 1	4 <sup>th</sup> Battalion			
			O	6,27.30			
			S	-	6,27.30	3,42.72	(-)2,84.58
2055	109	0099	Genera	1			
		0760	Police (	Control Room, Sr	inagar		
			Ο	4,84.37			
			S	-	4,84.37	3,56.93	(-)1,27.44
		0778	District	Police District E	xecutive Force, Jammu I	Range	
			О	2,35,12.33			
			S	-	2,35,12.33	2,30,96.55	(-)4,15.78
2055	111	0099	Genera	1			
		1320	Railway	Police			
			О	48,46.31			
			S	-	48,46.31	20,88.40	(-)27,57.91
2055	115	0099	Genera	1			
		0735	Upgrad	ation of Police H	ospitals		
			O	5,12.15			
			S	-	5,12.15	4,39.80	(-)72.35
		0750	Modern	nization of Police			
			O	92,00.00			
			S	20,50.00	1,12,50.00	1,94.31	(-)1,10,55.69
		1333	Re-orga	anization and Mo	dernization of Police		
			Telecon	n			
			О	41,69.76			
			S	-	41,69.76	40,75.55	(-)94.21
2055	116	0099	Genera				
		0727			tory, Director FSL, J&K		
			O	5,36.97			
			S	-	5,36.97	4,44.43	(-)92.54
2055	117	0099	Gener				
		0957		l Security			
			O	3,81,05.00	4 = 00 00	4.00 (7.0)	() 2 1 = 2 2 2
			S	76,34.00	4,57,39.00	4,32,65.01	(-)24,73.99

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving(-)
2056	101	0099 Ger 0729 Jail			,	
		O	26,55.02			
		S	79.94	27,34.96	21,23.11	(-)6,11.85
2056	102		neral			
			Manufactures			
		О	54.75			
		S	-	54.75	12.17	(-)42.58
2070	105		neral			
			visory Board under Act-78			
		О	43.21			
		S	-	43.21	37.14	(-)6.07
2070	106		neral			
		0244 Dir	ection and Administration			
		О	1,32.30			
		S	-	1,32.30	1,16.23	(-)16.07
		0746 Civ	il Defence, Kashmir Range			
		O	1,09.80			
		S	-	1,09.80	63.84	(-)45.96
		1196 Civ	il Defence, Jammu Range			
		O	1,06.01			
		S	-	1,06.01	77.58	(-)28.43
2070	107	0099 Ge	neral			
		0733 Au	xiliary Police			
		O	18,08.65			
		S	-	18,08.65	13,88.95	(-)4,19.70
			xiliary Police Battalion, nmu			
		0	16,99.60			
		S	-	16,99.60	12,78.61	(-)4,20.99
			activation of Home Guards	10,22.00	,	( ) .,==
		O	4,25.25			
		S	- -	4,25.25	3,20.16	(-)1,05.09

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving(-)
2070	108	0099 0749	General Fire Protection and Control O 72,92.49	1		
			S 3,44.58	76,37.07	70,25.73	(-)6,11.34
			nt was partly counterbalanced ere not intimated.	d by the excess under	the following I	Heads/Schemes;
Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess (+)
					in Lakh)	
2055	001	0099	General	(,	III Laurij	
		0789	Director General of Police			
			O 92,34.87			
			S 51,09.75	1,43,44.62	1,83,86.24	(+)40,41.62
2055	101	0099	General			
		0764	Criminal Investigation Dep	partment(CID)		
			O 48,60.02			
			S -	48,60.02	49,17.81	(+)57.79
		1357	Security Wing			
			O 40,17.98			
2055	104	0099	S -	40,17.98	48,99.17	(+)8,81.19
2055	104	0753	General JKAP 13 <sup>th</sup> Battalion			
		0133	O 16,86.80			
			S -	16,86.80	17,33.36	(+)46.56
		0771	JKAP 11 <sup>th</sup> Battalion			
			O 17,45.29 S -	17,45.29	21,97.79	(+)4,52.50
		1358	I R P Battalion	17,45.27	21,91.19	(1)4,52.50
			O 1,21,37.24			
			S -	1,21,37.24	1,48,80.57	(+)27,43.33
2055	109	0099	General	D.		
		0754	Executive Force, Kashmir I O 2,78,20.98	vange		
			S -	2,78,20.98	2,90,88.80	(+)12,67.82
			-		_,,	\ \ \ -=\;\(\cdot\)

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess (+)	
2055	400	0000			(₹ in Lakh)		
2055 109		0099	General Traffic Enforcement Wir O 2,16.00	ng, National Highwa	ys		
			S -	2,16.00	3,20.16	(+)1,04.16	
		0759	Traffic Enforcement Wir		,		
			S -	9,97.45	11,26.55	(+)1,29.10	
		0765	Traffic Enforcement Wir	· ·	,	( )-3-11-1	
			O 8,90.65	0,3			
			S -	8,90.65	10,94.99	(+)2,04.34	
2055	115	0099	General	,			
		1316	Establishment of Transpo	ort Workshop			
			O 5,45.97	*			
			S -	5,45.97	6,42.40	(+)96.43	
		1330	Reorganization and stren	gthening of Police T	raining facilities		
			O 11,11.07				
			S -	11,11.07	11,17.70	(+)6.63	
	117	0099	General				
		0729	Jails				
			O 6,05.50				
			S -	6,05.50	6,52.84	(+)47.34	
2056	001	0099	General				
		0312	Direction Office				
			O 1,51.69				
			S 20.20	1,71.89	2,73.34	(+)1,01.45	
2056	800		General				
			Prospective Plan, Prison Reforms				
			0 -				
			S 3,50.00	3,50.00	3,78.45	(+)28.45	
2070	108	0011	State Plan				
		0749	Fire Protection and Cont	rol			
			O 50.00	<b>#</b> 0.00		(.)	
			S -	50.00	2,34.42	(+)1,84.42	

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation		Excess (+)
				(₹	in Lakh)	
2235 02	001	0099	General			
		0244	Direction and Administration			
			O 5,24.39			
			S 13.82	5,38.21	6,37.76	(+)99.55

5. Expenditure under the following Heads/Schemes was incurred without budgetary provision; reasons for which were not communicated.

Head				Actual Expenditure
				(₹ in Lakh)
2055	109	0099	General	
		0763	Wireless	47.56
2055	117	0099	General	
		1057	Expenditure on Migrants (Relief Commissioner Jammu)	1.72
2070	107	0099	General	
		2156	Auxiliary Police	85.92

- 6. Supplementary Grant of ₹ 69.00 lakh placed under Sub-Head 2276-Revamping of Civil Defence (Home Guards) subordinate to Minor Head 106-Civil Defence and Major Head 2070-Other Administrative Services remained unutilized as the funds against the said scheme were allocated by the Home Department under sub-head 0244-Direction & Administration subordinate to Minor Head 106-Civil Defence and Major Head 2070-Other Administrative Services as per the Sanction Order No. Home/Acctts./03/2009 dated 04.02.2010 to the tune of ₹ 65.00 lakh but the sanction order does not seem to have been operated upon as no such expenditure appears under Sub-Head 0244-Direction & Administration as Grant-in-Aid.
- 7. In the Revenue *charged* section, the Supplementary appropriation of ₹94.49 lakh proved excessive in view of the final saving of ₹0.50 lakh.

#### **Capital Section**

8. In the Capital Voted Section, Original provision of ₹ 11,07.98 lakh proved excessive in view of the final saving of ₹ 8,97.94 lakh which was neither anticipated nor surrendered. Saving of ₹ 19.73 lakh in the Grant occurred during the last year also.

9. Significant saving occurred mainly under the following Heads; reasons for which were not communicated.

Head	mmum	Lateu.			Total Grant/ Appropriation	1	Saving (-)
					(₹	in Lakh)	
4059 01	800	0099	General				
		0714	Police Works				
			O 6,00.0	)			
			S	-	6,00.00	89.90	(-)5,10.10
4070	800	0011	State Plan Nor	mal			
		0979	State Plan Fire	Services			
			O 4,95.9	8			
			S	-	4,95.98	1,20.14	(-)3,75.84
10. Entire provision under the following Head has remained unutilized throughout the year; reasons thereof have not been intimated.							
Head							Total Grant/
Ticaci						-	Appropriation
							(₹ in Lakh)
4235 01	201	0099	General				
		2157	Construction of	f Sainik Sarai			12.00

#### GRANT NO. 3 - PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

## **MAJOR HEADS**

3451	Secretariat	Economic	Services
------	-------------	----------	----------

3454 Census, Survey and Statistics

3475 Other General Economic Services

5475 Capital Outlay on Other General Economic Services

		Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess (+) Saving (-)
			(₹ in thousand)	
Revenue : Voted-				
Original	1,35,69,59			
Supplementary	-	1,35,69,59	37,38,47	(-)98,31,12
Amount surrendered during the year				•••
Capital:				
Voted-				
Original	3,54,60,00			
Supplementary  Amount surrendered during the year	1,79,24,87	5,33,84,87	1,52,31,33	(-)3,81,53,54
Notes and Comments:				•••

#### **Revenue Section**

- 1. Original Provision of ₹ 1,35,69.59 lakh proved excessive in view of the final saving of ₹98,31.12 lakh. No portion of the final saving of ₹ 98, 31.12 lakh was anticipated and surrendered. Saving of ₹ 41, 74.95 lakh in the Grant occurred during the last year also.
- 2. Significant saving occurred mainly under the following Heads/schemes; reasons for which were not communicated.

Head			Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
			(₹	in Lakh)	
3451	102 0011	State Plan Normal			
	0557	Planning Machinery (S.P)			
		O 51,05.33			
		S -	51,05.33	2,46.11	(-)48,59.22

Head			Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
			(₹	in Lakh)	
3454 01 00	0099	General			
	1010	Manpower Cel	1		
		O 20.40			
		S -	20.40	13.62	(-)6.78
	1018	3 Reorganisation	of Directorate		
		O 1,61.15			
		S -	1,61.15	39.08	(-)1,22.07
3454 02 11		) General			
	1009		of Statistical Bureau		
		O 33.93			
	4.04.6	S -	33.93	6.15	(-)27.78
	1010	Economics An	ialysis		
		O 8.46	0.46	1 11	()7.25
	1024	S -	8.46	1.11	(-)7.35
	1024	O 87.64	of Planning Cell at District Headqu	aarters	
		S -	87.64	27.66	(-)59.98
	1013	_	of Market Intelligence	27.00	(-)37.70
	1012	O 15.90	71 Market Intelligence		
		S -	15.90	1.02	(-)14.88
3454 02 20	0099	) General	2017	-1.5	()1
		National Samp	le Survey		
		O 2,88.21	,		
		S -	2,88.21	23.11	(-)2,65.10
	1023	Training of Sta	tistical Personnel		, ,
		O 78.01			
		S -	78.01	5.45	(-)72.56
3454 02 2	01 003	1 Centrally Spor	nsored Scheme		
	222	3 Census and S	ample Survey		
		O 32.00			
		S -	32.00	1.69	(-)30.31

Head						1	Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
							(₹	in Lakh)	
3454 02	205	0099 1008	Distr O	eral rict Statistics 1,04.49	s Agenci	es			
3475	800		Surve	Plan Norma ey and Statis			1,04.49	53.52	(-)50.97
			O S	2,53.55			2 52 55	2 22 62	()20.02
3. Saving which w			count		by the e	xcess unc	2,53.55 ler the followi	2,22.63 ing Head /Sche	(-)30.92 me; reasons for
Head							Total Grant/ ppropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess (+)
							(₹	in Lakh)	
3454 02 13	12	0099	Gene	ral					
		1011	Direct O	torate of E 1,31.34	conomic	s & Statis	tics		
			S	-			1,31.34	29,41.31	(+)28,09.97
			Frami O	ng of Estim 9.75	nates of (	Capital Fo	rmulation.		
			S	-			9.75	11.30	(+)1.55
				following F		Schemes	was incurred	without budge	tary provisions;
Head									Actual Expenditure
									(₹ in Lakh)
3451	102	0099			1	0.1			0.47
2454 02	110			tituency De	velopme	ent Schem	e		9.46
3454 02	112	0099 1703		rai ict Census &	& Statist	ics			3.10

Head				Actual Expenditure
				(₹ in Lakh)
3454 02	800		General General	,
		0259	Border Area Development Programme, Kashmir.	19.03
3475	106	0099	General	
			3 Controller Weights & Measures	2.98
3475	800		State Plan Normal	
			Strengthening of Planning Machinery	1,00.05
		1518	3 Census Of Minor Irrigation Schemes	9.58
			in respect of following Heads/ Schemes remained un-utilised tel were not communicated.	hroughout the year;
Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation
				(₹ in Lakh)
3454 02	112	0099	General	
		1021	Field Survey and Price Statistics	39.34
		1026	Strengthening of Planning Machinery	74.04
3454 02	205	0099	General	
		1019	Evaluation Machinery	79.90
		1020	Unit for State Income	16.14
		1022	Statistical Cells in various Departments	11.94
		2302	Housing & Building Statistics	9.67
3454 02	800	0099	General	
		1015	Construction of Consumer Price Index for Industrial Workers, Jammu City	8.40
3475	800	0011	State Plan Normal	
		2197	Creation of new Districts	70,00.00

## **Capital Section**

6. Supplementary provision of ₹ 1,79,24.87 lakh proved excessive in view of final saving of ₹ 3,81,53.54 lakh which was neither anticipated nor surrendered.

# GRANT NO. 3 (Concld.)

7. Saving in the grant occurred mainly under following Head/Schemes; reasons for which were not communicated.

5475 800 0011 State Plan Normal 0553 Border Area Development Up-gradation Grant O 1,10,00.00	
1 1 0	
O 1,10,00.00	
S - 1,10,00.00 90,11.17*	(-)19,88.83
0557 Planning Machinery .	
O 1,60,00.00	
S 38,40.00 1,98,40.00 9,48.48	(-)1,88,91.52
0563 Constituency Development Fund	
O 43,40.00	
S - 43,40.00 19,90.97	(-)23,49.03
0564 Survey and Statistics .	
O 1,20.00	
S 1,40,84.87 1,42,04.87 1.27	(-)1,42,03.60
2154 Creation of New Districts .	
O 40,00.00	
S 40,00.00 32,70.63	(-)7,29.37
8. Expenditure under the following Head / Scheme was incurred without budgetary proving for which were not communicated.	rision; reasons
	Actual
Head	Expenditure
	(₹ in Lakh)
5475 800 0011 State Plan Normal	
0555 Block level Planning	8.81

<sup>\*</sup>Includes an amount of ₹ 27,91.79 lakh under Border Area Development Programme Kashmir.

### **GRANT NO. 4 – INFORMATION DEPARTMENT**

MA]	OR	HE.	ADS

MAJOR HEADS				
2220 Information and Publicity				
4220 Capital Outlay on Information	on and Publicity			
Head		Total Grant/ Appropriation I	Actual Expenditure	Excess (+) Saving (-)
		(₹	in thousand)	
Revenue:				
Voted-				
Original	22,93,51			
Supplementary	2,91,90	25,85,41	22,64,42	(-)3,20,99
Supplementary	2,71,70			
Amount surrendered during the year				•••
Capital:				
Voted-				
Original	3,47,56		1 10 00	
Supplementary	_	3,47,56	1,49,09	(-)1,98,47
Supplementary	_			
Amount surrendered during the year				
Notes and Comments:				

### **Revenue Section**

- 1. Supplementary provision of  $\ref{2,91.90}$  lakh proved injudicious as the expenditure did not come even upto level of original provision of  $\ref{2,93.51}$  lakh resulting in saving of  $\ref{3,20.99}$  lakh, which was neither anticipated nor surrendered.
- 2. Persistent saving in the Grant has occurred during the last five years as detailed below:-

Year	Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
2004-2005	12,39.03	10,66.39	(-) 1,72.64
2005-2006	14,14.43	12,09.93	(-)2,04.50
2006-2007	16,78.65	14,41.57	(-)2,37.08
2007-2008	19,26.91	16,05.38	(-)3,21.53
2008-2009	20,95.00	17,16.01	(-)3,78.99

3. Significant saving occurred mainly under following Heads/Schemes; reasons for which were not communicated.

(	comr	nunicat	ea.				
Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
					(₹	in Lakh)	
2220	60	001	0099	General	(.		
			0815	Joint Director Kas	shmir		
				O 53.53			
				S 14.36	67.89	50.32	(-)17.57
			0828	Joint Director Jam	nmu		
				O 59.79			
				S 8.19	67.98	52.57	(-)15.41
2220	60	102	0099	General			
			0816	District Information	on Centres		
				O 3,97.46			
				S 1,04.82	5,02.28	2,90.97	(-)2,11.31
			0817	Bureau of Informa		,	( ) /
				O 44.46			
				S -	44.46	26.62	(-)17.84
			0819	Tehsil Information	n Centres		
				O 1,89.65			
				S 38.70	2,28.35	1,15.25	(-)1,13.10
			0820	Youth Information	n Centres		
				O 15.11			
				S 0.60	15.71	9.85	(-)5.86
			0821	Bureau of Informa	ation, Jullander		
				O 37.57	, ,		
				S -	37.57	12.56	(-)25.01
			0822	Bureau of Inforr	nation, Mumbai		
				O 20.73	•		
				S -	20.73	9.86	(-)10.87
			0823	Bureau of Inform	mation, Kolkata		
				O 19.99			
				S -	19.99	7.39	(-)12.60

Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
					i ₹)	n Lakh)	
2220	60	106	0099	General			
			0826	Exhibition And Culture Units			
				O 1,13.66 S -	1,13.66	1,02.28	(-)11.38
			0834	Urdu/Hindi Publicity Units			
				O 38.70 S -	38.70	23.14	(-)15.56
2220	60	111	0099	General			
			0065	Migrant Salary O 7.58 S -	7.58	2.16	(-)5.42
2220	60	800	0099	General			()
			0830	Photo and Film Unit O 46.71 S -	46.71	35.65	(-)11.06
			0833	Film Production Unit O 48.36	40.71	33.03	(-)11.00
				S -	48.36	26.68	(-)21.68

4. Reduction of provision through re-appropriation proved meagre in view of the savings under the following Head/Scheme, reasons for which have not been communicated.

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation		Saving (-)
				(₹ i	n Lakh)	
2220 60	101	0099	General			
		0118	Advertising and Visual Publicity			
			O 4,99.67			
			S 1,25.23			
			R (-)10.00	6,14.90	4,88.52	(-)1,26.38

#### **GRANT NO. 4** (Concld.)

5 Augmentation of provision through re-appropriation proved insufficient in view of excess under following Head/Scheme.

Excess(+) Total Grant/ Actual Head Appropriation Expenditure (₹ in Lakh) 0099 General 2220 60 001 0835 Direction Office 3,09.68 0 S R 10.00 3,19.68 4,36.34 (+)1,16.666. Excess in the grant occurred mainly under the following Head/ Scheme; reasons for which were not communicated.

Total Grant/ Actual Excess(+) Head Appropriation Expenditure

(₹ in Lakh)

2220 60 106 0099 General

Written & Plan Publicity 0825

1,84.80 O

1,84.80

4,29.54

(+)2,44.74

Against the Lumpsum Provision of ₹ 1,65.00 lakh (Plan) under Sub-Head 0835-Direction Office 7. subordinate to Minor Head -001-Direction & Administration and Major Head 2220- Information and Publicity an expenditure of ₹1,15.71 lakh only was incurred resulting in saving of ₹ 49.28 lakh.

#### **Capital Section**

- 8. In the voted capital section, original provision of ₹ 3,47.56 lakh proved excessive in view of final saving of ₹ 1,98.47 lakh. No portion of it was anticipated or surrendered.
- 9. In the capital section persistent saving occurred during the last five years as per details given below:-

Year	Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
2004-05	1,80.00	1,44.42	(-) 35.58
2005-06	1,45.60	1,10.83	(-) 34.77
2006-07	1,45.60	53.45	(-) 92.15
2007-08	1,62.00	98.86	(-)63.14
2008-09	2,87.00	1,18.70	(-)1,68.30

### GRANT NO. 5 - LADAKH AFFAIRS DEPARTMENT

### **MAJOR HEADS**

2575 Other Special Area Programmes

4575 Capital Outlay on Other Special Area Programmes

		Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in thousand)	Excess (+) Saving (-)
Revenue:				
Voted-				
Original	2,40,52,90	2 44 2 7 2 7	0.40.47.70	() 0 00 00
Supplementary	4,44,97	2,44,97,87	2,42,15,58	(-)2,82,29
Amount surrendered during the year				
Capital:				
Voted-				
Original	1,38,80,87			
Supplementary	4,01,40	1,42,82,27	1,42,78,23	(-)4,04
Amount surrendered during the year				•••
Notes and Comments				

#### Notes and Comments:

### **Revenue Section**

- 1. Supplementary Grant of ₹ 4,44.97 lakh proved injudicious in view of final saving of ₹ 2,82.29 lakh; reasons for which were not communicated.
- 2. Significant saving under the Schemes which do not fall under the ambit of Council has occurred in the Grant under the following Heads; reasons for which were not communicated.

Head						Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
						(₹	in Lakh)	
2575	02	255	0099	General				
			0877	Police Leh				
				O	5,70.68			
				S	-	5,70.68	4,12.04	(-)1,58.64

Head						Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
						(₹	in Lakh)	
2575	02	334	0099	General				
			0880	Diesel Por	wer Generation			
				O	5,68.96			
				S	-	5,68.96	5,58.63	(-)10.33

3. Excess under the following Scheme which do not fall under the ambit of Council has occurred as under; reasons thereof were not communicated.

Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation		Actual enditure	Excess (+)
						(₹ in La	ıkh)	
2575	02	334	0099	General				
			1193	Kargil Diesel Scheme	;			
				O 2,53.40				
				S	2	2,53.40	2,62.04	(+)8.64

- 4. Although no provision was earmarked for transfer to the Ladakh/Kargil Autonomous Hill Development Council Fund, yet an amount of ₹ 2,27,27.63 lakh (₹ 2,26,99.73 lakh Non Plan, ₹ 27.90 lakh Plan) was transferred to the Fund Account out of the Major Head 2575- Other Special Area Programmes. Reasons for not placing the provision for transfer to the Fund A/c have not been intimated.
- 5. Provision under primary units had been placed in the Grant under Major Head 2575-Other Special Area Programmes, 253-District Administration (Non Engineering) and other Departments, which fall within the ambit of Council when it should have been shown as lumpsum provision transferable to Major Head 8448-Deposits of Local Fund, Ladakh Autonomous Hill Development Council/Kargil Autonomous Hill Development Council under Minor Head 113 subordinate to Major Head 2575- Other Special Area Programmes. Reasons for not adopting the correct procedure were not intimated.
- 6. Against the estimated recoveries of ₹ 3,50.00 lakh, only ₹ 2,03.87 lakh were recovered, resulting in less recoveries of ₹ 1,46.13 lakh; reasons for which were not communicated.

#### **Capital Section**

7 Supplementary Grant of ₹ 4,01.40 lakh proved injudicious in view of saving of ₹4.04 lakh; reasons for which were not communicated.

- 8. Against Non plan provision of ₹ 30.00 lakh under Sub Head 0886-Forest Department Kargil subordinate to Minor Head 313-Forest and Major Head 4575- Capital Outlay on Other Special Area Programmes, Plan expenditure to the tune of ₹ 36.52 lakh was incurred; reasons of which were not communicated..
- 9. Supplementary Grant of ₹ 1.40 lakh proved injudicious as no expenditure was incurred even against the original provision of ₹ 9.00 lakh placed under Sub Head 1860 –Forest Department Leh Subordinate to Minor Head 313-Forests and Major Head 4575-Capital Outlay on Special Area Programme.
- 10. Although no provision was earmarked to the Fund Account yet an amount of ₹ 1,42,41.87 lakh was transferred to the Council Fund; reasons for not placing the provision for transfer to the Council Fund have not been intimated.
- 11. Against the estimated recoveries of ₹ 39.00 lakh, only ₹ 25.19 lakh were recovered, resulting in less recoveries of ₹ 13.81 lakh; reasons for which were not intimated.
- 12. Suspense Transaction:- The expenditure out of the provision under the Grant includes ₹ 2,52.98 lakh booked under "Suspense" which is not a final head of account. It accommodates inter-alia transactions pending their adjustment to the final heads of account. The balance under "Suspense" Sub-Heads are carried forward from year to year. The nature of transactions under the four Sub-Heads (a) Purchases (b) Stock (c) Miscellaneous Works Advances and (d) Workshop Suspense are explained below:-
  - (a) Purchases: When materials are received for a specific work or holding in stock without being paid for or adjusted during the month, their value is credited to the Sub Head "Purchases" per contra debit to the particular work Head of Account or Stock Sub Head as the case may be. When payment is made or the value is adjusted by transfer of stores etc, this Head is debited with the amount, thereby clearing the previous credit. This Head will, therefore, always show a negative or credit balance representing the value of stores received but not paid for or adjusted.
  - (b) Stock: This Sub-Head is debited with the value of material received for stock purposes and not for any particular work but for the general use of the Division. It is credited with the value of materials issued to work or transferred to another division or otherwise disposed off. The balance represents value of material in stock.
  - (c) Miscellaneous Works Advances:- Under this Sub-Head debits for the value of stores sold on credit, expenditure incurred on deposit work in excess of deposits received, loss of cash or stores still to be written off, and sums recoverable from Government servants etc are booked. The debit balance under the Head thus represents amount recoverable or debit adjustable to final Head.
  - (d) Workshop Suspense: The charges for jobs executed or other operations in Workshop of the Public Works Department are booked under this Sub-Head pending recovery or adjustment of the charges.

# GRANT NO. 5 (Concld.)

An analysis of the transactions under "Suspense" in the Grant during 2009-2010 together with the Opening and Closing balances is given below: -

Particulars/Major Head of Account		Opening Balance as on 1 <sup>st</sup> April, 2009	Debit	Credit	Closing Balance as on 31st March 2010
			(₹ in	Lakh)	
2575-	Other Special Area Programmes- Purchases	(-)36.91	_	_	(-)36.91
	Stock	(+)10,74.55	2,52.98	2,03.87	(+)11,23.66
	Miscellaneous Advance	(+)4,79.81	-	-	(+)4,79.81
	Work Shop Suspense	(+) 37.98	-	-	(+) 37.98
	Total	(+)15,55.43	2,52.98	2,03.87	(+)16,04.54

### GRANT NO. 6 - POWER DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

### **MAJOR HEADS**

2801 Power

4801 Capital Outlay on Power Projects

		Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in thousand)	Excess (+) Saving (-)
Revenue:				
Voted-				
Original	24,35,65,95			
		24,35,65,95	27,95,20,00*	(+)3,59,54,05
Supplementary	-			
Amount surrendered during the ye <b>Capital:</b>	ear			
Voted-				
Original	12,83,00,00			
		12,83,00,00	10,35,05,40	(-)2,47,94,60
Supplementary	-			
Amount surrendered during the ye	ear			•••
Notes and Comments:				

### **Revenue Section**

- 1. Original Provision of ₹ 24,35,65.95 lakh proved meagre in view of excess of ₹ 3,59,54.05 lakh. The final excess of ₹ 3,59,54.05 lakh , requires regularization.
- 2. Excess over the provision occurred under the following Heads/ Schemes; reasons thereof were not intimated.

Head				l Grant/ priation	Actual Expenditure	Excess (+)
				(₹	in Lakh)	
2801 01	101	0099	General			
		0933	Chief Engineer Commercial & Survey W	Wing,		
			Jammu			
			O 19,96,00.00			
			S - 19,	,96,00.00	23,99,39.41 (	(+)4,03,39.41

<sup>\*</sup>Excludes ₹ 2.81 lakh (prior to 2009-10) spent from out of advance from Contingency fund but not recouped to the fund by debit to Major Head 2801-Power till the close of the year.

Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Excess (+)
2801	05	604	0099	General		,	
			1687	Chief Engineer Systems and Op	peration, Jammu		
				O 4,44.86			
2004	0.5	400	0000	S -	4,44.86	4,77.16	(+)32.30
2801	05	609	0099	General Chief Engineer Commencial 8x 5	Santarana Wilana		
			0933	Chief Engineer Commercial & Jammu	Survey Wing,		
				O 2,10.81			
				S -	2,10.81	16,17.55	(+)14,06.74
2801	06	617	0099	General			
			0911	Chief Engineer Maintenance an	d Rural		
				Electrification, Jammu			
				O 5,16.06			
2004	00	001	0000	S -	5,16.06	5,22.71	(+)6.65
2801	80	001		General  E. A. Boyyan Projects Organiyate	ion		
			1686	F. A. Power Projects Organizat O 1,39.30	1011		
				S -	1,39.30	2,17.28	(+)77.98
3.	Ç:	anifica	nt corri	ng occurred mainly under the	•		` ′
Э.		_	nicated.	ing occurred mainly under the	ionownig Tieads,	reasons for wind	ii wele not
Head					Total Grant/	Actual	Saving (-)
					Appropriation	Expenditure	
						(₹ in Lakh)	
2801	05	001	0099	General			
			0933	Chief Engineer Commercial & O 11,28.28	Survey Wing, Jam	mu.	
				S -	11,28.28	4,89.48	(-)6,38.80
			1685	Chief Engineer System & Oper	ation, Kashmir.		
				O 9,30.10 S -	9,30.10	8,77.09	(-)53.01
					7,50.10	0,77.07	( )55.01
			1687	Chief Engineer System and Op	peration, Jammu		
				O 11,32.23 S -	11 20 02	10,64.11	()6010
				S -	11,32.23	10,04.11	(-)68.12

Head			Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure ₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
2801 05 602		General Chief Engineer System and Opera	`	C III Zamii)	
2801 05 605	0099	O 4,12.17 S - General	4,12.17	3,26.65	(-)85.52
2001 00 000	1687	Chief Engineer System and Opera O 4,08.69			
2801 05 606		S - General	4,08.69	3,41.98	(-)66.71
	1687	Chief Engineer System and Opera O 5,42.14 S -	-	4.02.95	()40.20
2801 05 607		General Chief Engineer System and Opera	5,42.14	4,92.85	(-)49.29
	1003	O 6,83.61 S -	6,83.61	6,12.26	(-)71.35
2801 05 610	0099 0933	Chief Engineer Commercial & Sur			,
2001 07 001	0000	O 1,99.26 S -	1,99.26	1,53.20	(-)46.06
2801 06 001	0099	0	Rural Electrifica	tion, Jammu	
		O 3,63.71 S -	3,63.71	3,10.94	(-)52.77
	0978	Chief Engineer Maintenance and I O 6,52.11	Rural Electrifica	ition Kashmir	
	1678	S - Chief Engineer Procurement and I	6,52.11 Material Manag	6,07.74 ement, Jammu	(-)44.73
		O 61,60.77 S -	61,60.77	40,13.45	(-)21,47.32
2801 06 052	0099 0911	General Chief Engineer Maintenance and I	Rural Electrifica	tion, Jammu	
		O 40.00 S -		-	( \ F 70
		3 -	40.00	34.22	(-)5.78

Head			Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
2801 06		99 General			
	09	11 Chief Engineer Ma O 47,53.93	aintenance and Rural Electrific	ation, Jammu	
		S -	47,53.93	46,83.32	(-)70.61
2801 06	612 00	99 General			
	08	O	aintenance and Rural Electrific	ation, Jammu	
		O 14,98.62 S -	14,98.62	14,54.71	(-)43.91
2801 06	613 00	99 General	11,50.02	11,51.71	()13171
	09	11 Chief Engineer Ma	aintenance and Rural Electrific	ation, Jammu	
		O 5,17.51			
•••		S -	5,17.51	4,51.36	(-)66.15
2801 06	614 00	99 General	nintananaa and Dawal Elactuifia	ation James	
	U:	O 11,75.75	aintenance and Rural Electrific	auon, jammu	
		S -	11,75.75	10,59.77	(-)1,15.98
2801 06	615 00	99 General			
	08	-	aintenance and Rural Electrific	ation, Jammu	
		O 16,59.37	47.50.25	47.44.00	()47.57
2801 06	616 00	S - 99 General	16,59.37	16,41.80	(-)17.57
2001 00	010 00		aintenance and Rural Electrific	ation. Iammu	
		O 4,48.99			
		S -	4,48.99	4,29.60	(-)19.39
2801 06		99 General			
	09	0	aintenance and Rural Electrific	ation, Kashmir	
		O 59,80.77 S -	59,80.77	55,62.71	(-)4,18.06
2801 06	619 00	99 General	39,60.77	33,02.71	(-)4,10.00
2001 00		78 Chief Engineer Ma	aintenance and		
		Rural Electrification			
		O 8,89.05			
		S -	8,89.05	7,84.88	(-)1,04.17

Head		Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
2801 06 620 009 097	Chief Engineer Maintenance and Rural Electrification, Kashmir. O 6,01.34		`	
2801 06 621 009 097	S - O General O Chief Engineer Maintenance and Electrification, Kashmir. O 7,98.37	6,01.34 Rural	5,36.34	(-)65.00
2801 06 622 009 097	S - General	7,98.37	6,78.46	(-)1,19.91
2801 06 623 009	S -	8,99.11	8,02.95	(-)96.16
097	O 11,68.50			/ \
2801 06 624 009	S - O General	11,68.50	9,92.33	(-)1,76.17
097	3 Chief Engineer Maintenance and O 9,68.74	Rural Electrifica	ation, Kashmir	
2801 06 625 009	S - General	9,68.74	8,26.68	(-)1,42.06
097	3 Chief Engineer Maintenance and O 6,74.09	Rural Electrifica	ntion, Kashmir	
2801 06 626 009	S - General	6,74.09	6,19.71	(-)54.38
097	3 Chief Engineer Maintenance and O 7,25.98	Rural Electrifica	ation, Kashmir	
	S -	7,25.98	6,80.12	(-)45.86

Head		Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
2801 06 627 00° 09°	<ul> <li>General</li> <li>Chief Engineer Maintenance and Rural Electrification, Kashmir</li> <li>O 19,14.16</li> </ul>		(	
2801 06 628 00°	S - 9 General	19,14.16	17,49.63	(-)1,64.53
2801 06 629 00° 09°	S -	17,27.29	14,79.77	(-)2,47.52
2801 06 630 00 <sup>0</sup>	1 Chief Engineer Maintenance and	6,19.97	5,46.58	(-)73.39
2801 06 633 00° 09		6,60.69	6,47.32	(-)13.37
2801 80 001 009 16		4,71.62	3,69.14	(-)1,02.48
2801 80 004 009	Power O 2,16.89 S -	2,16.89	11.97	(-)2,04.92
210		gns 4,02.21	3,37.44	(-)64.77

Head				** *	Actual Expenditure in Lakh)	Saving (-)
280	1 80	005	0099 2170	General (	III Eastij	
280	1 80	800	0099	S - 2,39.50 General	2,02.34	(-)37.16
				S - 77.92	49.45	(-)28.47
4.		-		under the following Heads remained unutilized throughen intimated.	hout the year;	ceasons for
Head	WIIIC	II IIavc	not be	en miniaced.	App	otal Grant/ propriation (₹ in Lakh)
2801	04	609	0099	General		,
2801	05	052	0933 0099	Chief Engineer Commercial and Survey Wing, Jammu General		50.00
2801	06	001	1685 0011	Chief Engineer Systems and Operation, Kashmir State Plan Normal		8.00
2801	06	052	0978 0099	Chief Engineer Maintenance and Rural Electrification, General	, Kashmir	5.00
			0978	Chief Engineer Maintenance and Rural Electrification,	, Kashmir	45.00
5.				r the following Heads was incurred without budgetary pommunicated.	provisions; reas	ons for
Head						Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)
2801	01	001	0099	General	,	( III Laisii)
			1686	Financial Advisor / Chief Accounts Officer PDD		9.24
2801	05	001	0011	State Plan Normal		
			1687	Chief Engineer Systems and Operation, Jammu		6.25

6. As per the sanction order No. PDD/11/AC/67/2009 dated 9.3.2010 the funds were allocated by the Controlling Officer in respect of the scheme "Accounts Officer, Migrant Cell Jammu" under Sub-Major Head 06 subordinate to Major Head 2801-Power and Drawing & Disbursing Officers have incurred expenditure to the tune of ₹ 4,55.20 lakh under the same Sub-head ,while as per the Demand for Grant No. 6, the funds to the tune of ₹ 4,41.24 lakh were provided under sub-head 80 subordinate to Major Head 2801-Power in respect of the same Schemes resulting in mismatch of actual with the estimates; reasons thereof were not communicated to Audit.

#### **Capital Section**

- 7. In the Capital Section Original provision of ₹12,83,00.00 lakh proved excessive in view of the final saving of ₹ 2,47,94.60 lakh. No portion of the final saving of ₹ 2,47,94.60 lakh was anticipated and surrendered
- 8. Lumpsum Plan provision of ₹ 12,83,00.00 lakh under Major Head 4801-Capital Outlay on Power Projects without giving schematic break-up has deprived Audit in making comparison of excess/saving Sub-Head wise.
- 9. Suspense Transactions: The expenditure in the Grant, both Revenue and Capital includes ₹ 34,17.73 lakh under the Head Suspense which is not a final Head of Account. The nature of transactions under the Head Suspense and the accounting procedure followed have been explained in Note 12 below Grant No.5- Ladakh Affairs Department. An analysis of the transactions under Head Suspense in the Grant during the year 2008-2009 & 2009-10 together with the Opening and Closing balance is given below:-

1 0	,			
Particulars / Major head of account	Opening Balance as on 1 <sup>st</sup> April, 2009	Debits	Credits	Closing Balance as on 31 <sup>st</sup> March, 2010
		(₹ in Lak	h)	
2801- Power-				
Purchases	(-)35.44	-	-	(-)35.44
Miscellaneous Public Works Advances	4,77.81	-	-	4,77.81
Stock	14,03.42	34,17.73	(-)40,64.87	7,56.28
Workshop Suspense	29.38	-	-	29.38
Total – 2801	18,75.17	34,17.73	(-)40,64.87	12,28.03

Particulars / Majo	r Head of account	Opening Balance as on 1 <sup>st</sup> April, 2009	Debits (₹ in Lakh)	Credits		losing Balance on 31 <sup>st</sup> March, 2010
4801-	Capital Outlay on Power Projects-		( V III Zimin)			
	Purchases	(-)1,13.14	-		-	(-)1,13.14
	Stock	4,78.25	-		_	4,78.25
	Miscellaneous Public Works Advances	98.52	-		-	98.52
	Workshop Suspense	28.85	-		-	28.85
	Total – 4801	4,92.48	-		-	4,92.48

10. Review of Establishment and Tools and Plant Charges of Power Development Department: - The percentage which the expenditure on Establishment and Tools and Plants bore to the Works Outlay in the Power Development Department during 2007-08 to 2009-10 is indicated below. (The percentage fixed by the Government in 1955 for supervision charges recoverable for works done for other departments, outside bodies etc. range between 7.5 to 15 for Establishment charges and between 0.5 and 1 for Tools and Plant charges depending on the cost of works).

Year and Head of Accoun	t Works Outlay	Establishment Charges	Percentage of Establishment Charges to Works Outlay (₹ in Lal	Tools and Plant Charges	Percentage of Tools and Plant Charges to Works Outlay
2801 Power-					
2007-2008	17,93,41.61	2,24,73.99	12.53	64.40	0.03
2008-2009	19,00,40.98	2,40,77.04	12.66	99.17	0.05
2009-2010	22,31,73.23	3,20,18.15	14.34	1,37.74	0.07
4801 Capital Outlay on Power Projects-					
2007-2008	6,65,17.32	16.11	0.02	-	-
2008-2009	11,76,84.29	2.47	0.002	-	-
2009-2010	10,35,05.40	-	-	-	-

11. Depreciation Reserve Fund: - In order to provide Reserve Fund sufficient to meet the cost of renewals and replacement of Plant and Machinery ₹ Nil were transferred to the Depreciation Reserve Funds during the year 2009-10 against Nil provision under the Grant. However, clarification regarding provision of depreciation in respect of Power Projects transferred to Power Development Corporation are awaited from the State Government to whom matter has already been referred to. No expenditure was incurred out of the fund during the year on renewals and replacements of Plant and Machinery.

The balance at the credit of the Fund as on 31<sup>st</sup> March 2010 thus remained same as on 31-03-2009. Though the Depreciation Reserve Fund Rules framed by the government in 1974 are applicable from April 1969, yet the Depreciation has not been calculated under the said Rules as the cost of various assets is yet to be determined by the government. The latest position of the Fund is given in the Statement No. 18 of Finance Account 2009-2010.

### **GRANT NO. 7 – EDUCATION DEPARTMENT**

### **MAJOR HEADS**

2055 2202 2204 2205 3454 4202	Police General Education Sports and Youth Services Art and Culture Census Surveys and Statistics Capital Outlay on Education, Sports, Ar	rt and Culture				
		Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in thousand)	Excess (+) Saving (-)		
Reveni	ue:					
Voted-						
Origina	al 19,07,30,57	40.27.04.60	47.05.40.00	()2.52.40.50		
Supple	mentary 29,91,12	19,37,21,69	16,85,10,90	(-)2,52,10,79		
Amoun	nt surrendered during the year			•••		
Capita	<b>.l</b> :					
Voted-						
Origina	al 2,78,03,00		. = 0 = 0 + 0			
Supple	mentary 2,31,17	2,80,34,17	1,58,39,48	(-)1,21,94,69		
Amoun	Amount surrendered during the year					
Notes 2	and Comments:					

### **Revenue Section**

1. In the Revenue Section, Supplementary Grant of ₹ 29,91.12 lakh proved unjustified as the expenditure did not come even upto the level of the original provision of ₹ 19,07,30.57 lakh resulting in saving of ₹ 2,52,10.79 lakh. No portion of the final saving was anticipated and surrendered.

2. Persistent saving as detailed below occurred under the Grant during the last five years also.

Year	Year Total Grant/		Saving (-)
	Appropriation	Expenditure	
		(₹ in Lakh)	
2004-2005	9,39,98.60	8,07,75.33	(-)1,32,23.27
2005-2006	10,15,16.79	9,28,34.52	(-)86,82.27
2006-2007	10,86,64.36	10,27,89.29	(-)58,75.07
2007-2008	12,35,47.30	11,14,28.62	(-)1,21,18.68
2008-2009	13,98,86.84	11,82,65.06	(-)2,16,21.78

- 3. Against the Lumpsum provision of ₹ 7,60,13.55 lakh (original ₹ 7,50,55.71 lakh supplementary ₹ 9,57.84 lakh) ₹ 2,18,99.99 lakh Plan under Elementary Education, ₹ 7,50,27.24 lakh (original ₹ 7,49,99.46 lakh supplementary ₹27.78 lakh) and ₹ 40,00.00 lakh Plan under Secondary Education subordinate to Major Head 2202-General Education ₹ 50,37.64 lakh (original ₹ 34,45.83 lakh supplementary ₹1,59.81 lakh) placed under 001-Direction & Administration and ₹ 25,00.00 lakh plan under 104-Sports & Games subordinate to Major Head 2204- Youth Services & Sports placed with Controlling Officers, the Drawing & Disbursing Officers incurred expenditure under the Schemes not contemplated in the approved Demand for Grants. This deviation has deprived Audit in making comparison of Excess/ Saving Sub-Head wise.
- 4. In respect of following Schemes, where the provision was distinctly/separately placed in the Demand for Grants, significant saving has occurred as under; reasons thereof were not communicated.

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
2055	117	0099	General		` ,	
2202 01	104	0957 0099	Internal Security O 43,54.64 S 2,11.08 General	45,65.72	44,54.18	(-)1,11.54
		0214	Director Education, Kashmir O 4,04,29.48			
			S -	4,04,29.48	21,28.74	(-)3,83,00.74

Head		otal Grant/ opropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
2202 80 003 0099	General		,	
0271	O 1,71.03		4.40.45	()52.00
0277	S - State Institute of Education, Jammu O 1,36.54	1,71.03	1,18.15	(-)52.88
2202 80 003 0011	S 1,91.96 State Plan Normal	3,28.50	1,13.63	(-) 2,14.87
0277	State Institute of Education, Jammu O 4,80.63 S -	4,80.63	5.87	(-) 4,74.76
2204 102 0099 0954	National Cadet Corps O 4,13.52	442.52	2.05.20	/ V4 00 22
2205 104 0099	S - General	4,13.52	3,05.20	(-)1,08.32
0272	Development of Archives O 3,56.67 S -	3,56.67	3,12.18	(-)44.49
2205 104 0011 1890	State Plan Normal	3,30.07	3,12.10	(-)++.+>
2205 105 0099	S -	1,53.15	6.05	(-)1,47.10
0221	Jammu	ing Room,		
3454 02 110 0099 0468	O 7,78.38 S - General State Gazetteers	7,78.38	6,71.99	(-)1,06.39
	O 50.18 S -	50.18	26.26	(-)23.92

- 5. No funds were provided for Director Education Jammu under Minor Head 104-Inspection subordinate to Major Head 2202- General Education when an expenditure to the tune of ₹11,44.11 lakh was incurred under the Scheme, 'Inspection' Jammu.
- 6. Against the provision of ₹7,41.60 lakh placed at the disposal of Secretary J & K Sports Council as Grant in Aid under Minor Head 101-Physical Education subordinate to Major Head 2204-Sports and Youth Services total expenditure of ₹ 14,16.24 lakh was incurred, and out of which an amount of ₹ 6,93.04 lakh was incurred on different Schemes like Improvement of Youth Hostels, Appointment of Physical Education Teachers, Border Area Education Programmes etc. not contemplated in the Demand for Grants.
- 7. Placement of Plan provision of ₹ 1,00.00 lakh against Adult Education subordinate to Major Head 2202-General Education was irregular as the scheme stands closed from 01.04.2002 and the funds remained unutilized throughout the year.
- 8. Entire provision has remained un-utilized throughout the year under the following Schemes; reasons thereof were not communicated.

Head		Total Grant/ Appropriation
		(₹ in Lakh)
2202 02 107 0099	General	
0241	Sainik School, Nagrota	89.12
0243	Sainik School , Manasbal	1,65.00
2202 02 110 0099	General	
0243	Sainik School Manasbal for maintenance of building	20.00
2202 80 003 0011	State Plan Normal	
0271	State Institute of Education, Kashmir	5,18.16

9. In respect of those Schemes where the provision has separately been placed in the Demand for Grants, the significant excess occurred as under; reasons thereof were not intimated.

Head			Total Grant/	Actual	Excess(+)
			<b>Appropriation</b>	Expenditure	
				(₹ in Lakh)	
2202 01 8	300 0031	Centrally Sponsored Scheme			
	1030	Mid Day Meals			
		O 1,00.00			
		S -	1,00.00	5,72.40	(+)4,72.40

Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess(+)
						(₹ in Lakh)	
2202	02	107	0099	General			
			0905	Meritorious Student			
				O 2.60			
				S 0.65	3.25	1,69.72	(+)1,66.47
2202	02	110	0099	General			
			0241	Grant to Sainik School Nagrota of building	for maintenance		
				O 55.00			
2202	80	004	0099	S - General	55.00	54,48.62	(+)53,93.62
			0278	Research and Publication, Kashmi	r		
				O 1,77.56			
				S -	1,77.56	1,89.00	(+)11.44
				der the following Scheme was incommunicated.	urred without bu	dgetary provision	n; reasons for
Head							Actual Expenditure
							(₹ in Lakh)
2202	2 02	2 001	. 003	31 Centrally Sponsored Scheme			. ,
			231	0 Rashtriya Madhyamik Shiksha Abhiyan			20.86

11. No provision was provided for Govt. Libraries and Reading Rooms Kashmir under the Minor Head 105-Public Libraries subordinate to Major Head 2205-Art & Culture when an expenditure of ₹11.50 lakh and ₹1.72 lakh was incurred on 'Strengthening of Directorate Kashmir 'and 'Govt. Libraries and Reading Rooms Kashmir' respectively under the same Minor Head.

### **Capital Section**

12. Supplementary Grant of ₹ 2,31.17 lakh proved unjustified as the expenditure did not come even upto the level of the original provision of ₹2,78,03.00 lakh resulting in saving of ₹ 1,21,94.69 lakh. No portion of the final saving of ₹ 1,21,94.69 lakh was anticipated and surrendered.

13.	Corrigion on	حجمامها مطامعة	occurred under	tlan C'mant	ر جر صفیت در	tlan lant	tlamaa zzaama alaa
1.0.	- Savings as	defailed below	occurred under	ше Спаш	during i	une iasi.	unice veats also.

V	Year	Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
	2006-2007	1,10,35.92	80,93.79	(-)29,42.13
	2007-2008	1,39,26.00	1,10,49.46	(-)28,76.54
	2008-2009	1,94,23.81	1,36,64.79	(-)57,59.02

- 14. Lumpsum provision of ₹ 1,38,24.00 lakh (Original ₹ 1,36,12.00 lakh and Supplementary ₹ 2,12.00 lakh) under Elelementary Education under sub-head 0244-Direction & Administration and 0632-Elementary Education and ₹ 45,19.17 lakh (Original ₹45,00.00 lakh and Supplementary ₹ 19.17 lakh) under Sub-Head 0149-Secondary Education subordinate to Major Head 4202-Capital Outlay on Education, Sports, Art & Culture without giving scheme-wise break-up has deprived Audit to make any comparison of excess/ saving Sub-Head wise; reasons for placing Lumpsum provision have not been communicated.
- 15. Against the provision of ₹15,00.00 lakh under Minor Head 101-Fine Arts Education and ₹10,00.00 lakh under Minor Head 201-Elementary Education (Sub-head 1427-Physical Education) subordinate to Major Head 4202- Capital Outlay on Education, Sports, Art & Culture, the expenditure incurred was ₹5,59.59 lakh and ₹1,31.42 lakh only resulting in saving of ₹9,40.41 lakh and ₹8,68.58 lakh respectively; reasons for the same were not communicated.
- 16. Significant saving occurred mainly under the following Heads/Schemes; reasons for which were not communicated.

Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
					11 1	(₹ in Lakh)	
4202	01 201	0099	General				
		1426	Teacher 7	Training			
			O	6,81.00			
			S	-	6,81.00	4.13	(-)6,76.87

17. Excess occurred mainly under the following Head/Scheme; reasons for which have not been communicated.

Head						Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess(+)
							(₹ in Lakh)	
4202	01	800	0031	Centrally S	Sponsored Schemes		,	
			1030	Mid Day I	Meals			
				O	47,50.00			
				S	-	47,50.00	59,53.28	(+)12,03.28

18 Entire provision has remained un-utilized throughout the year under the following Schemes; reasons thereof were not communicated.

Head		Total Grant/ Appropriation (₹ in Lakh)
4202 01 20	1 0031 Centrally Sponsored Scheme	
	1227 Strengthening of DIETs	11,60.00
	2281 Vocational Training Project (Computer)	6,00.00
	liture under the following Heads /Schemes (Voted) was incurred on; reasons for which were not communicated.	without budgetary
Head		Actual Expenditure
		(₹ in Lakh)
4202 01 20	2 0031 Centrally Sponsored Scheme	
	2310 Rashtriya Madhyamik Shiksha Abhiyan	41.18
4202 01 20	1 0031 Centrally Sponsored Scheme	
	0449 Sarv Shiksha Abhiyan	3.61

## **GRANT NO. 8 – FINANCE DEPARTMENT**

	OR HEADS									
2030	Stamps and Registrat									
2035		Taxes on Property and	Capital Transaction	ns						
2039	State Excise									
2040										
2045	Other Taxes and Duties on Commodities and Services									
2047										
2048	Appropriation for Reduction or Avoidance of Debt									
2049	Interest Payments									
2054	Treasury and Accour	nts Administration								
2071	Pension and Other R	Retirement Benefits								
2075	Miscellaneous Gener	al Services								
2235	Social Security and W	Velfare								
4851	Capital Outlay on Vi	llage and Small Industr	ries							
5475		ther General Economic								
6003	Internal Debt of the									
6004		from the Central Gov	ernment							
6235	Loans for Social Secu									
		,	Total Grant/	Actual	Excess (+)					
			Appropriation	Expenditure	Saving (-)					
			11 1	(₹ in thousand)	3 ( )					
Rever	nue:			,						
Voted	ļ <del>-</del>									
Origin	nal	17,44,04,26								
Ü			17,44,04,26	17,23,35,18	(-)20,69,08					
Suppl	ementary	-								
	ent surrendered during	the year								
Charge	***	the year			•••					
		17,27,15,00								
Origir	121	17,27,19,00	19,50,44,09	21 38 23 68	(+)1,87,79,59					
0 1		2 22 20 00	19,50,44,09	21,70,27,00	(1)1,07,79,09					
	ementary	2,23,29,09								
	ınt surrendered during	the year			•••					
Capit										
Voted		0.04.00.00								
Origin	ıal	8,21,00,00		5.00.55.07	() 2 22 22 24					
			8,21,00,00	5,98,77,96	(-)2,22,22,04					
Suppl	ementary	-								
Amou	ant surrendered during	the year								

		Total Grant/ Appropriation (₹	Actual Expenditure in thousand)	Excess (+) Saving (-)				
Charged-								
Original	8,08,46,00							
		8,08,46,00	35,73,90,47	(+)27,65,44,47				
Supplementary	-							
Amount surrendered during th	e year			•••				
Notes and Comments:								
	Reven	ue Section						
1. In the voted Section Or	1. In the voted Section Original Provision of ₹17,44,04.26 lakh proved excessive in view of the final							
Saving of ₹ 20,69.08 lal surrendered.	kh. No portion of t	the final saving of ₹	20,69.08 lakh was	anticipated and				

2. Significant saving has occurred under the following Heads; reasons for which were not communicated.

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
				(₹	in Lakh)	
2035	101	0099	General			
		0244	Direction and Administration.			
			O 54.11			
			S -	54.11	27.04	(-) 27.07
2039	001	0099	General			
		0334	Commissioner's Office			
			O 18,46.59			
			S -	18,46.59	12,37.43	(-) 6,09.16
2040	800	0099	General			
		1429	Sales Tax Tribunal			
			O 36.88			
			S -	36.88	27.71	(-) 9.17
2045	104	0099	General			
		0968	Collection charges-Taxes on Goo	ods and Passenge	ers	
			O 1,28.75			
			S -	1,28.75	61.66	(-) 67.09
		0983	Collection charges-Commissioner	r Excise		
			O 91.72			
			S -	91.72	32.23	(-) 59.49

Head			GIGHT TTO. 0	Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
				(₹	in Lakh)	
2047	800	0099 1486	General State Finance Commission O 68.46 S -	68.46	0.20	(-) 68.26
2054	095	0099	General			
		0326	Deputy Director O 2,37.83 S - R 20.00	2,57.83	2,37.04	(-)20.79
2054	097	0099	General			
		0324	O 11,96.51 S - R (-)20.00 District Treasuries O 11,53.35	11,76.51	8,12.97	(-) 3,63.54`
			S -	11,53.35	6,19.83	(-) 5,33.52
2054	098	0099	General  Local Fund Audit Organization  O 1,00.24  S -	1,00.24	83.78	(-) 16.46
2054	800	0099 1957	General Director Fund Organization O 17,70.33 S -	17,70.33	16,50.86	(-) 1,19.47
2235	02 001	0099 0244	Direction and Administration O 7,96.23			W = == ==
			S -	7,96.23	4,65.90	(-) 3,30.33

Head						Grant/ priation	Expen (₹ in La		Saving (-)
2235	60 107	0099 0965	General Pension to Fr	eedom Fighte	ers and thei	r Depend		,	
			O 3,00.00						
			S -			3,00.00		85.99	(-)2,14.01
3.	Significant communica		has occurred	under the	following	Heads;	reasons	for which	were not
Head	Commission	.ccar			Tota	l Grant/		Actual	Excess(+)
						priation	Expe	nditure	. ,
							(₹ in I	Lakh)	
2040	001	0099	General						
		0334	Commissioner						
			O 28,75.76			20	_	2 2 2 4 2	/.> // #A /A
00.47	102	0000	S -			28,75.76	./	3,28.18	(+) 44,52.42
2047	103	0099 0293	General Director Finan						
		0293	O 10.66						
			S -			10.66		93.53	(+)82.87
2054	003	0099	General			10.00		70.55	(1)02.07
		0329		al Accountancy Training School, Jammu					
			O 1,34.37		, (	, ,,			
			S -			1,34.37		1,54.37	(+)20.00
2054	095	0099	General			-,		-,	( )=
	0,0	0312	Directorate of	Accounts an	d Treasurie	s			
			O 3,46.09			_			
			S -			3,46.09	1	4,13.19	(+) 10,67.10
						5,10.05	1	1,10,17	(.) 10,07.10
		0316	Directorate of A	Audit and Ins	pection				
			O 2,34.06		•				
			S -			2,34.06		2,38.73	(+) 4.67
						. ,		,	( )

4. An amount of ₹2,10,00.00 lakh as provision for DA & Medical Reimbursement was placed under the scheme 0418-Finance Department subordinate to Major Head 2054-Treasury & Accounts Administration. Further, allocation amongst various Controlling Officers was not received in the Audit Department for apportioning the same to the relevant Heads/Grants and resulting in the overstated expenditure vis-à-vis Budgetary provisions to the extent of DA/Medical Reimbursement paid to the State Govt. employees under various Grants. Also placement of Lumpsum Budgetary Grant of ₹14,12,00.00 lakh under sub-head 668-Secretary Finance subordinate to Major Head 2071-Pensionary and Other Retirement Benefits has deprived the Audit to make the comparison of excess/ saving Sub-Head wise/ Minor-Head wise.

- 5. Lumpsum provision of ₹ 7,11.92 lakh was placed at the disposal of Commissioner Commercial Tax (Controlling Officers) under the Scheme 0344 State Stamps Department subordinate to Minor Head 001 Direction and Administration and Major Head 2030-Stamps and Registration, when the expenditure was incurred in the Schemes like cost of Stamps, Special Adhesive, court fee etc. not contemplated in the Demand for Grants, thereby depriving Audit to make comparison of excess/saving sub head wise.
- 6. Plan expenditure of ₹1,24.14 lakh was incurred under Sub-Head 1957-Director Funds Organization subordinate to Minor Head-800 other expenditure and Major Head 2054 -Treasury and Accounts Administration without Budgetary Grants.
- 7. Against the provision of ₹ 4.60 lakh placed under 0317-Pension in lieu of resumed Jagirs subordinate to Minor Head 103 State lotteries, Major Head 2075- Miscellaneous General Service, an expenditure of ₹ 5.21 lakh was incurred on 0975 Pension and Award Consideration, Award of distinguished services, subordinate to Minor Head 104 and Major head 2075-Miscellaneous General Service not provided in Demand for Grants; reasons for which were not communicated.
- 8. In the Revenue *Charged* Section Supplementary Appropriation of ₹ 2,23,29.09 lakh proved inadequate in view of excess of ₹1,87,79.59 lakh, which requires regularization.
- 9. In the *Charged* Section Significant excess has occurred under the following Head; reasons thereof have not been communicated.

Head			Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess(+)
2049 01	101	0099 General	11 1	f in Lakh)	
2047 01	101	0184 Interest on Bank Over Draft O 1,35,00.00			
		S -	1,35,00.00	2,34,15.38	(+)99,15.38

10. Excess was partly counterbalanced by the saving under the following Head; reasons thereof have not been communicated.

Неас	l				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving(-)
2049	04	101	0099	General			
			0723	Interest on Loans & Advances : O 1,90,54.00	from Central Govt.		
				S	1,90,54.00	29,01.72	(-)1,61,52.28
2049	60	101	0099	General			
			0185	Interest on other obligations O 5,00.00			
				S	5,00.00	3.83	(-)4,96.17

- 11. An amount of ₹ 1,00.00 lakh was transferred to Minor head 117 Guaranteed Redemption fund subordinate to Major Head 8235-Geneal Redemption Fund from Major Head 2048-Appropration for reduction or Avoidance of debt. Actually provision should have been kept under Major Head 2075-Misc. General Services instead of Major Head 2048- Appropriation for reduction or avoidances of Debt which is actually earmarked for transfer of funds to Major Head 8222-Sinking Fund, 102-other Appropriation. This reflects defective Budgeting. The State Government has not prescribed or charged any guarantee fee from Public Sector Undertakings in Jammu and Kashmir during 2009-10.
- 12. Against Lump Appropriation of ₹ 1,47,92.00 lakh (*Charged*) under Sub-Head 0163 -Interest on Other Internal Debt subordinate to Major Head 2049- Interest payments, only a portion of ₹3,38.75 lakh was incurred on the said Scheme and rest was utilized under the following Head which were not contemplated in the Approved Demand for Grants.

Head					Actual Expenditure
					(₹ in Lakh)
2049	01	123		Interest on special securities issued to	4,38,42.18
				NSS fund of the central	
2049	01	200	0099	General	
			0186	NABARD	78,35.95
			0191	Interest on Market Loan	7,08,31.49
			0302	Rural Electrification Corporation	21,19.45
			1583	Other Insurance & Pension Fund	2,50.89
			1585	General Insurance Schemes (GIC)	40.40
			2120	Interest on Power Bonds	18,49.79
			2121	Life Insurance Scheme(LIC)	81,61.11
			2122	New India Assurance (NIA)	9.93
			2123	Oriental India Assurance (OIA)	1,74.70
			2124	United India Assurance (UIA)	33.28
2049	01	200	0099	General	
			2126	Housing Development Financial Co-operation (HDFC)	46.13
			9772	Bill of Purchase	1,00,48.76
2049	03	109	0099	General	
			1061	Corpus Fund of Jammu and Kashmir Rehabilitation Centre.	3,55.19

13. In the *Charged* Section entire provision remained un-utilized in respect of following Head throughout the year; reasons thereof have not been communicated.

Total Grapt/

Head					Appropriation
					(₹ in Lakh)
2049	04	104	0099	General	
			0171	Share of Small Saving	4,28,29.09
2049	05	105	0099	General	
			0185	Interest on Other Obligations	23,08.00
2049	60	701	0099	General	
			2120	Interest of Power Bonds	1,39,94.00

14. The Detailed Accounts of the State Insurance Fund and State General Provident Fund are maintained by the State Government. Interest on Insurance Fund and State provident Fund to the tune of ₹20,40.05 lakh and ₹3,44,19.16 lakh respectively, has been adjusted in the Accounts by the State Government during 2009-10 on adhoc basis. The actual figures are awaited in Audit, as the State Government has not reportedly closed their accounts.

#### **Capital Section**

15. In the Voted Capital Section, Original Provision of ₹ 8,21,00.00 lakh proved excessive in view of the final saving of ₹ 2,22,22.04 lakh. No portion of final saving of ₹ 2,22,22.04 lakh was anticipated and surrendered.

16. Persistent saving occurred during the last four years also.

Year	Total Grant/ Appropriation E	Actual xpenditure (₹ in La	Saving (-)
2005-2006	25,56.00	2,81.08	(-)22,74.92
2006-2007	3,70,00.00	5,35.62	(-)3,64,64.38
2007-2008	3,23,00.00	31,74.36	(-)2,91,25.64
2008-2009	5,29,10.00	96,86.94	(-)4,32,23.06
 		,	

17. Significant Saving has occurred under the following Heads; reasons for which were not communicated.

Head				Total Grant/	Actual	Saving (-)
				Appropriation	Expenditure	
					(₹ in Lakh)	
5475	800	0011 State P	Plan Normal			
		1006 Up-Gr	adation Grant			
		O	1,05,00.00			
		S	-	1,05,00.00	42.44	(-)1,04,57.56

### GRANT NO. 8 (Concld.)

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
5475	800	0011 Sta	ite Plan Normal		,	
		2144 Ec	onomic Restructuring Agency			
		O	6,86,00.00			
		S	· ·	6,86,00.00	5,74,96.64	(-)1,11,03.36
6235 02	190	0099 Ge	eneral			(,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
		0668 Sec	cretary Finance			
		O	25,00.00			
		S	-	25,00.00	20,85.07	(-)4,14.93

18. In the *Charged* Capital Section, Original Appropriation of ₹ 8,08,46.00 lakh proved meagre in view of the excess of ₹ 27,65,44.47 lakh which requires regularization. The placement of lumpsum Appropriation of ₹ 6,97,03.00 lakh under Major Head 6003- Internal Debt of the State Government and ₹1,11,43.00 lakh under Major Head 6004-Loans and Advances from the Central Government has deprived Audit in making comparison of excess/saving sub-head wise.

19. In the *Charged* Appropriation, excess occurred during the last five years also as detailed hereunder.

Year	Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in 1	Excess (+) Lakh)
2004-2005	3,51,80.00	19,37,69.22	(+)15,85,89.22
2005-2006	3,35,76.00	1,21,75,34.53	(+)1,18,39,58.53
2006-2007	4,28,56.88	14,25,91.78	(+)9,97,34.90
2007-2008	5,33,12.00	17,66,91.36	(+)12,33,79.36
2008-2009	6,11,20.00	33,51,60.45	(+)27,40,40.45

### GRANT NO. 09 - PARLIAMENTARY AFFAIRS DEPARTMENT

### **MAJOR HEADS**

2011 State Legislature

7610 Loans to Government Servants etc

		Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in thousand)	Excess (+) Saving (-)
Revenue:				
Voted-				
Original	20,50,57			
Supplementary	-	20,50,57	18,87,71	(-)1,62,86
Amount surrendered during the year				
Charged				
Original	61,22			
Supplementary	-	61,22	35,07	(-)26,15
Amount surrendered during the year				•••
Capital:				
Voted-				
Original	3,00,00			
Supplementary	-	3,00,00	4,95	(-)2,95,05
Amount surrendered during the year				
Notes and Comments:				

### **Revenue Section**

1. In the Voted Section original provision of ₹ 20,50.57 lakh proved excessive in view of the final saving of ₹1,62.86 lakh. No portion of the final saving of ₹ 1,62.86 lakh was anticipated and surrendered.

## **GRANT NO. 09 –** (Contd.)

2. Persistent saving also occurred during the last five years as detailed below:-

Year	Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
		(₹ in Lakh)	
2004-2005	10,12.44	8,36.66	(-) 1,75.78
2005-2006	13,58.99	11,61.58	(-)1,97.41
2006-2007	16,72.44	15,12.71	(-)1,59.73
2007-2008	17,37.65	16,19.93	(-)1,17.72
2008-2009	16,82.35	15,90.26	(-)92.09

3. Significant saving in the voted section occurred mainly under the following Head/Schemes reasons for which were not communicated.

Head			Total Grant/ Appropriation	-	Saving (-)
2014 02	4.04 0000			(₹ in Lakh)	
2011 02	101 0099	General			
	0890	Legislative Assembly			
		O 5,45.60			
		S -	5,45.60	4,26.56	(-)1,19.04
	0892	Legislative Council			
		O 2,38.47			
		S -	2,38.47	2,17.39	(-)21.08
2011 02	103 0099	General			
	0891	J&K Legislative			
		Assembly Secretariat			
		O 9,39.85			
		S -	9,39.85	9,32.51	(-)7.34
	0892	Legislative Council			
		O 3,26.65			
		S -	3,26.65	3,11.25	(-)15.40

## GRANT NO. 09 (Concld.)

- 4. In the Revenue *Charged* portion original provision of ₹ 61.22 lakh proved excessive in view of final saving of ₹ 26.15 lakh. No portion of final savings of ₹ 26.15 lakh was anticipated or surrendered
- 5. In the Revenue *Charged* Section, significant saving occurred under the following Head/Schemes reasons for which were not communicated.

Head		Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
2011 02 101 0099 0890	General Legislative Assembly		( III Lakii)	
	O 32.31 S -	32.31	19.70	(-)12.61
0892	Legislative Council	72.71	17.70	(-)12.01
	O 28.91 S -	28.91	15.37	(-)13.54

6. In the Revenue Charged Section, persistent saving occurred during last three years also.

Year	Total Grant/	Actual	Saving (-)
	Appropriation	Expenditure	
		(₹ in Lakh)	
2006-2007	53.12	22.53	(-)30.59
2007-2008	54.60	39.62	(-)14.98
2008-2009	59.60	33.11	(-)26.49

### **Capital Section**

- 7. In the Capital Section original provision of ₹ 300.00 lakh proved excessive in view of the final saving of ₹ 2,95.05 lakh. No portion of the final saving of ₹ 2,95.05 lakh was anticipated and surrendered.
- 8. In the Capital Section persistent saving occurred during the last three years also.

Year	Total Grant/	Actual	Saving (-)
	Appropriation	Expenditure	
		(₹ in Lakh)	
2006-2007	50.00	40.00	(-)10.00
2007-2008	60.00	-	(-)60.00
2008-2009	2,00.00	17.48	(-)1,82.52

### **GRANT NO. 10 – LAW DEPARTMENT**

MAJO	OR HEADS				
2014	Administration of Justice				
2015	Elections				
2030	Stamps and Registration				
2041	Taxes on Vehicles				
2070	Other Administrative Service	es			
2230	Labour and Employment				
			Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess (+) Saving (-)
				(₹ in thousand)	
Rever	nue:				
Voted	-				
Origin	al	1,14,08,29			
			1,14,08,29	71,08,66	(-)42,99,63
Supple	ementary	-			
Amou	nt surrendered during the year				
Charge	d				
Origin	al	18,39,85	40.00.05		( ) <b>= 0</b> 0000
Supple	ementary	-	18,39,85	13,07,77	(-)5,32,08
Amou	nt surrendered during the year				•••

Notes and Comments:

### **Revenue Section**

- 1. Original provision of ₹ 1,14,08.29 lakh under Voted Grant proved excessive in view of the final saving of ₹ 42,99.63 lakh. No portion of the final saving of ₹ 42,99.63 lakh was anticipated and surrendered.
- 2. Persistent saving in the Grant on Voted side occurred during the last five years as detailed below:-

Year	Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
		(₹ in Lakh)	
2004-2005	59,22.84	34,92.76	(-)24,30.08
2005-2006	61,30.70	41,02.40	(-) 20,28.30
2006-2007	64,27.21	38,69.86	(-)25,57.35
2007-2008	81,91.96	47,68.86	(-)34,23.10
2008-2009	1,36,90.87	1,11,57.18	(-)25,33.69

3. In the Voted Section significant saving occurred mainly under the following Heads; reasons for which were not communicated.

W	men were	not co	mmumcated.	H 10 /	۸ 1	0 . ()
Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
					(₹ in Lakh)	
2014	102	0099	General		( 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	
			High Courts			
			O 5,61.20			
			S -	5,61.20	4,95.58	(-)65.62
2014	105	0099	General	-,-	.,	()
			District & Sessions Judges			
			O 56,66.91			
			S -	56,66.91	28,54.01	(-)28,12.90
2014	114	0099	General	,	,	( ) ,
		0499	Advocate General			
			O 3,60.62			
			S -	3,60.62	2,56.25	(-)1,04.37
		1248	Public Prosecutors.			
			O 1,67.02			
			S -	1,67.02	1,17.95	(-)49.07
2014	116	0099	General			
		0511	Human Rights Commission	on		
			O 2,22.02			
			S -	2,22.02	1,86.11	(-)35.91
2015	102	0099	General			
		0493	Chief Electoral Officer			
			O 37,41.84			
			S -	37,41.84	16,83.54	(-)20,58.30
2041	800	0099	General			
		0506	State Transport Appellate Court/Mact Srinagar.			
			O 28.20			
			S -	28.20	21.34	(-)6.86
		2108	State Accountability Com			()3.00
			O 1,95.81			
			S -	1,95.81	1,08.60	(-)87.21

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
					(₹ in Lakh)	
2230	101	0099	General			
		0888	Industrial Tribunal Cour	t / Labour Court		
			O 34.16			
			S -	34.16	16.56	(-)17.60
4.	Saving wa	_	counterbalanced by the exd.	ccess under the follow	ring Heads; reason	s for which were
Head				Total Grant/	Actual	Excess(+)
110000				Appropriation	Expenditure	
					(₹ in Lakh)	
2014	103	0099	General			
		0889	State Legal Services Auth O 3,10.00	nority		
			S -	3,10.00	3,20.11	(+)10.11
2014	105	0099	General	3,2000	-,	( )
		1243	TADA Courts Temporar O 24.23 S -	ry Courts 24.23	57.92	(+)33.69
2030	03 001	0099	General			
		0244	Direction and Administr O 42.03 S -	ation. 42.03	64.50	(+)22.47
			-	74.03	07.50	(1)22.41

### GRANT NO.10 (Concld.)

5. Lumpsum Provision of ₹56,66.91 lakh was placed under 0488-District & Session Judges subordinate to Minor Head 105-Civil Session Courts and Major Head 2014-Administration of Justice, but the Drawing & Disbursing Officers of the below mentioned courts have incurred the expenditure under the following Schemes (not contemplated in the Demand for Grants) out of Lumpsum provision, depriving the Audit to make comparison of excess/ saving Sub-Head wise.

1 1	,	1	0	1		0	
							Actual
							Expenditure
							(₹ in Lakh)
Munsiff Courts.							4,48.96
Sub-Judge Courts							4,01.13
Misc Courts							5.64
Mobile Courts							19.97

6. In the *Charged* Section original provision of ₹18,39.85 lakh proved excessive in view of the final saving of ₹5,32.08 lakh. No portion of the final saving of ₹ 5,32.08 lakh was anticipated and surrendered.

### GRANT NO. 11 - INDUSTRIES AND COMMERCE DEPARTMENT

## **MAJOR HEADS**

MAJC	OR HEADS							
2851	1 Village and Small Industries							
2853	Non-Ferrous Mining and Metallurgical Industries							
4851	1 Capital Outlay on Village and Small Industries							
4852	52 Capital Outlay on Iron & Steel Industries							
4853	Capital Outlay on Non-ferrous Mining an	ıd Metallurgical Indus	stries					
5465	Investment in General Financial and Trac	ling Institutions						
6885	Loans for Other Industries and Minerals							
		Total Grant/	Actual	Excess (+)				
		Appropriation		Saving (-)				
_			(₹ in thousand)					
Rever								
Voted								
Origin	1,34,30,20							
		1,34,30,20	1,15,16,27	(-)19,13,93				
Supple	ementary -							
Amou	int surrendered during the year			•••				
Capita	al:							
Voted	<del>-</del>							
Origin	1,09,69,20							
		1,11,29,34	1,14,29,62	(+)3,00,28				

Amount surrendered during the year

Notes and Comments:

Supplementary

### **Revenue Section**

- 1. Original provision of ₹ 1,34,30.20 lakh proved excessive in view of the final saving of ₹19,13.93 lakh. No portion of the final saving of ₹19,13.93 lakh was anticipated and surrendered.
- 2. Persistent saving in the Grant occurred during the last five years as detailed below:-

1,60,14

Year	Total Grant/	Actual	Saving (-)
	<b>Appropriation</b>	Expenditure	
		(₹ in Lakh)	
2004-2005	96,56.55	71,51.92	(-)25,04.63
2005-2006	87,55.63	82,68.18	(-)4,87.45
2006-2007	92,83.33	84,88.92	(-)7,94.41
2007-2008	95,49.35	89,44.33	(-)6,05.02
2008-2009	1,05,01.67	95,85.53	(-)9,16.14

3. Significant saving occurred mainly under the following Heads; reasons for which were not communicated.

Head					Total Grant/ ppropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
					(₹	in Lakh)	
2851	001	0099	General				
		2202	Director Industrie	es, Jammu			
			O 1,32.69				
			S -		1,32.69	1,22.63	(-)10.06
	101	0808	Industrial Estate,	Gandhi Nagar			
			O 23.71				
			S -		23.71	12.66	(-)11.05
2851	001	0099	General				
		1590	Industrial Estate F	Rural & Urban			
			O 30.15				
			S -		30.15	12.75	(-)17.40
		2188	Industrial Estate F	Rural & Urban, Jai	mmu		
			O 21.19				
			S -		21.19	8.24	(-)12.95
2851	102		General				
		0796	Industrial Trainin	g Centres			
			O 96.74				
			S -		96.74	87.98	(-)8.76
		0798	Footwear & Leath	ner Goods Demor	nstration Cent	res	
			O 39.56				
			S -		39.56	19.74	(-)19.82
		0806	Central Market, Ja	mmu			
			O 11.39				
			S -		11.39	4.52	(-)6.87
		0807	Works-Cum-Prod	uction Centre, Ka	ithua		
			O 19.88				
			S -		19.88	13.39	(-)6.49
		2271	DIC Schemes/				
			Director Industrie	es & Commerce, J	ammu		
			O 8,44.27				
			S -		8,44.27	4,25.34	(-)4,18.93

					(Gontal)		
Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
2851	1	103	0099	General			
			0244	Direction and Administration			
				O 11,18.50			
				S -	11,18.50	9,86.01	(-)1,32.49
			0814	UNDP Project ,Nowshera			,,
				O 1,87.53			
				S -	1,87.53	1,31.32	(-)56.21
2851	1	04	0099	General	,	,	()
				Direction and Administration,	Handicrafts and		
				Subordinate Offices			
				O 63,98.97			
				S -	63,98.97	57,17.39	(-)6,81.58
2851	8	300	0011	State Plan Normal			
			2196	E.D.I.			
				O 1,10.00			
				S -	1,10.00	0.20	(-)1,09.80
2853	02 0	001	0099	General	,		
			0244	Direction and Administration			
				O 22,73.13			
				S -	22,73.13	16,77.65	(-)5,95.48
4.	Saving w	vas	partly	counterbalanced by the excess	·	•	
	not com		_	<del>-</del>	O	·	
Head					Total Grant/	Actual	Excess (+)
					Appropriation I	Expenditure	
						(₹ in Lakh)	
2851		105	0099	General			
			0802	Grant-in-Aid Contribution & S	Subsidies		
				O 7,52.44			
				S -	7,52.44	8,60.27	(+)1,07.83
5.	Entire F	Bude	oet Pr	ovision has remained unutilize	d throughout the	vear in respec	rt of following
٥.				asons for which were not comm			or or ronowing
Head	,		Ź				Total Grant/
							Appropriation
							(₹ in Lakh)
2851	1	102	0031	Centrally Sponsored Schemes.			
			1453	Transport Subsidy.			50.00

6. Augmentation of provision through Re-appropriation proved meagre in view of excess under following Scheme; reasons for which were not communicated to Audit.

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Excess (+)
2851		S	Direction Office Industries.  1,34.88			
7.		-	14.38 ion through Re-appropriatio Scheme; reasons for which l	_ /		
Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess (+)
				(	(₹ in Lakh)	
2851		0099 C 0408 E C S	O.I.C Schemes 9,01.03			
		R	(-)32.77	8,68.26	9,50.48	(+)82.22
8.	*		the following Head./Schewere not communicated to A		without Budgetan	ry provision;
Head						Actual Expenditure
						(₹ in Lakh)
2851	102	0011 0408	State Plan Normal D.I.C.Schemes			2.50
2851	107	0099 0336 0337	General Additional Director Sericul Additional Director Sericul			14.18 7.80

9. Augmentation of Provision through re-appropriation proved excessive in view of Saving under following Head/Schemes.

Head	70.70 11.2-8	,	aremes.		Total Grant/	Actual	Savings (-)
					Appropriation	Expenditure	0 1,
					(₹ in 1	Lakh)	
2851	102	0099	Gener	ral.	`	,	
		0809	Rural	Artisans Programn	ne.		
			Ο	98.65			
			S	-			
			R	7.92	1,06.57	97.32	(-)9.25
		1907 I	Knitting	Training Centre.			
			_	45.33			
		5	3	-			
		]	}	8.66	1,53.99	1,28.22	(-)25.77
				Capita	l Section		
10.				₹ 1,60.14 lakĥ pr	oved meagre in view of	the final excess	of ₹ 3,00.28
11.				regularization.	. I I oo day waxaa ma fa u seela is	huo uo ot oo uo	ل معمد مناهمی
Head	Excess C	CCUITEC	лаппу с	inder the following	g Heads; reasons for which Total Grant/		
пеац					Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess (+)
					11 1	_	
4851					(₹	t in Lakh)	
	101	0011 S	tate Plai	n Normal	(₹	t in Lakh)	
				n Normal rastructural Develo	`	t in Lakh)	
			IC Infr		`	t in Lakh)	
		0404 Г	IC Infr	astructural Develo	`	f in Lakh) 44,92.06	(+)23,69.92
	(	0404 E C S	IC Infr	rastructural Develo 19,62.00 1,60.14	pment, Kashmir	,	(+)23,69.92
	(	0404 E C S 0408 E	OIC Infr OIC Sch	rastructural Develo 19,62.00 1,60.14	pment, Kashmir 21,22.14	44,92.06	` '
	(	0404 E C S 0408 E C S	OIC Infr OIC Sch	rastructural Develo 19,62.00 1,60.14 emes 6,47.20	pment, Kashmir	,	(+)23,69.92 (+)17,71.28
4851	103	0404 E S 0408 E C S 0408 S	OIC Infr OIC School OIC School	rastructural Develo 19,62.00 1,60.14 emes 6,47.20 - n Normal	pment, Kashmir 21,22.14	44,92.06	` '
4851	103	0404 E S 0408 E C S 0011 S 0367 H	OIC Infr OIC School OIC School OIC School	rastructural Develo 19,62.00 1,60.14 emes 6,47.20 - n Normal m Industries	pment, Kashmir 21,22.14	44,92.06	` '
4851	103	0404 E C S 0408 E C S 0011 S 0367 E	OIC Infr OIC School OIC School OIC School	rastructural Develo 19,62.00 1,60.14 emes 6,47.20 - n Normal	pment, Kashmir 21,22.14 6,47.20	44,92.06 24,18.48	(+)17,71.28
4851	103	0404 E S 0408 E C S 0011 S 0367 E	oIC Infr oIC School tate Plantlandlood	rastructural Develo 19,62.00 1,60.14 emes 6,47.20 - n Normal m Industries 2,75.00	pment, Kashmir 21,22.14 6,47.20	44,92.06	` '
4851	103	0404 E S 0408 E 0408 E S 0011 S 0367 E S 0399 H	OIC Infr OIC School State Plantandlood	rastructural Develo 19,62.00 1,60.14 emes 6,47.20 - n Normal m Industries 2,75.00 - m Development C	pment, Kashmir 21,22.14 6,47.20	44,92.06 24,18.48	(+)17,71.28
4851	103	0404 E S 0408 E C S 0011 S 0367 E	OIC Infr OIC School State Plantandlood	rastructural Develo 19,62.00 1,60.14 emes 6,47.20 - n Normal m Industries 2,75.00	pment, Kashmir 21,22.14 6,47.20	44,92.06 24,18.48	(+)17,71.28

12. Significant saving occurred mainly under the following Heads/Schemes; reasons for which were not communicated.

Head	not communio	cated.		Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	0 ( /
				(₹ in ]	Lakh)	
4851	104	0011	State Plan Normal			
		0363	Handicraft Industries			
			O 4,40.40			
			S -	4,40.40	2,55.96	(-)1,84.44
		0383	Handicrafts Corporation Industr	<del>y</del>		
			O 1,50.00	1.50.00	40.00	()1.02.00
			S -	1,50.00	48.00	(-)1,02.00
4851	105	0011	State Plan Normal			
		0365	Assistance to Khadi & Village Ir	ndustries		
			O 72.20			
			S -	72.20	66.63	(-)5.57
		2196	E.D.I			
		2190	O 5,30.00			
			S -	5,30.00	0.15	(-)5,29.85
6885	01 800	0099	General	3,50.00	0.13	( )3,23.03
		1211	Assistance to Public Sector Unit	S		
			O 19,12.90			
			S -	19,12.90	13,30.86	(-)5,82.04
13.	0		sion has remained un-utilized th		ar in respect	of following
Head	Heads/Scheii	ies; reas	sons for which were not commun	iicated.		Total
Treati						Grant/
						(₹ in Lakh)
4851	101	0011	State Plan Normal			, ,
		2269	DIC Infrastructural Developme	ent/Director		19,00.0
			Industries, Jammu			0
		2271	DIC Schemes/Director Industr	ies, Jammu		16,28.5
						0

Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation
					(₹ in Lakh)
4852	02	190	0011	State Plan Normal	
			0711	Investment in SIDCO	3,70.00
			1224	SICOP	1,00.00
4853	01	190	0011	State Plan Normal	
			0377	J&K Mineral Limited	1,40.00
			0977	Geology and Mining	2,91.00

14. Expenditure under the following Heads/Schemes was incurred without budgetary provision; reasons for which were not communicated.

Head			Actual Expenditure
			(₹ in Lakh)
4851	102	0011 State Plan Normal 0405 DIC Schemes S. S	78.61
		0408 DIC Schemes	2,81.72
		0812 Direction Office Industries	68.20
4851	104	0011 State Plan Normal	
		1739 Construction of Emporium Building	5.87
4851	190	0011 State Plan Normal	
		0399 Investment in J & K State Handloom Development Corporation Ltd.	5,11.25
		1224 SICOP	25.00
		0711 Investment in SIDCO	11,46.00
4853 0	1 004	0011 State Plan Normal	
		0977 Geology and Mining	2.91
4853 0	1 800	0011 State Plan Normal	
		0977 Geology and Mining	1,24.31

### **GRANT NO. 12 – AGRICULTURE DEPARTMENT**

•	OR HEADS									
2029	Land Revenue									
2236	Nutrition									
2250	Other Social Services									
2401	Crop Husbandry									
2402	Soil and Water Conservation									
2403	Animal Husbandry									
2415	Agricultural Research and Education									
2425	Co-operation									
2435	Other Agricultural Programmes									
2705	Command Area Development									
2851	Village and Small Industries									
4250	Capital Outlay on Other Social Services									
4401	Capital Outlay on Crop Husbandry									
4402	Capital Outlay on Soil and Water Conser	rvation								
4415	Capital Outlay on Agricultural Research	and Education								
4425	Capital Outlay on Co-operation									
4705	Capital Outlay on Command Area Deve	lopment								
4851	Capital Outlay on Village and Small Indu	astries								
		Total Grant/	Actual	Excess (+)						
		Appropriation	Expenditure	Saving (-)						
		11 1	(₹ in thousand)	0 ( /						
D			,							
Rever										
Voted	-									
Origin	4,00,25,07									
		4,00,25,07	3,65,51,34*	(-)34,73,73						
Supple	ementary -									
Amou	nt surrendered during the year			•••						
Capit	al:									
Voted	-									
Origin	riginal 1,82,96,84									
O	2,28,91,37 1,69,34,99 (-)59,56,38									
Supple	pplementary 45,94,53									
	nt surrendered during the year									
				•••						

<sup>\*</sup>Excludes ₹ 3.31 lakh (prior to 2009-10) spent from out of advance from Contingency fund but not recouped to the fund by debit to Major Head 2401-Crop Husbandary till the close of the year.

#### Notes and Comments:

#### **Revenue Section**

1. Original provision of ₹4,00,25.07 lakh proved excessive in view of the final saving of ₹ 34,73.73 lakh. Saving to the tune of ₹ 17,19.71 lakh occurred during the last year also. No portion of the final saving was anticipated and surrendered.

2. Significant saving occurred under the following Heads; reasons thereof were not communicated. Total Grant/ Actual Saving (-) Head Expenditure Appropriation (₹ in Lakh) 2029 800 0099 General 0067 Rakhs and Farms, Kashmir О 1,45.74 S 1,45.74 (-)28.641,17.10 2236 02 0099 General 800 0063 Community Canning and Fruit preservation Centre, Jammu О 1,20.78 S 1,20.78 83.56 (-)37.22001 0099 General 2401 0035 Superintendence (Kashmir) O 61.02 S 61.02 51.94 (-)9.080231 Agriculture Tehsil Development Services (Jammu) 5,93.04 S 5,93.04 4,60.72 (-)1,32.322401 103 0099 General 0019 Seed Multiplication Farm (Kashmir) O 1,02.75 1,02.75 83.91 (-)18.842180 Improvement of Existing Farms О 1,11.80 S 98.03 1,11.80 (-)13.77

Head					Actual Expenditure n Lakh)	Saving (-)
2401	105	0099	General			
		0045	Development of Local Ma (Kashmir)	nurial Resources		
			O 1,08.03			
			S -	1,08.03	99.74	(-)8.29
2401	107	0099	General			
		0458	Plant protection service (K	Cashmir)		
			O 12,38.22			
			S -	12,38.22	9,75.22	(-)2,63.00
		0995	Plant protection service (Ja	ammu)		
			O 2,28.14	,		
			S -	2,28.14	1,89.49	(-) 38.65
2401	108	0099	General			
		0080	Potato Development Sche	mes (Jammu)		
			O 1,11.75			
			S -	1,11.75	74.80	(-)36.95
		0082	Potato Development Sche	mes (Kashmir)		
			O 1,48.90			
			S -	1,48.90	1,00.57	(-)48.33
		0084	Development of Zeera Cu	ltivation( Jammu)		
			O 14.15			
			S -	14.15	8.66	(-)5.49
		1431	Floriculture Development	(Kashmir)		
			O 85.04			
			S -	85.04	73.13	(-)11.91
2401	109	0099	General			
		0062	Information Farm Radio S	Services (Kashmir)		
			O 64.40			
			S -	64.40	29.04	(-)35.36

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation (₹	Actual Expenditure in Lakh)	Saving (-)
2401	109	0099	General			
		1435	Training & Visits NAF	EP (Jammu)		
			O 27,91.67			
			S -	27,91.67	25,10.84	(-)2,80.83
		1442	Information Farm Rad	lio Services (Jammu)		
			O 66.15			
			S -	66.15	46.01	(-)20.14
		2191	Agriculture Extension	& Training (Kashmir)		
			O 31.76			
0.104		0000	S -	31.76	17.00	(-)14.76
2401	111	0099	General			
		0058	Planning Cell in Agricu (Kashmir)	ulture Direction Office,		
			O 10.44			
			S -	10.44	4.85	(-)5.59
2401	113	0099	General			
		0054	Improved Agriculture	Implements		
			O 1,87.11			
			S -	1,87.11	1,04.02	(-)83.09
		0233	Bio Gas Developmen	t		
			O 64.82			
			S -	64.82	55.29	(-)9.53
		0356	Improved Agriculture	Implements (Jammu)		
			O 76.76	1 0 /		
			S -	76.76	62.81	(-) 13.95
2401	119	0099	General	70.70	02.01	(-) 13.93
		0020	Development of Waln purposes (Kashmir)	ut production for export		
			O 46.37			
			S -	46.37	14.16	(-)32.21

Head						Actual Expenditure in Lakh)	Saving (-)	
2401	119	0099	General					
		0022	Horticulture Infor Services (Kashmir		olication			
			O 27.	06				
			S	-	27.06	10.41	(-)16.65	
		0030	Intensive Fruit Pr (Kashmir)	oduction Prog	gramme			
			O 5,63.	98				
			S	-	5,63.98	1,08.62	(-)4,55.36	
		0036	District Offices (	Kashmir)				
			O 1,94.	68				
			S	-	1,94.68	25.56	(-)1,69.12	
			Superintendence (Divisional Level) Kashmir					
			O 60.	70				
			S	-	60.70	10.53	(-)50.17	
		0044	Direction Jammu					
			O 25.	02				
			S	-	25.02	16.60	(-)8.42	
		0048	Development of v	_	shmir Division)			
			O 3,93.	39				
		0050	S	- 1.1 or	3,93.39	3,18.07	(-)75.32	
		0050	Development of vO 2,88.	_	nmu Division )			
			S 2,00.	<i>Z</i> .1	2,88.21	2,53.52	(-)34.69	
		0096	Development of I & Dry Land Area		•	2,33.32	(-)34.09	
			O 4,91.					
			S	-	4,91.50	80.96	(-)4,10.54	

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure in Lakh)	Saving (-)	
2401	119	0099	General				
		0100	Plant Protection Services, Kash	mir.			
			O 2,73.23				
			S -	2,73.23	56.82	(-)2,16.41	
		0234	Establishment of Veg. Farm & Gardening Agriculture, Kashmi				
			O 27.11				
			S -	27.11	3.64	(-)23.47	
		0244	Direction and Administration O 10,98.92				
			S -	10,98.92	8,51.61	(-)2,47.31	
		1255	Intensive Agriculture Crash Pro O 45.03	gramme			
			S -	45.03	25.88	(-)19.15	
		1434	Training & Visits( NAEP), Kashmir O 33,41.30				
			S -	33,41.30	27,67.77	(-)5,73.53	
		1481	Improvement of vegetable prog	· ·	27,07.77	()5,75.55	
		1101	O 11,28.14	rannie, janniu			
			S -	11,28.14	10,88.98	(-)39.16	
		1482	Maintenance of Departmental ( Nurseries (Kashmir)	Orchards and			
			O 4,24.39				
			S -	4,24.39	3,01.92	(-)1,22.47	
		2249	Maintenance of Departmental C	•	,	(, ,	
		2217	Nurseries, Jammu	oremaid and			
			O 2,05.45				
			S -	2,05.45	1,39.34	(-)66.11	
2401	800	0011	State Plan Normal				
		1483	Agriculture, Jammu				
			O 5,02.45				
			S -	5,02.45	3,59.45	(-)1,43.00	

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation (₹	Actual Expenditure in Lakh)	Saving (-)			
2401	800	0011	State Plan Normal						
		1484	Agriculture, Kashmir						
			O 3,04.77						
			S -	3,04.77	2.89	(-)3,01.88			
2402	101	0099	General						
		0016	Soil Survey, Kashmir						
			O 4,30.41						
			S -	4,30.41	4,03.53	(-)26.88			
		0134	Soil Survey and Testing Lab	ooratory, Kashmir					
			O 84.57	,					
			S -	84.57	50.29	(-) 34.28			
		1489	Soil Survey Testing Laborat			()			
			O 1,01.11	373					
			S -	1,01.11	93.47	(-) 7.64			
2402	103	0099	General	1,01111	23.17	() /			
		0008	Dry Land Development Pro	ogramme					
			O 30.30						
			S -	30.30	19.81	(-)10.49			
2403	107	0099	General			()			
		0124	Fodder and Feed Developm	nent ( Agriculture)					
			Director Agriculture, Kashi						
			O 1,41.69						
			S -	1,41.69	1,22.61	(-)19.08			
2415 01	004	0099	General			,			
		0123	Agriculture Research Unit (	Jammu)					
			O 68.61						
			S -	68.61	62.55	(-)6.06			
2415 80	120	0099	General			.,			
		0060	SKUAST Jammu						
			O 28,02.00						
			S -	28,02.00	25,37.00	(-)2,65.00			
				- ,	,	() )			

Head				Actual Expenditure in Lakh)	Saving (-)
2425	001 009	) General	(	,	
	041	<sup>7</sup> Superintendence			
		O 13,90.00			
		S -	13,90.00	6,03.62	(-)7,86.38
2425	101 009	) General			
	149	3 Audit of Co-operatives			
		O 5,35.00			
		S -	5,35.00	3,16.71	(-)2,18.29
2425	800 001	State Plan Normal	,	•	( ) ,
	024	Direction and Administrati	on		
		O 50.00			
		S -	50.00	29.09	(-)20.91
2435 01	101 009	) General			.,
	061	2 Horticulture Planning and	Marketing		
		O 9,80.57			
		S -	9,80.57	9,44.31	(-)36.26
2435 01	102 009	) General			.,
	062	Seed Certificate Scheme in	cluding		
		Law Enforcement, Kashmi	ir		
		O 1,99.43			
		S -	1,99.43	1,70.93	(-)28.50
2435 01	800 009	) General			
	034	Seed Certificate Scheme in	cluding		
		Law Enforcement, Jammu			
		O 1,52.35			
		S -	1,52.35	1,41.06	(-)11.29
2705	602 009	) General			
	011	<ul><li>Directorate of Command A Kashmir</li></ul>	Area Development,		
		O 3,10.45			
		S -	3,10.45	2,64.56	(-)45.89

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation (₹	Actual Expenditure in Lakh)	Saving (-)
2705	603	0099 0095	General Directorate of Comma Jammu	·	,	
			O 11,68.04			
			S -	11,68.04	10,43.42	(-)1,24.62
2705	800	0099	General			
		0050		tables (Jammu Division)		
			O 1,26.46	4.07.47		()40.00
		0000	S -	1,26.46	1,14.17	(-)12.29
2851	004	0099	General			
		0104	Mushroom, Kashmir			
			O 2,09.33			
			S -	2,09.33	1,83.95	(-)25.38
		1506	Indo Dutch Mushroon	n Development Project		
			O 26.17			
			S -	26.17	15.78	(-)10.39
2851	102	0099	General			
		0053	Development of Apicu	alture (Jammu Division)		
			O 3,07.78			
			S -	3,07.78	2,25.33	(-)82.45
		0091	Development of Agric	ulture (Kashmir Division)		
			O 2,30.94			
			S -	2,30.94	1,85.33	(-)45.61
2851	107	0099	General			
		0336	Additional Director Se	riculture (Jammu)		
			O 16,43.76			
			S -	16,43.76	15,10.88	(-)1,32.88
		0337	Additional Director Se	ericulture (Kashmir)		
			O 23,50.69	(11111111111111111111111111111111111111		
			S -	23,50.69	20,35.32	(-)3,15.37

3. Saving was counterbalanced by the excess in respect of the following Heads; reasons for which have not been communicated.

Head	nave not b	cen com	mumeated.	•	Total Grant/	Actual	Excess(+)
					Appropriation	•	
					(₹	in Lakh)	
2250	800	0099 0061	General	Agriculture (Kash	mir)		
		0001	O	34.32	11111)		
			S	-	34.32	35.84	(+)1.52
2401	001	0099	General				( )-10-
	0 0 -	0027		ıre Tehsil Develop r)	ment Services		
			Ò	5,21.84			
			S	-	5,21.84	5,40.42	(+)18.58
		0039	Director	of Agriculture (Jan	mmu)		. ,
			О	5,15.00			
			S	-	5,15.00	7,18.92	(+)2,03.92
		0043	Director	of Agriculture (Ka	ashmir)		
			О	5,96.48			
			S	-	5,96.48	8,27.25	(+)2,30.77
2401	103	0099	General				
		0015	Seed Mu	ltiplication Farm (	Jammu)		
			Ο	9.07			
			S	-	9.07	22.08	(+)13.01
2401	109	0099	General				
		0068	Agricultu	are Extension and	Training (Jammu)		
			О	3.79			
			S	-	3.79	7.36	(+)3.57
		0181	Educatio	on and Training			
			О	48.27			
			S	-	48.27	61.96	(+)13.69

Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess(+)	
					(₹	in Lakh)		
2401	119	0099 2088	General Director F O	Horticulture, Jammu 7,71.81				
		2192	for Expo	- nent of Walnut Produ rt Purposes, Jammu	7,71.81	8,73.35	(+)1,01.54	
			О	24.50				
			S	-	24.50	50.87	(+)26.37	
		2201		Horticulture Information & Publication Services, Jammu				
			O	8.18				
			S	-	8.18	17.35	(+)9.17	
		2248	Intensive Fruit Production Programme, Jammu					
			O	1,92.63				
			S	-	1,92.63	4,16.12	(+)2,23.49	
		2252	Superinte	ndence, Divisional L	evel, Jammu			
			O	78.19				
			S	-	78.19	98.89	(+)20.70	
		2254	Development of Horticulture in Kandi, Karewa & Dry Land Areas, Jammu					
			O	3,58.02				
			S	-	3,58.02	4,68.81	(+)1,10.79	
		2255	Plant Pro	tection Services, Jam	mu			
			O	1,41.81				
			S	-	1,41.81	1,74.20	(+)32.39	
		2257	District C	Offices, Jammu				
			О	1,84.17.				
			S	-	1,84.17	1,97.78	(+)13.61	

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess(+)
					(₹ in Lakh)	
2401	800		General			
		0013	Soil Testing Laborat O 23.73	ory		
			S -	23.73	32.34	(±) <b>9</b> 61
		0233	Bio Gas Developme		32.34	(+)8.61
		0233	O 44.59	.iii		
			S -	44.59	56.69	(+)12.10
2402	101	0099	General			( )==== ::
			Soil Survey, Jammu			
			O 24.78			
			S -	24.78	42.58	(+)17.80
	102	0010				( )
		0020	O 4,95.52	,		
			S -	4,95.52	5,29.89	(+)34.37
2403	107	0099	General	.,	-,	( )= 110 !
				elopment, Jammu Division		
			O 66.19	r <del>,</del> j		
			S -	66.19	67.44	(+)1.25
2415 80	120	0099	General	00127		( )=125
		0040	SKUAST Kashmir			
		00.0	O 54,44.00			
			S -	54,44.00	55,58.00	(+)1,14.00
2425	001	0099	General	,,	22,23.33	( )-,
2.120	001		Direction and Admi	nistration		
		ÿ <b>_</b>	O 3,12.43			
			S -	3,12.43	8,16.78	(+)5,04.35
2851	004	0099	General	5,1 <b>2</b> 1 /6	3,23773	( ) , , , , , , ,
		0093	Research on Mushro	oom (Jammu)		
			O 1,16.64	,		
			S -	1,16.64	1,39.49	(+)22.85

4. Entire provision under the following Heads remained unutilized throughout the year; reasons for which were not communicated

	wni	cn were	e not co	ommunicated	
Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation
					(₹ in Lakh)
2401		119	0099	1485 NAEP	27.10
2401		800	0099	0014 Soil Survey, Jammu.	52.63
2401		001	0099	0031 Superintendence, Jammu	1,20.09
2415	80	120	0011	0060 SKUAST, Jammu	10.00
2705		603	0031	0125 Command Area Development	10.00
5.	_	enditur commi		r the following Heads was made without budget provision; reasons following Heads was made without budget provision; reasons fo	or which were
Head					Actual Expenditure
					(₹ in Lakh)
2236	80	001	0011	State Plan Normal	,
			0063	Community Canning & Fruit Preservation Centre, Jammu.	3.23
2236	80	800	0099	General	
2401		001	1839 0099	Applied Nutrition Plan General	33.28
			1255	Intensive Agriculture Crash Programme	18.70
			2249	Maintenance of Departmental Orchard & Nurseries, Jammu	1,00.29
2401		001	0011	State Plan Normal	
			0039	Director Agriculture Jammu	1,63.04
			0027	Agriculture Tehsil Development Services, Kashmir	2,49.89
2401		103	0011	State Plan Normal	
			0015	Seed Multiplication Farm Jammu	77.32
			0156	Seed Processing Unit, Jammu	1.96
			2180	Improvement of Existing Farms	2.52
2401		107	0011	State Plan Normal	
			0995	Plant Protection Services, Jammu	1.77

Head				Actual Expenditure
				(₹ in Lakh)
2401	108	0011	State Plan Normal	
		0080	Potato Development Schemes, Jammu	17.01
		1432	Floriculture Development, Jammu	5.40
2401	109	0011	State Plan Normal	
		0181	Education & Training	1.41
		1435	Training & Visits NAEP, Jammu	6.06
2401	113	0011	State Plan Normal	
		0356	Improved Agriculture Implements Jammu	1.88
2401	119	0011	State Plan Normal	
		0244	Direction & Administration	41.10
		2088	Director Horticulture, Jammu	98.79
		1479	Development of Hilly Areas	12.04
		0050	Development of Veg Jammu	2.48
		0173	Re-Plantation of Old & Unproductive Orchard through High Density Plantation	7.30
2401	800	0099	General	
		1069	Improvement of Agriculture Statistics	1.17
		2180	Improvement of Existing Farms	47.41
2401	800	0011	State Plan Normal	
		0013	Soil Testing Laboratory	6.69
		0203	Mushroom Cultivation	1.07
		1597	Strengthening of District Organisation	2.80
		2180	Improvement of Existing Farms	29.13
		0233	Bio-Gas Development	5.61
		0053	Development of Apiculture(Jammu Division)	1.37

## 100

Head			Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)
2401	800	0031 Centrally Sponsored Schemes	
		0216 Agriculture Census. (100% CSS)	42.03
		1587 Macro Management on Agriculture	2,00.84
		1516 Improvement of Crop Statistics	3.06
		1750 Works Component	17.43
2402	001	0099 General	
		1443 Directorate of Soil Conservation	74.40
2402	102	0011 State Plan Normal	
		0010 Soil Conservation Scheme (Jammu Division)	35.33
2402	103	0011 State Plan Normal	
		0008 Dry Land Development Programme	5.64
2402	800	0011 State Plan Normal	
		1490 Agriculture Land Kashmir	38.21
2403	107	0011 State Plan Normal	
		0002 Fodder & Feed Development (Jammu Division)	3.08
2435	800	0011 State Plan Normal	
		0345 Seed Certificate Scheme including Law Enforcement, Jammu	10.00
2705	602	<ul><li>0011 State Plan Normal</li><li>0116 Directorate of Command Area</li><li>Development, Kashmir</li></ul>	4.47
2705	603	0011 State Plan Normal 0095 Directorate of Command Area Development, Jammu	7.35
2705	800	0099 General	
		0008 Dry Land Development Programme	1.06
2705	800	0011 State Plan Normal	
		0050 Development of Veg. Jammu Division	2.15
		0008 Dry Land Development Programme	1.61

Head			Actual Expenditure
			(₹ in Lakh)
2851	004	0011 State Plan Normal	
		0093 Research on Mushroom, Jammu	17.54
		0104 Research on Mushroom	1.92
2851	102	0099 General	
		0336 Additional Director Sericulture, Jammu	7.80
2851	102	0011 State Plan Normal	
		0053 Development of Apiculture, (Jammu Division)	8.35
2851	104	0099 General	
		0805 Direction and Administration Handicrafts and Subordinate Offices	7.52

### **Capital Section**

- 6 Supplementary Grant of ₹ 45,94.53 lakh proved unjustified as the expenditure did not come even upto the level of the Original Grant of ₹ 1,82,96.84 lakh resulting in overall saving of ₹ 59,56.38 lakh which was neither anticipated nor surrendered.
- 7. Significant Saving occurred under the following Heads; reasons thereof were not communicated to Audit.

Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving(-)
					(	₹ in Lakh)	
4401	103	0099	General			,	
		0081	Purchase o	f Seeds Jammu			
			О	4,85.00			
			S	-	4,85.00	13.82	(-)4,71.18
4401	104	0099	General				
		0102	Agriculture	Farms, Kashmir			
			O	1,57.89			
			S	-	1,57.89	1,52.35	(-)5.54
4401	105	0099	General		,	,	
		0232	District Ag	riculture, Jammu			
			0	85.00			
			S	-	85.00	72.15	(-)12.85

102

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving(-)
					(₹ in Lakh)	
4401	800	0011 0039	State Plan Normal Director Agriculture, Jammu O 4,50.00	ı	,	
			S -	4,50.00	3,55.38	(-)94.62
		0222	Horticulture Construction P Kashmir		,	,
			O 3,02.32			
			S -	3,02.32	1,11.16	(-)1,91.16
		0612	Horticulture Planning & Mar	rketing		
			O 8,00.00			
			S 3,89.53	11,89.53	6,53.91	(-)5,35.62
		2303	Horticulture Construction P.	rogramme, Jammu		
			O 1,90.00			
			S -	1,90.00	1.66	(-)1,88.34
4401	800	0031 1587	Centrally Sponsored Scheme Macro Management on Agri			
			O 40,00.00			
			S -	40,00.00	17.08	(-)39,82.92
4402	102		State Plan Normal			
		0251	Soil Conservation Jammu			
			O 30.00	20.00	10.00	()40.04
4415 80	277	0011 0032	S - State Plan Normal Agriculture University Jamm	30.00	10.99	(-)19.01
			O 29,00.00			
			S -	29,00.00	9,30.00	(-)19,70.00
4705	800	0031 0125	Centrally Sponsored Scheme Command Area Developme			
			O 14,10.00			
			S -	14,10.00	5,84.93	(-)8,25.07

8. Savings was partly counterbalanced by the excesses under the following Heads; reasons for which have not been intimated.

1121	C HOLD	ccii iiiti	mateu.			
Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess(+)
					(₹ in Lakh)	
4401	103	0099	General		,	
		0327	Purchase of Seeds, Kashmir			
			O 2,02.50			
			S -	2,02.50	3,36.14	(+)1,33.64
4401	104	0099	General	,	,	( ) ,
		0083	Agriculture Farms Jammu			
			O 4,27.63			
			S -	4,27.63	4,50.19	(+)22.56
4401	800	0011		.,	.,	( )==:= 0
		0281	H.P.M.C.			
			O 90.00			
			S -	90.00	1,90.00	(+)1,00.00
4402	102	0011	State Plan Normal			
		0266	Soil Conservation, Kashmir O 35.00			
				25.00	(7.72	(1)20.72
4445 00	077	0011	S -	35.00	67.73	(+)32.73
4415 80	277	0011				
		0056	0	r		
			O 25,00.00	25.00.00	44.55.40	(1)40 55 40
	40.	2011	S -	25,00.00	44,75.18	(+)19,75.18
4705	602	0011				
		0116		. Development Ka	shmir	
			O 6,00.00			
			S -	6,00.00	8,09.30	(+)2,09.30
4851	107		State Plan Normal			
		1202				
			O 3,95.50			
			S -	3,95.50	5,11.28	(+)1,15.78

9. Entire provision in respect of below mentioned Head/ Schemes remained unutilized throughout the year; reasons for which were not communicated.

Head				Total Grant Appropriation
				(₹ in Lakh)
4401	10.	2 0000	General	(VIII Lakii)
4401	10.			40.00
			Director Agriculture, Kashmir.	10.00
4401	800	0011	State Plan Normal	
	_		Director Agriculture, Kashmir	4,46.00
10.	Expend	liture was	incurred without Budgetary provision; reasons thereof were not comm	
Head				Actual Expenditure
				(₹ in Lakh)
4401	01 10	1 001	1 State Plan Normal	
		061	2 Horticulture Planning & Marketing	3,27.24
4401	10	3 003	1 Centrally Sponsored Schemes	
		008	1 Purchase of Seeds, Jammu	1,21.66
		032	7 Purchase of Seeds, Kashmir	5.07
		222	2 Eco Restoration	13,31.20
4401	10	4 001	1 State Plan Normal	
		008.	3 Agriculture Farms, Jammu	2.82
4401	10	7 009	) General	
		009	8 District Horticulture J&K	6.86
4401	11	9 009	9 General	
		224	Maintenance of Departmental Orchards & Nurseries, Jammu	8.49
4401	80	0 001	1 State Plan Normal	
		004	1 State Plan Agriculture, J&K	3,03.36
		004.	Director of Agriculture, Kashmir.	15.86

Head			Actual Expenditure
			(₹ in Lakh)
4401	800	0031 Centrally Sponsored Scheme	
		0061 Director of Agriculture, Kashmir	5,20.93
		0039 Director of Agriculture, Jammu	10.08
4402	800	0011 State Plan Normal	
		1750 Works Component	73.06
4705	602	<ul><li>0031 Centrally Sponsored Scheme</li><li>0116 Directorate of Command Area</li><li>Development, Kashmir</li></ul>	7,72.61
4851	101	0011 State Plan Normal	
		0408 DIC Schemes	6.15

- 11. Against the provision of ₹ 19,00.00 lakh (₹ 4,00.00 lakh Non-Plan and ₹15,00.00 lakh Plan) as provided under Minor Heads 108-Investment in other Cooperative and under 190-Investment in Public Sector & Other Undertakings respectively subordinate to Major Head 4425- Capital Outlay on Co-operative, an amount of ₹12,04.56 lakh was incurred on the Schemes like Special Plan Assistance, J&K Co-operative Bank, Other Investments, Registrar Co-operative, Share Capital Investment in primary Agriculture Co-operative Societies, etc. not contemplated in the Demand for Grants deprived Audit in making comparison of excess/savings Sub- Head wise.
- 12. Though the Grants amounting to ₹42,05.00 lakh (State Plan) were provided through Supplementary Demand for Grants for the schemes "Rashtriya Krishi Vikas Yojna" under Minor head 800 subordinate to Major Head 4401-Capital Outlay on Crop Husbandry yet the expenditure was incurred against the ibid scheme under Minor head 104 & 107 for ₹ 13,19.11 lakh (CSS) and ₹ 4,19.71 lakh (CSS) respectively. Besides, an amount of ₹ 37.49 lakh, ₹ 45.20 lakh & ₹ 89.59 lakh (CSS) was incurred against the said schemes under Major Head 4425-Capital Outlay on Cooperatives, Major Head 4851-Capital Outlay on Village & Small Scale Industries and Major Head 4705-Capital Outlay on Command Area Development without the Budgetary provisions; reasons thereof were not communicated.
- 13. Against total estimated recovery of ₹ 9,26.54 lakh, an amount of ₹ 3,32.92 lakh only was recovered; reasons for less recovery have not been intimated.

### GRANT NO. 13 – ANIMAL HUSBANDRY DEPARTMENT

•	<b>HEADS</b> .nimal Husb	oandry			
		ay on Animal Husbandry			
1103		y on minut muobandiy	Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in thousand)	Excess (+) Saving (-)
Revenue	:			(111 1110 11011111)	
Voted-					
Original		2,20,24,08			
O			2,20,24,08	2,03,58,63	(-)16,65,45
Suppleme	entary	-			
Amount	surrendered	l during the year			
Capital:		,			
Voted-					
Original		24,62,90			
0 1			24,62,90	15,75,88	(-) 8,87,02
Supplem	•	<del>-</del>			
		l during the year			•••
Notes an	d Comment	ts:			
			ue Section		
1.		provision of ₹ 2,20,24.08 lakh portion of final saving of ₹16,6			
2.		t Saving occurred under the f			
	communic		_		
Head			Total Grant/ Appropriation		Saving (-)
			11 1	•	
2403	001 0	0099 General		(₹ in Lakh)	
2103		0195 Sheep Husbandry, Jammu	1		
		O 10,09.13			
		S -	10,09.3	13 9,91.70	(-)17.43
	2	2062 Directorate of Animal Hu	isbandry, Jammu		
		O 23,75.33	22.75	22 22 20 04	()05.40
		S -	23,75.3	33 22,89.84	(-)85.49

Head			Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
			(₹ ir	n Lakh)	
2403	001	0011 State Plan Normal 0195 Sheep Husbandry, Jammu O 20.00 S -	20.00	3.86	(-)16.14
2403	101	0099 General 0155 Hospitals and Dispensaries/ Director Animal Husbandry, Kashm O 23,71.41		3.00	()10.11
		S - 2216 Hospitals and Dispensaries/ Director Animal Husbandry, Kashn O 17,57.91	23,71.41 nir	21,75.85	(-)1,95.56
2403	102	S - 0099 General 0140 Cattle and Buffalo Development/	17,57.91	14,72.58	(-)2,85.33
		Director Animal Husbandry, Kashm O 20,19.72 S -	nir 20,19.72	14,15.32	(-)6,04.40
		2219 Cattle and Buffalo Development/D Animal Husbandry, Jammu O 17,36.25	•	, 212	(7-3)
2403	103	S - 0099 General	17,36.25	14,75.80	(-)2,60.45
		0119 Poultry Development Schemes/Dire Animal Husbandry, Kashmir O 9,02.29	ector		
		S - 2220 Poultry Development Schemes/Dire Animal Husbandry, Jammu O 5,37.71	9,02.29 ector	6,73.66	(-)2,28.63
2403	104	S -	5,37.71	5,07.19	(-)30.52
		O 39.75			
		S -	39.75	29.64	(-)10.11

Head			Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
			(₹	in Lakh)	
2403 104	0099	General	`	,	
	0128	Transit Camp	Migratory Breeding		
		O 58.26			
		S -	58.26	30.09	(-)28.17
	0148	Sheep Breedin	g Farm, Dachigam		
		O 57.11			
		S -	57.11	49.75	(-)7.36
	0150	Intensive Shee	ep Development in Farmers Flock		
		O 82.62			
		S -	82.62	55.44	(-)27.18
	0151	Sheep Breedin	g Farm, Zowara/Pulwama		
		O 59.94			
		S -	59.94	37.61	(-)22.33
	0152	-	g Farm, Banthal, Reasi Panthal		
		O 99.32			
	0.50	S -	99.32	76.29	(-)23.03
	0158		g and Wool Grading and		
		Kashmir	irector Sheep Husbandry,		
		O 81.66			
		S -	81.66	57.94	(-)23.72
	0197		d Consolidation of		
			Breeding Farm/ Director Sheep		
		Husbandry, K	Lashmir		
		O 84.32 S -	84.32	62.98	(-)21.34
	0198	ě .	of Muttonous Zone/ Director	02.70	(-)21.5+
	V = F V	Sheep Husban			
		O 1,17.05	•		
		S -	1,17.05	99.62	(-)17.43
	0000		C T		
	0202		of Existing Sheep breeding		
	0202		of Existing Sheep breeding or Sheep Husbandry, Kashmir		

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation (₹ i	Actual Expenditure n Lakh)	Saving (-)
2403	104	0099	General	(1.1		
			Training of Technical Personnel / Sheep Husbandry, Kashmir	Director		
			O 18.83	40.03	6.04	()11 00
		0647	S - Strengthening of Admn. Machiner	18.83	6.91	(-)11.92
			O 38.04	20.04	24 74	()(22
		0664	S - Establishment of two noit for Misma	38.04	31.71	(-)6.33
		0004	Establishment of transit for Migra Sheep Husbandry, Kashmir O 12.83	tory breeders/ L	offector .	
			S -	12.83	6.83	(-)6.00
		0672	Supervisory Organisation O 32.55			
			S -	32.55	22.25	(-)10.30
		0674	Statistical Cell / Director Sheep H O 22.98	usbandry, Kashn	nir	
			S -	22.98	1.70	(-)21.28
		0687	Improvement of Grass Land / D Husbandry, Kashmir	irector Sheep		
			O 16.14			
			S -	16.14	11.02	(-)5.12
		0731	Ramboulet Breeding / Director Sl Husbandry, Kashmir	neep		
			O 73.90			
			S -	73.90	64.75	(-)9.15
		0800	Opening of Sheep and Wool Deve Centre/ Director Sheep Husbands O 2,19.79	*		
			S -	2,19.79	1,69.40	(-)50.39
		0803	Sheep Breeding Farm, Duksam O 2,62.35	,	,	· ·
			S -	2,62.35	1,40.18	(-)1,22.17
		0813	Establishment of New Sheep Bree (Balnoi) O 70.23		,	(, ,
			S -	70.23	13.59	(-)56.64
				10.23	10.07	( )30.01

Head			Total Grant/ Appropriation E ∕₹ in	Actual Expenditure Lakh)	Saving (-)
2403	104	0099 General 0827 Establishment of Intensiv Block/ Director Sheep H	re Sheep Development		
		O 4,11.35 S -	4,11.35	3,26.12	(-)85.23
		0829 Disease Investigation She Sheep Husbandry, Kashm O 1,39.97			
		S - 0832 Establishment of Large S	1,39.97	1,02.19	(-)37.78
		O 20.07			
		S - 0843 Establishment of Expansi Centres Sheep & Wool ex Director Sheep Husbandr	tension Centre/	14.85	(-)5.22
		O 2,16.68	246.60	1.50.71	()5(07
		S - 0864 District Clinical Laborato O 39.62	2,16.68 ry	1,59.71	(-)56.97
		S - 1178 Intensive Sheep Develop Director Sheep Husbandr		33.70	(-)5.92
		O 3,84.65 S -	3,84.65	3,05.48	(-)79.17
		1464 Development and Research Programme		3,03.10	(-)/7.17
		O 13.81 S -	13.81	3.15	(-)10.66
		1707 Scientific Management an O 4,91.70	nong Breeders		
		S -	4,91.70	4,28.19	(-)63.51

Head		Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
		(₹	in Lakh)	
2403 104 009	9 General		,	
1710	Genetic Improvement of Farm	ns		
	O 1,40.10			
	S -	1,40.10	1,13.38	(-)26.72
2189	Sheep Shearing and Wool Gra Marketing/ Director Sheep Hu	_		
	O 74.84	74.04	T4 00	()02.02
222	S -	74.84	51.82	(-)23.02
222	1 Expansion and Consolidation Breeding Farm / Director She Jammu			
	O 85.16			
	S -	85.16	69.65	(-)15.51
222	<ul> <li>Establishment of Muttonous Z</li> <li>Sheep Husbandry, Jammu</li> <li>O 69.31</li> </ul>	Zone / Director		
	S -	69.31	42.30	(-)27.01
222	4 Strengthening of Existing She Farm/ Director Sheep Husbar	ep Breeding	42.30	(-)27.01
	O 1,38.10	, · · ·		
	S -	1,38.10	1,00.16	(-)37.94
222	<ul><li>5 Training of Technical Personn</li><li>Sheep Husbandry, Jammu</li><li>O 20.90</li></ul>	el / Director		
	S -	20.90	14.08	(-)6.82
222	8 Improvement Grass Land/ Di Husbandry, Jammu O 16.40		11.00	()0.02
	S -	16.40	10.54	(-)5.86
222	9 Ramboulet Breeding / Direct Husbandry, Jammu O 54.01			()2.00
	S -	54.01	43.84	(-)10.17

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
				(₹	in Lakh)	
2403	104	0099	General	· ·	,	
		2232	Opening of Sheep and Woo	ol Development		
			Centre / Director Sheep Hu			
			O 2,27.77	2 . 2		
			S -	2,27.77	2,03.93	(-)23.84
		2233	Establishment of Intensive S	heep Development		
			Block, Jammu			
			O 5,27.76			
			S -	5,27.76	3,97.35	(-)1,30.41
		2234	Disease Investigation Sheep	and Goat /		
			Director Sheep Husbandry,	Jammu		
			O 1,19.17			
			S -	1,19.17	78.27	(-)40.90
		2227	E 11/1 (01 1	W 15		
		2236	Establishment of Sheep and			
			Centres / Director Sheep Hu	asbandry, Jammu		
			O 8,20.88	0.20.00	6.05.00	()4.05.77
		0007	S -	8,20.88	6,25.22	(-)1,95.66
		2237	Establishment of Expansion Centres Sheep and Wool /D			
			Husbandry, Jammu	nector sneep		
			O 1,57.19			
			S -	1,57.19	1,42.43	(-)14.76
		2239	Intensive Sheep Developmen	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	,	( )
			Areas /Director Sheep Husl	bandry, Jammu		
			O 4,25.38			
			S -	4,25.38	3,42.93	(-)82.45
2403	107	0099	General			
		0002	Fodder and Feed Developme	ent (Jammu		
			Division)			
			O 20.49	20.12	2.25	()4040
			S -	20.49	8.39	(-)12.10

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure in Lakh)	Saving (-)
2403	107	0099	General	( •	<u></u>	
2403	107		Feed and Fodder Develop Block	oment Key Village		
			O 38.01			
			S -	38.01	28.29	(-)9.72
2403	109	0099	General			.,
		0861	Training of Technical Personal O 32.45	sonnel ,Kashmir		
			S -	32.45	18.97	(-)13.48
2403	800	0099	General			
		0851	Schemes for the Develope	ment of Specially		
			Backward Areas / Directo Kashmir	r Sheep Husbandry,		
			O 1,20.15			
			S -	1,20.15	61.70	(-)58.45
		2240	Schemes for Developmen Backward Areas / Directo Jammu	• •		
			O 2,63.34			
			S -	2,63.34	2,29.70	(-)33.64
3.			counterbalanced by the exmunicated.	xcess under the following	ing Head/Sche	mes; reasons for
Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess(+)
				(₹	in Lakh)	
2403	001	0099	General	`	,	
		0138	Sheep Husbandry, Kashm	ir		
			O 5,49.32			
			S -	5,49.32	7,47.12	(+)1,97.80
2403	001	0011	State Plan Normal	,	,	· / /
			Sheep Husbandry, Kashm	ir		
			O 20.00			
			S -	20.00	25.16	(+)5.16

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess(+)
				(₹	in Lakh)	
2403	001	0011	State Plan Normal			
		2062	Director Animal Hu	sbandry, Jammu		
			O 20.00			
			S -	20.00	24.83	(+)4.83
		0844	Directorate of Anim Kashmir	al Husbandry Department,		
			O 20.00			
			S _	20.00	31.53	(+)11.53
2403	001	0099	General			
		0844	Kashmir	al Husbandry Department,		
			O 15,29.47	45.00.45	0.6.45.50	(1)44.40.00
0.402	104	0000	S _	15,29.47	26,47.70	(+)11,18.23
2403	104		General	A 1 /D:		
		0/94	Sheep Breeding Farr Sheep Husbandry, K O 21.14	m Anderwan/Director Kashmir		
			S 21.14	21.14	23.44	(+)2.30
		0842	_	eep and Wool Extension	23.77	(1)2.50
		0072		neep Husbandry, Kashmir		
			O 1,54.96	reep risessurer, risessurer		
			S	1,54.96	1,69.53	(+)14.57
		2226	Establishment of tra Sheep Husbandry, Ja	nsit for Migratory Breeders ,		( )=
			O 40.02			
			S _	40.02	47.02	(+)7.00
4.	_		incurred without but communicated.	dgetary provisions under the	following Sche	mes; reasons for
Head						Actual Expenditure
						(₹ in Lakh)
2403	001	0031	Centrally Sponsored Scheme			
		1905	National Project on Programme	Reinderpest Eradication		7.79

Head			Actual Expenditure
			(₹ in Lakh)
2403	001	0031 Centrally Sponsored Scheme	
		2070 Assistance to States for Control of Animal Diseases	1,07.27
		2079 Integrated Diary Development Programme	3.66
		2078 National Project on Reinderpest Eradication Programme 50%	1.43
2403	101	0031 Centrally Sponsored Scheme	
		2297 Rashtriya Krishi Vikas Yojna	3.83
2403	104	0099 General	
		0195 Sheep Husbandry, Jammu	1,71.27
		0695 Directorate of Sheep breeding and Sheep Development, Kashmir	54.81
		0841 Directorate of Sheep breeding and Sheep Development ,Jammu	1.30
		0850 Development of Mutton Sheep Farm, Jammu	1.61
		1857 Development and Research and Expansion Programme, Jammu	8.22
2403	107	0011 State Plan Normal	
		0002 Fodder and Feed development (Jammu Division)	1.12

5. Entire provision of ₹10.00 lakh in respect of Sub-Head 2305-National Projects for Cattle and Buffalo Breeding subordinate to Major Head 2403-Animal Husbandry remained unutilized throughout the year; reasons for which have not been communicated.

### **Capital Section**

- 6. Original provision of ₹ 24,62.90 lakh proved excessive in view of the final saving of ₹ 8,87.02 lakh which was neither anticipated nor surrendered.
- 7. Persistent Saving as detailed below occurred during the last five years; reasons thereof were not communicated.

Year	Total Grant / Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
	(₹	f in Lakh)	
2004-05	991.00	531.95	(-) 459.05
2005-06	985.42	611.25	(-) 374.17

Year	Total Grant / Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
	(₹ in Lakh)	)	
2006-07	13,47.17	6,44.01	(-) 7,03.16
2007-08	12,20.42	7,17.68	(-) 5,02.74
2008-09	17,58.68	9,09.32	(-)8,49.36

- 8. Against the total provision of ₹ 2,94.00 lakh under Minor Head 107-Fodder & Feed Development (Centrally Sponsored Scheme) subordinate to Major Head 4403-Capital Outlay on Animal Husbandry an expenditure of ₹ 4.80 lakh was incurred against Sub-Head 2078-National Project of Pest Eradication Programme thereby resulting in saving of ₹ 2,89.20 lakh; reasons for same have not been communicated.
- 9. Entire provision in respect of he following Centrally Sponsored Schemes remained unutilized throughout the year; reasons thereof have not been communicated.

Head			Total Grant/ Appropriation
			(₹ in Lakh)
4403	104	0031 Centrally Sponsored Scheme	
		1475 System Control Sheep Breeding Programme	1,00.00
		2305 National Projects for Cattle and Buffalo	3,30.00
		Breeding	
		2306 Animal Disease Surveillance	2,78.00

10. The State Government has placed the lumpsum budgetary provision of ₹ 14,60.90 Lakh at the disposal of various Controlling Officers under Major Head 4403- Capital Outlay on Animal Husbandry and out of the same the Subordinate Officers incurred expenditure on different Schemes having no provision in the approved Demand for Grants depriving Audit of making comparison of excess/saving Scheme wise.

### **GRANT NO. 14 – REVENUE DEPARTMENT**

MAJOR HEADS									
2029	9 Land Revenue								
2053	District Administration								
2055	Police								
2070	Other Administrative Services	S							
2235	Social Security and Welfare								
2245	Relief on account of Natural	Calamities							
2250	Other Social Services								
2401	Crop Husbandry								
2506	Land Reforms								
3475	Other General Economic Ser	vices							
4059	Capital Outlay on Public Wor	ks							
4235	Capital Outlay on Social Secu	rity and Welfare	e						
4401	Capital Outlay on Crop Husb	andry							
			Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in thousand)	Excess (+) Saving (-)				
Reven	ue:								
Voted-									
Origina	al	3,99,34,18							
0 1			3,99,34,18	3,84,46,23*	(-)14,87,95				
Supple	mentary	-							
Amou	nt surrendered during the year								
Capita	d:								
Voted-									
Origina	al	1,35,03,50							
_			1 25 02 50	(2,00,02	( ) 7 7 ( ) 4 ( 7				
Supple	mentary	-	1,35,03,50	62,98,83	(-)72,04,67				

<sup>\*</sup>Excludes ₹2.00 lakh (prior to 2009-10) spent from Contingency fund but not recouped to the fund by debit to Major Head 2029-Land Revenue till the close of the year.

### Notes and Comments:

### **Revenue Section**

- 1. Original provision of ₹ 3,99,34.18 lakh proved excessive in view of the final saving of ₹ 14,87.95 lakh. No portion of final saving of ₹ 14,87.95 lakh was anticipated and surrendered.
- 2 Saving in the Grant mainly occurred under the following Heads/Schemes; reasons for which were not communicated.

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
				(₹	in Lakh)	
2029	101	0099	General			
		1058	Collection Charges O 50,59.18 S -	50,59.18	37,82.52	(-)12,76.66
2029	104	0099	General	,	,	()
		1209	Management of Government Es O 1,30.03 S -	1,30.03	63.96	(-)66.07
2053	094	0099	General	1,50.05	03.70	( )00.07
		0700	Sub-Divisional Magistrates O 1,48.34			
			S -	1,48.34	1,18.70	(-)29.64
		1046	Tehsils O 24,60.93			
			S -	24,60.93	22,61.47	(-)1,99.46
		1052	Revenue Training School O 1,04.53			
			S -	1,04.53	92.92	(-)11.61
		1054	Land Acquisition Railways O 24.91			
			S -	24.91	7.58	(-)17.33
		1056	1 1	cial Defence		
			O 1,16.94			
			S -	1,16.94	53.00	(-)63.94

Head Total Grant / Actual S Appropriation Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
2053 094 0099 General	
1077 Land Acquisition Thein Dam Project	
(Reimbursable from Government)	
O 35.20	
S - 35.20 16.27	(-)18.93
2053 101 0099 General	
1048 Divisional Commissioner	
O 5,35.23	
S - 5.35.23 4,54.52	(-)80.71
1051 Financial Commissioner	.,
O 1,69.89	
S - 1,69.89 1,39.97	(-)29.92
2055 001 0099 General	()
1057 Expenditure on Migrants	
(Relief Commissioner Jammu)	
O 6,23.66	
S - 6,23.66 2,96.84	(-)3,26.82
2070 800 0099 General	
0423 Area Development Officer	
O 13.93	
S - 13.93 5.70	(-)8.23
2208 SDM Mahore	· /
O 15.55	
S - 15.55 2.34	(-)13.21
2211 SDM Badnota	( )
O 12.50	
S - 12.50 1.43	(-)11.07
2235 01 001 0099 General	()11.07
1064 Provincial Rehabilitation Office, Jammu	
O 17.35	
S - 17.35 11.72	(-)5.63
2245 80 001 0099 General	( )3.03
1073 Chief Executive Officer	
O 46.69	
S - 46.69 29.91	(-)16.78

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
				(₹	in Lakh)	
2250	800	0099	General			
		1612	Special Officer Auqaf O 87.01 S -	87.01	79.79	()7.22
2401	800	0031 0400	Centrally Sponsored Schemes Agriculture Economics & Statis O 22.00 S -		0.37	(-)7.22 (-)21.63
2506	102	0099	General	22,00	0,57	(-)21.03
		1059	Consolidation of Holdings O 4,39.24			
		2205	S - Settlement Commissioner O 32,41.85	4,39.24	2,17.09	(-)2,22.15
			S -	32,41.85	13,93.21	(-)18,48.64
3.			t was partly counterbalanced by			
	reasons for	which	were not communicated.	T 10 /	A . 1	T (1)
Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation (₹	Actual Expenditure in Lakh)	Excess(+)
2029	103	0099	General	· ·	,	
		1050	Director Land Records O 1,01.74 S -	1,01.74	1,06.51	(+)4.77
2053	093	0099	General	1,011.1	1,00.01	(1)
		1049	Deputy Commissioner O 13,31.36	42.24.24	24.20.40	(1)40,00,42
2053	101	0099 2206	S - General Joint Director Economics and O 73.33	13,31.36 Statistics	24,20.49	(+)10,89.13
			S -	73.33	74.52	(+)1.19

Head				tal Grant/ propriation (₹	Actual Expenditure in Lakh)	Excess(+)
2055	117	0099	General			
		1057	Expenditure on Migrants (Relief Con Jammu) O 75,00.00 S -	75,00.00	79,37.18	(+)4,37.18
2070	800	0099	General			
2235	60 800	1078	Custodian General O 40.07 S - General	40.07	42.77	(+)2.70
		0872	Other Schemes			
2506	102	0099	O 3,41.00 S - General	3,41.00	13,96.17	(+)10,55.17
		0569	Agrarian Reforms O 26,16.12			
			S -	26,16.12	26,71.44	(+)55.32
4.			n respect of the following Sub-Head we not been communicated.	s remained i	unutilized thro	ughout the year;
Head						Total Grant/ Appropriation (₹ in Lakh)
2070	800		General			, ,
2401	800		SDM Bani State Plan Normal			11.92
2401	800	0400	Agriculture Economics and Statistics Centrally Sponsored Scheme			20.00
	220	0748	Timely Reporting Scheme			70.00
		1516	Improvement of Crop Statistics			41.00

5. Expenditure in respect of the following Sub-Heads was incurred without any Budgetary provision; reasons thereof have not been communicated.

Head			Actual Expenditure
			(₹ in Lakh)
2029	001	0099 General	
		0244 Direction and Administration	18.48
2053	094	0011 State Plan Normal	
		0700 Sub-Divisional Magistrates	38.26
		1046 Tehsils	1,13.11
2055	117	0099 General	
		0957 Internal Security	53.21
2070	800	0099 General	
		0244 Direction Administration	9.59
		0700 Sub-Divisional Magistrates	44.29
2401	800	0099 General	
		1069 Improvement of Agriculture Statistics	1.31
2506	800	0099 General	
		0572 Construction of Patwar Khana	15.00
3475	800	0011 State Plan Normal	
		1518 Census of Minor Irrigation Schemes	1.26

6. An expenditure of ₹ 85,17.05 lakh incurred under Major Head 2245- Relief on account of Natural Calamities (Relief on other Relief Measures) stands transferred to Deposit Head which has to bear the expenditure.

### **Capital Section**

- 7. Original Provision of ₹ 1,35,03.50 lakh proved excessive in view of final saving of ₹ 72,04.67lakh. No portion of final saving of ₹ 72,04.67lakh was anticipated and surrendered.
- 8. Entire provision of ₹ 3.50 lakh under Major Head 4401-Capital Outlay on Crop Husbandry remained unutilized throughout the year; reasons for which were not communicated.

9. Saving in the Grant occurred mainly under the following Heads/Schemes; reasons for which were not communicated.

Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
						(₹ in Lakh)	
4059	80	201	0011	State Plan Normal			
			1285	Acquisition of Land O 5,00.00			
4235	01	201	0011	S - State Plan Normal	5,00.00	3,37.37	(-)1,62.63
			2165	Rehabilitation O 1,30,00.00			
				S -	1,30,00.00	59,61.47	(-)70,38.53

### 10. Calamity Relief Fund:-

A separate Calamity Relief Fund under Major Head 8121-General and Other Reserve Fund, 122-Calamity Relief Fund has been constituted by the Government on the basis of the recommendations of 11th Finance Commission with effect from 2000-2001. As per the scheme for constitution and administration of said fund the Government of India shall make contributions of 75% with matching contribution of 25% by the State. Credit to the Fund Account is effected by transfers from the Consolidated Fund of the State under Major Head 2245 – Relief on account of Natural Calamities after making proper provision there against in the Demand for Grants of the respective accounting years.

The following contributions have been made to the fund during the year 2009-10.

	Total	₹ 1,44.36 crore
(ii)	Contribution by the Government of India	₹ 1,08.27 crore
(i)	Contribution by the State Government	₹ 36.09 crore

The details of the fund and Investments during the year 2009-2010 are as under:

Details of the Fund	8235- General and Other Reserve Fund. 112-Calamity Relief Fund -Investment Account	8121-General and Other Reserve Fund. 122- Calamity Relief Fund
	(₹	in Crore)
O.B. as on 1.4.2009	28.35	3,79.02
Receipts during 2009-2010	Nil	1,44.36
Disbursement during 2009-2010	Nil	85.17
Closing Balance as on 31.03.2010	28.35	4,38.21
Details of Investment		
O.B. as on 1.4.2009	10.86	Nil
Investment during 2009-2010	Nil	Nil
Withdrawal from the Fund	Nil	Nil
Closing Balance as on 31.03.2010	10.86	Nil

### GRANT NO. 15 - CONSUMER AFFAIRS AND PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION DEPARTMENT

MAI	OR	HEA	DS
-----	----	-----	----

2408	Food Storage and Warehousing							
3475	5 Other General Economic Services							
4235	Capital Outlay on Social Security and Welfare							
4408	Capital Outlay on Food Storage as	nd Wareho	ousing					
			Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in thousand)	Excess (+) Saving (-)			
Reven	nue:							
Voted	-							
Origin	al	3,97,19						
			3,97,19	5,52,43	(+)1,55,24			
Supple	ementary	-						
Amou	nt surrendered during the year				•••			
Capita	al:							
Voted	-							
Origin	al 10,05	5,96,37						
			11,68,16,90	8,57,28,94	(-)3,10,87,96			
Supple	ementary 1,62	2,20,53						
Amou	Amount surrendered during the year							
Notes	and Comments:							

### **Revenue Section**

1. Original provision of ₹3,97.19 Lakh proved meagre in view of excess of ₹ 1,55.24 lakh. The final excess of ₹1,55.24 lakh requires regularization. Excess occurred during the last three years also as detailed below.

Year	Total Grant/	Actual	Excess (+)
	Appropriation	Expenditure	
		(₹ in Lakh)	
2006-07	2,63.87	3,24.19	(+)60.32
2007-08	3,10.20	3,49.08	(+)38.88
2008-09	3,61.62	4,02.87	(+)41.25

2.	Significant excess has occurred under the following Head; reasons thereof were not communicated.					
Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess (+)
				(₹	in Lakh)	
2408	02 80	0 0099	General		,	
		0942	Strengthening of PDS			
			O 80.74			
			S -	80.74	1,72.72	(+)91.98
3.	Excess w not been		counterbalanced by the sanicated.	ving under the following	g Head; reasons f	for which have
Head				Total Grant/	Actual	Saving(-)
Ticaci				Appropriation	Expenditure	
				(₹	in Lakh)	
3475	10	0099	General			
		2160	Controller, Legal Metrolo	gy		
			O 3,16.45			
			S -	3,16.45		(-)3,12.25
4.	Expenditusion which we		er the following Heads w timated	as incurred without bu	adgetary provisio	on; reasons for
Head						Actual Expenditure
						(₹ in Lakh)
2408	02 80	00 0011	State Plan Normal			(\ III Lakii)
4700	02 00		Strengthening of P. D. S			1,00.00
3475	10		General			1,00.00
5775	10		Controller Weights & Me	asures		2,75.51

### **Capital Section**

5. In the Capital Section, the supplementary provision amounting to ₹ 1,62,20.53 lakh proved injudicious as the annual expenditure did not come even upto the level of original provision of ₹ 10,05,96.37 lakh

6. Significant saving occurred mainly under the following Heads; reasons for which have not been intimated.

	mumated	•		T . 1.C /	A . 1	C : ()
Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
				(₹	in Lakh)	
4235	60 80	0 0099	General		,	
		1153	Kerosene Oil			
			O 5,57.50			
			S -	5,57.50	3,17.82	(-)2,39.68
		1256	Director Consumer and Pu Kashmir	ıblic Distribution,	r	<b>,</b>
			O 51,63.15			
			S -	51,63.15	20,81.19	(-)30,81.96
4408	01 10	0099	General			,,
		0383	Consumer and Public Dist	ribution, Kashmir		
			O 62,77.69			
			S -	62,77.69	56,97.55	(-)5,80.14
		0397	Consumer and Public Distr	ribution, Jammu		
			O 18,97.85			
			S -	18,97.85	15,06.51	(-)3,91.34
		2159	Wheat (Kashmir)			
			O 50,87.26			
			S 16,35.43	67,22.69	65,26.64	(-)1,96.05
		2160	Rice (Kashmir)			
			O 3,18,83.99			
			S 82,72.60	4,01,56.59	3,83,78.40	(-)17,78.19
		2161	Wheat (Jammu)			
			O 1,55,49.46			
			S 22,84.01	1,78,33.47	1,14,35.27	(-)63,98.20
		2162	Rice (Jammu)			
			O 1,25,70.92			
			S 40,28.49	1,65,99.41	1,09,15.55	(-)56,83.86
4408	02 80		State Plan Normal			
		0508	Consumer Affairs and Pub Department	lic Distribution		
			O 1,11.50			
			S -	1,11.50	10.00	(-)1,01.50

7. Excess over the provision occurred mainly under the following Heads; reasons for which have not been intimated

	been intima	ated	•			
Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess (+)
				(₹	in Lakh)	
4235	60 800	0099	General			
		1228	Procurement and Supply o (Sugar) Jammu O 59,39.02	f Essential Commoditi	es	
			S -	59,39.02	75,30.44	(+)15,91.42
4408	01 101	0099	General			
		0372	Transport Handling etc. or	Ladakh Despatches		
			O 4,88.03			
			S -	4,88.03	4,95.19	(+)7.16
8.	-		r the following Heads was	s incurred without bu	dgetary provisio	n; reasons for
	which were	not co	mmunicated			
Head						Actual Expenditure
						(₹ in Lakh)
4408	01 101	0099	General			
		0386	Handling and Transport of	Jammu Paddy		7,93.25
		0011	State Plan Normal			
		0397	Jammu Food & Supplies D	epartment		6.62
4408	01 800	0099	General			
		0397	Other expenditure			6.47
4408	02 800	0031	Centrally Sponsored Schen	nes		
		2245	Consumer Clubs			27.75
9.			under the following Heads to ommunicated.	remained unutilized th	roughout the yea	ır; reasons for
Head						Total Grant/ Appropriation
						(₹ in Lakh)
4408	02 800	0031	Centrally Sponsored Schem	ne		(111120111)
	52 000	0253	Construction of Godowns			1,50,00.00
5475	800	0011	State Plan Normal			, , ,
			Survey and Statistics			70.00
			*			

### GRANT NO. 15 (Concld.)

10. Against the total estimated recoveries of ₹ 1,03,78.12 lakh and ₹ 6,43,98.67 lakh under Major Heads 4235-Capital Outlay on Social Security and Welfare and 4408-Capital Outlay on Food Storage and Warehousing the actual recoveries to the tune of ₹ 94,17.04 lakh and ₹6,72,86.26 lakh respectively were effected resulting in overall excess of ₹ 19,26.52 lakh.

### GRANT NO. 16 -PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

MAJO	OR HEADS				
2059	Public Works				
2216	Housing				
3054	Roads and Bridges				
4059	Capital Outlay on Public Wo	orks			
5054	Capital Outlay on Roads and	l Bridges			
			Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in thousand)	Excess (+) Saving (-)
Rever	nue:				
Voted	-				
Origin	nal	4,76,75,86			
			4,76,75,86	4,68,94,51	(-)7,81,35
Supple	ementary	-			
Amou	nt surrendered during the year	ľ			
Capit	al:				
Voted	=				
Origin	nal	11,85,65,50	12,16,91,86	14,65,23,05	(+)2,48,31,19
Supple	ementary	31,26,36	, , ,	, , ,	
Amou	nt surrendered during the year	ſ			•••
Notes	and Comments:				

### **Revenue Section**

1. Original provision of ₹ 4,76,75.86 lakh proved excessive in view of final saving of ₹ 7,81.35 lakh. No portion of the final saving of ₹7,81.35 lakh was anticipated and surrendered. Saving to the tune of ₹ 30,52.49 lakh occurred during the last year also.

2. Significant saving occurred mainly under the following Schemes; reasons for which were not intimated.

Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
					(₹.	in Lakh)	
2059	80	001	0099	General	`	,	
			1034	Chief Engineer Mechanical Engi			
				Department Jammu with Circle	& Divisional		
				Offices			
				O 14,90.68			
				S -	14,90.68	13,65.12 <sup>(A)</sup>	(-)1,25.56
			1035	Chief Engineer R&B Departmen			
				with Circle & Divisional Offices			
				O 1,23,52.91	4 00 07 04	1 00 10 01 m	()4400 70
				S -	1,23,27.91	1,09,18.21 <sup>(B)</sup>	(-)14,09.70
			1041	R (-)25.00			
			1041	Chief Engineer Mechanical Engi	0		
				Department, Kashmir with Circ Offices	ie & Divisionai		
				Offices O 18,28.91			
				S -	18,28.91	16,38.15©	(-)1,90.76
			1042	Chief Engineer R&B Jammu wit	,	10,50.15	(-)1,70.70
			10 12	Divisional Offices Including Mig			
				O 75,50.16	)*************************************		
				S -	75,50.16	65,07.84	(-)10,42.32
			1044	Stores Procurement Department	*	,	() -,
				O 1,54,37.76			
				S -	1,54,62.76	3,46.55 <sup>(D)</sup>	(-)1,51,16.21
				R 25.00			.,,,,
			1281	Design Directorate			
				O 5,53.22			
				S -	5,53.22	4,28.47	(-)1,24.75
			2181	Prime Minister's Gramin Sadak	Yojana		
				O 34,22.27			
				S -	34,22.27	21,74.22	(-)12,48.05

<sup>(</sup>A)Expenditure is understated by ₹ 35.52 lakh which has appeared under Minor Head 799-Suspense.

<sup>(</sup>B) Expenditure is understated by ₹ 2.28 lakh which has appeared under Minor Head 799-Suspense.

<sup>(</sup>C) Expenditure is understated by ₹ 23.38 lakh which has appeared under Minor Head 799-Suspense.

<sup>(</sup>D) Expenditure is understated by ₹ 1,84,96.36 lakh which has appeared under Minor Head 799-Suspense.

Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
					(₹	in Lakh)	
2216	01	700	0099	General			
			0481	Maintenance			
				O 2,55.00	2.55.00	2.27.00	()10.20
3054	80	001	0099	S - General	2,55.00	2,36.80	(-)18.20
3034	00	001	1027	R&B Department Jammu			
			1027	O 21,96.51			
				S -	21,96.51	19,52.07 <sup>(E)</sup>	(-)2,44.44
3.		~		counterbalanced by the excess ommunicated.	under the followin	ng Heads/Schemes	; reasons for
Head					Total Grant/	Actual	Excess(+)
Ticau					Appropriation _		
					(₹	in Lakh)	
3054	80	001	0099	General			
			1028	R&B Department, Kashmir			
				O 25,88.44			
				S -	25,88.44	27,27.59	(+)1,39.15
4.				r the following Head/Scheme wo	ere incurred withou	at budgetary provis	ions; reasons
Head							Actual Expenditure
							(₹ in Lakh)
3054	80	800	-	Other expenditure			17.25

### **Capital Section**

5. Supplementary Grant of  $\mathbf{\xi}$ 31,26.36 lakh proved inadequate in view of final excess of  $\mathbf{\xi}$  2,48,31.19 lakh. The excess requires regularization.

<sup>(</sup>E) Expenditure is understated by ₹ 24.85 lakh which has appeared under Minor Head 799-Suspense.

6.	Exc	ess occ	curred r	nainly under the following Heac	l/ Schemes; reason	s for which were	not intimated.
Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess(+)
					(₹	in Lakh)	
4059	01	001	0011 1270	State Plan Normal Mechanical Engineering, Jamn O 4,66.50 S -	`	4,93.91	(+)27.41
4059	60	800	0011	State Plan Normal			
			1717	Non Functional Buildings (PW O 30,00.00	VD), Jammu		
			1899	S - Non-Functional Buildings, Ka O 40,00.00	30,00.00 shmir	59,96.77	(+)29,96.77
				S -	40,00.00	1,12,71.41	(+)72,71.41
7.	_	nificant nmunic	_	occurred mainly under the follo	wing Head/Schem	e; reasons for wh	ich were not
Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving(-)
					(₹	in Lakh)	
4059	01	001	0011	State Plan Normal		,	
			1281	Design Directorate O 79.00			
				S -	79.00	60.76	(-)18.24
8.	Lur	nn sum	provis	sion of ₹ 6.80.92.00 lakh placed	at the disposal of (	Chief Engineer R	&B Jammu and

- 8. Lump sum provision of ₹ 6,80,92.00 lakh placed at the disposal of Chief Engineer R&B Jammu and Kashmir under Major Head 4059-Capital outlay on Public Works without giving schematic break-up deprived Audit in making comparison of Excess/Savings as the expenditure was incurred under different Schemes not contemplated in approved Demand for Grants.
- 9. Lumpsum provision of ₹ 1,54,50.00 lakh has been placed by the State Govt. at the disposal of Commissioner/ Secretary to Govt. under sub-head 1718-Reconstruction of Bridges subordinate to Major Head 5054-Capital Outlay on Roads and Bridges. But the expenditure has been incurred under different Schemes not contemplated in the Demand for Grants. This has deprived Audit in making comparison of excess/ saving Sub-Head wise.

- 10. Though the provision of ₹ 35,26.36 lakh and ₹ 2,15.78 lakh has been kept by State Govt. for the sub-head 2181-Prime Minister's Gramin Sadak Yojna and 2116-Prime Minister's Reconstruction Programme respectively subordinate to Major Head 4059-Capital Outlay on Public Works but the expenditure has been incurred under Major Head 5054-Capital Outlay on Roads and Bridges and 4801-Capital Outlay on Power Projects on the basis of sanction issued by Administrative Departments which is in contravention to Financial Rules as per Para 15.6 read with Para 15.4 & 15.5 of J & K Budget Manual. This resulted in un-utilization of Budgetary Grants in respect of above quoted schemes under major Head 4059- Capital Outlay on Public Works. Besides, entire provision of ₹ 15,00.00 lakhs in respect of Sub-Head 1276- Mechanical Engineering Kashmir subordinate to Major Head 4059- Capital Outlay on Public Works remained unutilized throughout the year; reasons for which were not communicated.
- 11. Although no portion of the provision was distinctly earmarked for transfer to Reserve Fund Deposit Account under Major Head 5054- Capital Outlay on Roads and Bridges yet an amount of ₹1,17,42.00 lakh was transferred to the fund account; reasons for which were not communicated.
- 12. As per the list of Major and Minor Heads of Accounts there is a separate Minor Head viz. 799-Suspense subordinate to each Major Head of accounts in each Demand for Grant to accommodate Suspense transactions.
  - In deviation from the normal procedure the provision for suspense transaction was placed under 001-Direction and Administration to each Major Head of accounts in the Demand for Grants, whereas expenditure was booked under 799-Suspense, thereby leading mismatch of figures between the actual and estimates thus depriving the Audit to comment upon these transactions vis-à-vis Budgetary Grants.
- 13. Suspense Transactions: The expenditure in the Grant includes ₹1,85,82.38 lakh under the Head 'Suspense'. The nature of transactions under the Head Suspense and Accounting procedure have been explained in Note 12 of Grant No.5-Ladakh Affairs Department. An analysis of transaction accounted for under the Head in this Grant during 2009-10 together with the Opening and Closing balances is given below.

Particulars/	Opening Balance	Debits	Credits	Closing balance as
Major Head of Account	as on 1 <sup>st</sup> April 2009			on 31st March 2010
		(₹ in I	akh)	
2059-Public Works –				
Purchases	(-)13,48.51	-	-	(-)13,48.51
Stock	72,74.84	1,85,57.53	2,18,57.00	39,75.37

Particulars/ Major Head of Account	Opening Balance as on 1 <sup>st</sup> April 2009	Debits	Credits	Closing balance as on 31st March 2010
		(₹ in I	Lakh)	
2059-Public Works –				
Misc. P.W. Advance	9,03.02	-	-	9,03.02
Workshop Suspense	0.28	-	-	0.28
Total	68,29.63	1,85,57.53	2,18,57.00	35,30.16
2216-Housing-				
Purchases	(-)9.37	-	-	(-)9.37
Stock	61.60	-	-	61.60
Misc. P.W. Advance	0.89	-	-	0.89
Workshop Suspense	(-)2.09	-	-	(-)2.09
Total	51.03	-	-	51.03
3054-Roads and Bridges-				
Purchases	(-)1,17.88	-	-	(-)1,17.88
Stock	(-)2,36.11	24.85	69.91	(-) 2,81.17
Misc. P.W. Advance	1,11.05	-	-	1,11.05
Workshop Suspense	0.01	-	-	0.01
Total	(-) 2,42.93	24.85	69.91	(-) 2,87.99
4059-Capital Outlay on Public W	orks-			
Stock	0.11	-	-	0.11
Total	0.11	-	-	0.11
5054-Capital Outlay on Roads and				
Purchases	1.44	-	-	1.44
Stock	4.63	-	-	4.63
Misc. P.W. Advance	(-)1.00	-	-	(-)1.00
Total	5.07	-	-	5.07

14. Review of Tools and Plant, Establishment charges of the Public Works Department: - The percentage of expenditure on Establishment of Tools and Plant to the Works Outlay in the Public Works Department during 2007-08 to 2009-10 are indicated below (The percentage fixed by the Government in 1955 for supervision charges recoverable for works done for other departments, outside bodies etc. range between 7.5 and 15 for Establishment charges and between 0.5 and 1 for Tools and Plant charges depending on the cost of works).

Year and Head of account		Works Outlay	Establishment charges	Percentage of Establishment charges to Works outlay	Tools and plant charges	Percentage of Tools and Plant Charges to Works outlay
		i ₹)	n Lakh)		(₹ in Lakh)	
2059-Public Works "	A" -					
	2007-08	12,90.3	7 1,59,44.00	1235.61	13,39.12	103.78
	2008-09	16,51.1	1 1,69,59.37	1027.14	74.32	4.50
	2009-10	15,95.4	7 2,18,27.71	1368.11	11.06	0.69
2216-Housing -						
	2007-08	18,12.7	8 14,16.54	78.14	-	-
	2008-09	14,98.9	2 31,38.26	209.37	65.72	4.38
	2009-10	11,09.7	5 25,08.82	226.07	90.67	8.17
3054-Roads and Brid	lges -					
	2007-08	25,79.9	7 24,44.66	94.76	-	-
	2008-09	46,49.8	3 1,36.64	2.94	1.35	0.03
	2009-10	45,89.0	4 1,07.72	2.35	-	-
4059-Capital Outlay	on Public	Works "B"				
	2007-08	1,04,71.9	9 -	-	19.98	0.19
	2008-09	43,71.6	4 87,79.38	200.83	3,11.18	7.12
	2009-10	1,80,75.9	2 21,66.20	11.98	-	-
4216-Capital Outlay	on Housing	)- -				
	2007-08	3,78.7	- 8	-	-	-
	2008-09			-	-	-
	2009-10			-	-	-

Year and Head of account	Works Establishment Outlay charges		Percentage of Establishment charges to Works outlay	Tools and plant charges	Percentage of Tools and Plant Charges to Works outlay	
	(₹	in Lakh)		(₹ in Lakh)		
5054-Capital Outlay on Roads and Bridges -						
2007-08	9,60,26	.26	-	2,89.98	0.30	
2008-09	9,96,61	.97	-	_	-	
2009-10	12,67,55	.09	_	_	_	

#### 15. Central Road Fund (Subvention)

Out of proceeds of Excise duties on Motor Spirits earmarked for Road Development, the Central Government has constituted a Fund named as Central Road Fund. Out of this Fund amounts are allocated by the Government of India to the State Government, by crediting to Grant-in-Aid (CRF subvention) in the State Government account. The allocation, other than those from the Revenue is credited to Major Head 8449-Other Deposits Subvention from Central Road Fund by Contra debit to Major Head 5054- Capital Outlay on Roads and Bridges. Such of the expenditure under this Head is to be met out of the allocation (Other than those from Reserve) and is set off by transfer of an equivalent amount from the Deposit Head viz. 8449- Other deposits Subvention from Central Road Fund.

Total allocation made by the Government of India to the Jammu and Kashmir Government upto the end of March 2010 is ₹ 1,17,42.00 lakh against which the actual amount received by the State Government is ₹ 61,88.34 lakh ending March, 2010, with a closing balance of ₹ 1,45,20.82 lakh.

### GRANT NO. 17 - HEALTH AND MEDICAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT

### **MAJOR HEADS**

2210	Medical	and Public	Health

2211 Family Welfare

4210 Capital Outlay on Medical and Public Health

		Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess (+) Saving (-)	
			(₹ in thousand)		
Revenue:					
Voted-					
Original	8,43,12,73	8,73,16,72	8,30,75,57	(-)42,41,15	
Supplementary	30,03,99	0,73,10,72	0,50,75,57	(-)42,41,13	
Amount surrendered during the ye	ear			•••	
Capital:					
Voted-					
Original	2,37,71,04	3,00,96,00	2,88,99,75	(-)11,96,25	
Supplementary	63,24,96	3,00,70,00	2,00,22,73	(-)11,50,25	
Amount surrendered during the ye	ear				

Notes and Comments:

### **Revenue Section**

- 1. Supplementary Grant of ₹ 30,03.99 lakh proved injudicious as the actual expenditure did not come even up to the level of original provision. No portion of the final saving was anticipated and surrendered.
- 2. Persistent saving as detailed below has occurred during the last five years also.

0		0	
Year	Total Grant/	Actual	Saving (-)
	Appropriation	Expenditure	
		(₹ in Lakh)	
2004-2005	4,67,92.71	4,32,49.23	(-)35,43.48
2005-2006	5,31,86.57	4,87,38.91	(-)44,47.66
2006-2007	5,78,43.71	5,55,01.17	(-)23,42.54
2007-2008	6,25,23.38	6,01,48.96	(-)23,74.42
2008-2009	7,21,58.83	6,46,92.89	(-)74,65.94

3. Head		ng in th	ne grant		; reasons fo al Grant/ opriation	or which were n Actual Expenditure	ot intimated. Saving (-)
				11	-	in Lakh)	
2210	01	001	0011	State Plan Normal	(`	III Lakii)	
2210	01	001		Direction and Administration, Jammu			
			0000	O 9,00.00			
				S -	9,00.00	2,32.99	(-)6,67.01
			0638	Direction Office, Kashmir (DHSK) O 9,00.00	,	,	(, ,
				S -	9,00.00	6,05.89	(-)2,94.11
2210	01	001	0099	General			
			0602	State Health Transport Organization, J	Jammu		
				O 92.57			
				S -	92.57	77.79	(-)14.78
			0604	Subsidiary Health Centre, Jammu			
				O 27.88			
				S -	27.88	17.93	(-)9.95
			0610	, 3	ıu		
				O 3,54.67 S -	3,54.67	3,41.40	()12.07
			0627		3,34.07	3,41.40	(-)13.27
			0021	O 13,66.22			
				S 1,90.63	15,56.85	14,58.92	(-)97.93
			0629	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
				O 1,37.08	1 00 12	1.4.00	()4.72.22
			0630	S 51.05 State T.B Office Jammu	1,88.13	14.80	(-)1,73.33
			0030	O 44.62			
				S -	44.62	34.53	(-)10.09
			0636		11.02	31.33	()10.07
				O 20,18.71			
				S 7,48.95	27,67.66	21,09.13	(-)6,58.53
2210	01	104	0099	General			
			0598	Medical Stores Department, Kashmir			
				O 3,19.89			
				S -	3,19.89	2,11.85	(-)1,08.04

Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
					(₹	in Lakh)	
2210	01	110	0099	General	,	,	
			0557	C.D Hospital, Jammu			
				O 4,51.25			
				S -	4,51.25	4,29.28	(-)21.97
			0559	Chitranjan Dass Mobile Hospita	1		
				Principal Medical College, Srinag	gar		
				O 2,11.29			
				S -	2,11.29	1,36.08	(-)75.21
			0562	Improvement and Opening of N	lew		
				Dispensaries, Jammu			
				O 15,41.51			
				S -	15,41.51	12,64.18	(-)2,77.33
			0568	Lal Ded Hospital for women, Sr	inagar		
				O 14,85.13			
				S -	14,85.13	14,26.86	(-)58.27
			0575	Emergency Hospital, Jammu			
				O 2,79.49			
				S -	2,79.49	2,41.91	(-)37.58
	0585	Sub District Hospitals, Jammu					
				O 30,75.90 S -	20.75.00	29.07.20	()2 (9 70
		0622		30,75.90	28,07.20	(-)2,68.70	
		0022	O 34,02.52				
				S -	34,02.52	23,88.39	(-)10,14.13
		0625	S.M.H.S Hospital, Srinagar	,	ŕ	,	
			O 25,14.02				
		2	S -	25,14.02	21,79.34	(-)3,34.68	
		0660	Chest Disease Hospital, Srinaga	r			
				O 6,01.98 S -	6,01.98	5,72.04	(-)29.94
			0666	Artificial limb Centre, Srinagar	0,01.90	3,12.04	(-)49.94
				O 27.00			
				S -	27.00	20.41	(-)6.59

Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
			(₹ in Lakh)				
2210 01 110		110	110 0099 0678	Associated Hospital Srinagar Chi Mobile Ophthalmic Unit, Srinaga	tranjan	,	
			0680	O 1,45.05 S - Medical College Hospital, Jammu	1,45.05	1,26.03	(-)19.02
				O 25,66.80 S -	25,66.80	24,72.34	(-)94.46
			1293	SMGS Hospital, Jammu O 19,25.90 S -	19,25.90	17,21.02	(-)2,04.88
			1553		17,23.70	17,21.02	(-)2,04.00
			2261	S - CDMH-Associated Hospitals, Sri O 26.95	6,40.26 nagar	6,23.79	(-)16.47
2210	01	200	0099	S - General	26.95	17.64	(-)9.31
	~ -	_ ~ ~	0641	Integrated Child Development Sc O 2,08.98	hemes, Jammu		
2210	01	800	0099 1765	S - General Raj Bhawan Ambulance	2,08.98	1,89.99	(-)18.99
2210	01	000	0011	O 28.83 S -	28.83	15.13	(-)13.70
2210	01	800	1544	State Plan Normal  Jehlum Valley Medical College			
2210	02	101	0011	O 1,00.00 S - State Plan Normal	1,00.00	4.00	(-)96.00
			0681	Direction and Administration (Di O 79.00	rector ISM (J &	: K)	
				S -	79.00	48.99	(-)30.01

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
				(₹	in Lakh)	
2210 0	03 10	01 0099 0580	General Sub Centres, Kashmir O 21,65.60	·	ŕ	
		0581	S 4,69.22 Sub Centres, Jammu O 22,72.82	26,34.82	23,04.56	(-)3,30.26
			S -	22,72.82	20,80.43	(-)1,92.39
<b>221</b> 0 0	03 10	0099	General			
		0566	Primary Health Centre, Jam O 1,17.46	mu		
			S -	1,17.46	1,05.92	(-)11.54
		0640	Primary Health Centre, Jam O 49,94.39	mu (Kot Bhalwal)		
			S -	49,94.39	45,72.49	(-)4,21.90
		1272	Improvement and opening Centres, Jammu O 2,87.77	of New Basic Health a	and Primary	
			S -	2,87.77	2,63.63	(-)24.14
2210 0	03 11	0 0099 0576	General Improvement and Opening O 23,82.15	of New Dispensaries		
			S 1,52.16	25,34.31	23,36.72	(-)1,97.59
		1306	Mobile Medical Aid Centres O 67.19			(, ,
2240 0	NF 4.0		S -	67.19	54.40	(-)12.79
2210 0	05 10	0586	General Sher-I-Kashmir Institute of	Medical Science (Haj:	an Block)	
			O 3,82.21 S -	3,82.21	3,12.49	(-)69.72
		0590	Institute of Medical Science O 1,19,04.23		3,12,49	(-)09.72
			S -	1,19,04.23	1,10,22.24	(-)8,81.99
		0592	AMT School, Srinagar O 83.42			
			S -	83.42	63.41	(-)20.01
		0679	Principal Dental College, Sr O 6,38.79	inagar		
			S -	6,38.79	4,50.97	(-)1,87.82

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
					(₹ in Lakh)	
2210 05	105	0099 0682	General AMT School Jammu O 2,00.94		,	
			S -	2,00.94	1,81.47	(-)19.47
		1544	SKIMS Medical College B O 16,52.38		,	(/
			S -	16,52.38	14,57.31	(-)1,95.07
		1756	T.B Demonstration Cum of 73.96	_		
		2022	S -	73.96	64.38	(-)9.58
		2023	Dental College Jammu O 4,45.26		2.04.00	() 4 <b>7</b> 1 4 0
2210 05	105	0011	S State Plan Normal	4,45.26	2,91.08	(-)1,54.18
		0305	Medical College, Srinagar O 50.00			
			S -	50.00	1.38	(-)48.62
		0590	O 13,70.00	ces, Srinagar		
			S -	13,70.00	64.69	(-)13,05.31
		2023	Dental College, Jammu O 1,83.00			
2010 06	101	0000	S -	1,83.00	1,16.18	(-)66.82
2210 06	101	0099 0584	General Strengthening of Basic He	ealth Services		
			O 1,84.95			
		0500	S -	1,84.95	1,61.50	(-)23.45
		0599	Leprosy Control Unit, Jan O 1,77.35		4 40 47	() 27, 00
		0603	S - Malaria Control Programm	1,77.35	1,49.46	(-)27.89
		0003	O 2,96.42	-	2.04.22	()4040
		0613	S - Health Education and its	2,96.42	2,84.32	(-)12.10
		0013	Health Education and its S O 23.78	suchguiening, jann	mu	
			S -	23.78	15.74	(-)8.04

Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
						(₹ in Lakh)	
2210	06	101	0099 0616	General Maternity and Child Welfa O 1,27.30	are Centres Gobal		
			0635	S - Urban National Malaria E O 95.09	1,27.30 tradication Programm	20.05 ne, Jammu	(-)1,07.25
				S -	95.09	73.21	(-)21.88
			0639	Improvement and Openin O 1,17.57	ng of Basic Health Se		(/
			0690	S 1,60.00 Leprosy Set Centres, James	2,77.57 mu	2,24.61	(-)52.96
			1200	O 40.56 S - Leprosy Control Unit, Ka	40.56	23.64	(-) 16.92
			1200	O 63.81 S -	63.81	33.76	(-)30.05
			1300	SET Medical (Spm) O 2,19.86	05.01	33.70	(-)30.03
				S -	2,19.86	2,02.14	(-)17.72
			1525	Visual Impairment and Co O 1,44.57	ontrol of Blindness, I	Kashmir	
2210	06	102	0000	S 44.52 General	1,89.09	1,26.59	(-)62.50
2210	00	102	0648	Food Laboratories, Kashr O 35.13	nir		
				S -	35.13	10.07	(-)25.06
			0697	Prevention of Food Adult O 18.71			
2210	06	104	0099	S - General	18.71	12.45	(-)6.26
2210	00	104		Semi-Medical AID Centre Food control organization O 99.33		Drug and	
				S -	99.33	65.79	(-)33.54
			2266	Semi-Medical AID Centre Food control organization O 80.88		er Drug and	``
				S -	80.88	67.62	(-)13.26

Head		Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
		(₹	in Lakh)	
2210 06 104	0011 State Plan Normal			
	1294 Controller Drug and Fo O 1,00.00	od J&K control organizati	on	
2240 07 407	S -	1,00.00	62.39	(-)37.61
2210 06 107	0099 General 0615 Establishment of Field S O 19.63	Study and Demonstration,	Kashmir	
	S -	19.63	12.17	(-)7.46
	0626 Head Quarter Laborator O 20.57	ries STD		
	S -	20.57	10.31	(-)10.26
	0656 Drug Laboratory, Kashr O 51.20		- 0.4	
	S -	51.20	2.94	(-)48.26
	0676 District Headquarter La O 50.20	boratories STD		
	S -	50.20	29.37	(-)20.83
	0689 Muffasil Sanitation Prev Laboratory Srinagar O 29.32	entive organization Set Ce	entre Central	· · ·
	S -	29.32	2.28	(-)27.04
	2260 Head Quarter Laborator control organization O 29.40	ries STD Controller Drug	and Food	
	S -	29.40	15.44	(-)13.96
	2267 District Head Quarter L Food control organization O 43.75	aboratories STD Controll on	er Drug and	
	S -	43.75	25.34	(-)18.41
2210 06 800	0099 General			<b>\</b> /
	0617 Muffasil Sanitation Service O 33.32	ices		
	S -	33.32	21.21	(-)12.11
	0620 Rehbar-I Sehat, Jammu	33.32		():2::1
	O 1,21.70			
	S -	1,21.70	70.66	(-)51.04

Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
						(₹ in Lakh)	
2210	06	800	0099	General			
			0621	Divisional Nutrition office	er, Jammu		
				O 19.60			
				S -	19.60	13.74	(-)5.86
4.				counterbalanced by the exc	ess under the followi	ing Schemes; reaso	ons thereof were
		commi	ınıcate	a.	Total Grant/	Actual	Excess(+)
Head					Appropriation	Expenditure	Excess(+)
					11 1	(₹ in Lakh)	
2210	01	001	0099	General		(VIII Lakii)	
2210	01	001	0558	District Medical Facilities,	Iammu		
			0000	O 25,45.69	Jumma		
				S -	25,45.69	26,53.07	(+)1,07.38
			0560	Medical Aid Centres, Kash		, , , , , ,	( ) ,
				O 2,06.01	,		
				S 73.99	2,80.00	3,17.63	(+)37.63
			0579	Gandhinagar Hospital, Jar	nmu		, ,
				O 4,88.02			
				S -	4,88.02	5,02.62	(+)14.60
			0606	State Health Transport Og	ganization, Kashmir		
				O 83.42			
				S -	83.42	92.21	(+)8.79
			0614		T.B Clinics, Kashmi	r	
				O 1,74.07			
				S 30.17	2,04.24	2,56.72	(+)52.48
			0618		Jammu (H.S)		
				O 2,09.82	2 00 02	2.40.05	(1)0.05
			0.62.4	S -	2,09.82	2,18.07	(+)8.25
			0634	State T.B office, Kashmir			
				O 32.72 S -	22.72	60.01	(1)29.10
			0638	Direction Office, Kashmir	32.72	60.91	(+)28.19
			0038	O 9,78.67	(DHSK)		
				S 45.83	10,24.50	13,59.40	(+)3,34.90
				J 73.03	10,24.30	13,37.40	(1)3,34.90

Head			Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess(+)
			(	₹ in Lakh)	
2210 01		General			
	130	<ul><li>Director Health Service Hospital Srinagar</li></ul>	s, Kashmir JLNM		
		O 5,82.43			
		S 67.28	6,49.71	6,55.82	(+)6.11
	152	2 District Medical officers	s, Kashmir		
		O 3,00.24			
		S 50.27	3,50.51	7,20.45	(+)3,69.94
2210 01	109 009	General			
	064	Other Health Schemes	School Health, Kashmir		
		O 9.77			
		S -	9.77	16.05	(+)6.28
2210 01	110 009	General			,
	056		ammu		
		O 2,99.22			
		S -	2,99.22	3,10.94	(+)11.72
	056	' Government Hospital f	· ·	-,	( )
		Srinagar			
		O 7,25.30			
		S -	7,25.30	7,37.58	(+)12.28
	058	B Leper Hospital, Srinaga		,	· /
		O 70.60			
		S -	70.60	92.25	(+)21.65
	066	2 Government Psychiatric			( )
		O 1,89.35	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		
		S -	1,89.35	1,90.66	(+)1.31
	068		*	2,5 0.00	(*)1.51
	000	O 3,07.34	e rroopium, ormagar		
		S -	3,07.34	3,38.46	(+)31.12
	152		·	3,30.10	( ) ) 51.12
	1.02	O 7,85.30	ca 1100piano, Januara		
		S -	7,85.30	8,20.73	(+)35.43

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess(+)
					(₹ in Lakh)	
2210 01	110	0099	General			
		1764	G.B Pant Hospital			
			O 1,58.88			
			S -	1,58.88	2,03.06	(+)44.18
2210 02	101	0099	General			
		0667	Unani and Ayurvedic Disp (ISM)	ensaries, Kashmir		
			O 10,94.12			
			S -	10,94.12	11,70.60	(+)76.48
		0681	Direction and Administration ISM, Jammu	on Deputy Director		
			O 2,96.97			
			S 3,93.55	6,90.52	7,62.12	(+)71.60
		1315	Bedded hospital Ayurvedic	, Jammu		
			O 93.90			
			S -	93.90	1,14.73	(+)20.83
2210 02	103		General			
		0694	Medical Store ISM, Kashm	ir		
			O 12.78			
			S -	12.78	19.87	(+)7.09
2210 03	103		General			
		0644	Primary Health Centre, Srin	nagar		
			O 58,32.65	<.4 4= <0	=0.0=.00	(:)44.4==0
		0 < 40	S 2,84.98	61,17.63	72,35.33	(+)11,17.70
		0649	Primary Health Centre R.S College Jammu)	Pura (Medical		
			O 1,44.39			
2210 02	440		S -	1,44.39	1,48.47	(+)4.08
2210 03	110		General			
		0577	Mobile Medical Units, Jam	mu		
			O 48.78	40.70	T 4 < 4	(1) = 0.4
			S -	48.78	54.64	(+)5.86

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Excess(+)
2210 03	110	0099	General		,	
		0696	Unani Ayurvedic Dispensa	aries, Jammu		
			O 15,36.24			
			S -	15,36.24	15,44.49	(+)8.25
2210 05	105	0099	General			
		0166	Medical College, Jammu			
			O 37,91.24			
			S -	37,91.24	41,19.88	(+)3,28.64
		0305	Medical College, Srinagar			
			O 29,98.70			
			S 2,25.00	32,23.70	34,15.75	(+)1,92.05
2210 06	101	0099	General			
		0596	Epidemic Diseases Organi	ization, Kashmir		
			O 62.36			
			S -	62.36	76.16	(+)13.80
		0597	Leper Hospital, Jammu			
			O 48.75			
			S -	48.75	53.05	(+)4.30
		0601	Leprosy SET Centres, Kas	shmir		
			O 61.03			
			S -	61.03	73.06	(+)12.03
		0609	Maternity and Child Welfa	ire Centres, Jammu		
			O 5.43			
			S -	5.43	13.21	(+)7.78
		0619	Kashmir Public Health De	epartment		
			O 73.24			
			S -	73.24	81.21	(+)7.97
		0642	Leprosy Adm. Control Jan	nmu		
			O 16.56		• 4 • 0 0	
			S -	16.56	21.80	(+)5.24
		1277	Visual Impairment and Co Jammu	ontrol of Blindness,		
			O 96.40			
			S -	96.40	1,08.62	(+)12.22

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess(+)
2210 06	1.01	0000	C 1		(₹ in Lakh)	
2210 06	101		General			
		1523	National Malaria E: Kashmir	radication Programme,		
			O 15.65			
			S -	15.65	17.75	(+)2.10
		1527	Eradication of Sma Kashmir	ll Pox Mobile Squads,		
			O 37.44			
			S -	37.44	54.48	(+)17.04
		1757	Anti V.D/STD Co			( )
			O 40.64	0		
			S -	40.64	48.60	(+)7.96
2210 06	102	0099	General			( )
				l Adulteration, Jammu		
			O 22.98	7 5		
			S -	22.98	25.96	(+)2.98
2210 06	104	0099	General			( )
			Semi-Medical Aid (	Centres , Kashmir		
			O 13.10	,		
			S -	13.10	17.26	(+)4.16
		0654		Drugs and Food, Jammu		( )
		3301	O 55.18	2 1050 0110 1 0 0 0, juiiii 10		
			S -	55.18	60.69	(+)5.51
		1264	Mobile Medical AII		00.03	( ) 5.61
		1201	O 23.42	o Generos, Junina		
			S -	23.42	29.09	(+)5.67
		1294		nd Food, J&K Control	27.07	(+)3.07
		1271	Organization	ia i ood, jour condor		
			O 50.57			
			S -	50.57	1,38.98	(+)88.41

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess(+)
					(₹ in Lakh)	
2210 06	104	0099	General			
		2265	Mobile Medical AID C	Centres, Kashmir		
			Controller Drugs and I	Food Control		
			Organization			
			O 7.98			
			S -	7.98	12.66	(+)4.68
2210 06	800	0099	General			
		0565	Rehbar-I-Sehat, Kashn	nir		
			O 16.92			
			S 16.39	33.31	49.78	(+)16.47
		0582	Divisional Nutrition O	rganization, Kashmir		
			O 9.35			
			S -	9.35	12.15	(+)2.80
2211	001	0031	Centrally Sponsored So	cheme		. ,
		1651	District Family Welfare			
			O 2,10.00			
			S -	2,10.00	34,94.72*	(+)32,84.72

- 5. Against the provision of ₹ 14,95.20 lakh (NP) under 2211-Family Welfare placed under the disposal of Controlling Officer, the Drawing and Disbursing Officers incurred expenditure to the tune of ₹ 7,52.66 lakh on the Schemes not contemplated in the Demand for Grants; reasons for incurring expenditure on the schemes against which no provision was provided for in the Demand for Grants have not been communicated.
- 6. Expenditure under the following Schemes was incurred without budgetary provision; reasons thereof were not communicated.

Head			Actual Expenditure
			(₹ in Lakh)
2210 01	001	0011 State Plan Normal	
		0560 Medical Aid Centres, Kashmir (DHSK)	1.51
2210 06	200	0099 General	
		0616 Maternity and Child Welfare Centres, Gobal	3.11

<sup>\*</sup>Includes expenditure of ₹28,67.11 lakh incurred on different schemes like Rural/ Urban Family welfare centre, sub-centre J & K Post-Mortem centres, training of ANM'S/CHV's/AMT School not contemplated in the Demand for Grants.

7. Entire provision under the following Schemes remained un-utilized throughout the year; reasons for which have not been intimated.

		Total Grant/ Appropriation (₹ in Lakh)
110	0011 State Plan Normal	(\ III Lakii)
	0678 Associated Hospital, Srinagar	50.00
	1529 Administrator Associated Hospital. Jammu	50.00
105	0011 State Plan Normal	
	0166 Medical College, Jammu	50.00
	0679 Principal Dental College, Srinagar	2,54.44
101	0099 General	
	2263 Anti V.D/STD Control Organisation, Principal	16.23
	Medical College, Srinagar	
	105	0678 Associated Hospital , Srinagar 1529 Administrator Associated Hospital. Jammu 105 0011 State Plan Normal 0166 Medical College, Jammu 0679 Principal Dental College, Srinagar 101 0099 General 2263 Anti V.D/STD Control Organisation , Principal

### **Capital Section**

- 8. Supplementary Grant of ₹ 63,24.96 lakh proved excessive in view of the final saving of ₹ 11,96.25 lakh. No portion of the final saving of ₹ 11,96.25 lakh was anticipated and surrendered.
- 9. Persistent saving in the Grant occurred during the last two years also as detailed below:-

Year	Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
		(₹ in Lakh)	
2007-2008	3,05,97.66	2,38,79.12	(-)67,18.54
2008-2009	2,37,99.89	1,66,93.81	(-)71,06.08

10. Significant Saving in the Grant occurred under the following Schemes; reasons for which were not intimated

Head		Total Grant/ Appropriation (₹	Actual Expenditure in Lakh)	Saving (-)
4210 01 800	0011 State Plan Normal 0166 Medical College, Jammu O 5,00.00 S 9,69.00 1538 Drug and Food Control O 1,62.04	14,69.00	7,91.08	(-)6,77.92
	S -	1,62.04	62.13	(-)99.91

153

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation (₹ i	Actual Expenditure n Lakh)	Saving (-)
4210 01	800	0011	State Plan Normal	`	,	
		1537	Director Health, Kashmir			
			O 78,00.00			
			S -	78,00.00	43,41.03	(-)34,58.97
		1539	Indian System of Medicine (ISM)			
			O 1,00.00			
			S 9,90.00	10,90.00	44.43	(-)10,45.57
		1541	Associated Hospital, Srinagar			
			O 3,82.00			
			S 8,78.00	12,60.00	1,80.15	(-)10,79.85
		1542	Associated Hospital ,Jammu			
			O 1,60.00			
			S 9,00.00	10,60.00	7,94.81	(-)2,65.19
			S 9,00.00	10,60.00	7,94.81	(-)2,65.19

11. Saving was partly counterbalanced by excess under the following Schemes; reasons thereof were not communicated

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess(+)
				(₹	in Lakh)	
4210 01	800	0011	State Plan Normal			
		0305	Medical College, Srinagar			
			O 5,00.00			
			S 7,69.00	12,69.00	73,83.98	(+)61,14.98
		1543	Medical Institution			
			O 23,70.00			
			S -	23,70.00	31,00.60	(+)7,30.60
		1544	Jehlum Valley Medical Co	llege		, ,
			O 5,00.00			
			S -	5,00.00	8,58.99	(+)3,58.99
		2023	Government Dental Hosp	oital, Jammu		
			O 1,50.00			
			S 9,96.96	11,46.96	12,43.32	(+)96.36

Head		Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess(+)
		(	₹ in Lakh)	
4210 01 800 0011	State Plan Normal	·	,	
1536	Director Health, Jammu			
	O 67,55.00			
	S -	67,55.00	83,50.95	(+)15,95.95
1540	Dental College, Srinagar	,	,	( );
	O 3,50.00			
	S 8,22.00	11,72.00	13,51.69	(+)1,79.69
12. Expenditure as de been intimated.	tailed below was incurred wi	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		` ' '
				Actual
Head				Expenditure
				(₹ in Lakh)
4210 02 103 001	1 State Plan Normal			,
051	5 Construction			3,96.60
	n under the following Schemot been intimated.	nes remained un-utiliz	ed throughout the	e year; reasons
TT 1				Total Grant/
Head				

Head				Total Grant/
Tiead				Appropriation
				(₹ in Lakh)
4210 01	800	0031	Centrally Sponsored Scheme	
		1539	Indian System of Medicine (ISM)	20,00.00
		1881	Prevention and control of Diseases	42.00
		1906	Family Welfare Programme	20,00.00

### GRANT NO. 18 - SOCIAL WELFARE DEPARTMENT

### **MAJOR HEADS**

<ul> <li>Other Administrative Services</li> <li>Welfare of Scheduled Caste, Scheduled Tribes and Other Backward Classes</li> <li>Social Security &amp; Welfare</li> <li>Nutrition</li> <li>Capital Outlay on Welfare of Scheduled Caste, Scheduled Tribes and Other Backward Classes</li> <li>Capital Outlay on Social Security &amp; Welfare</li> </ul>								
4236	Capital Outlay on Nutrition	Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in thousand)	Excess (+) Saving (-)				
Revenu	ne:							
Voted-								
Original	2,61,85,92	2,78,70,66	2,81,66,42	(+)2,95,76				
Supplen	nentary 16,84,74	2,70,70,00	2,01,00,12	( )2,>3,+0				
Amount	t surrendered during the year							
Capital	:							
Voted-								
Original	1,57,30,42	4.00.67.20	4.00.50.50	(1)4604.44				
Supplen	nentary 25,36,90	1,82,67,32	1,99,58,76	(+)16,91,44				
Amount surrendered during the year								

### Notes and Comments:

### **Revenue Section**

1. Supplementary Grant of ₹ 16,84.74 lakh proved inadequate in view of final excess of ₹ 2,95.76 lakh. The excess requires regularization.

- 2. Against the lumpsum Plan provision of ₹ 16,90.93 lakh (₹ 2,50.00 lakh , ₹10,00.00 lakh and ₹ 4,40.93 lakh under Welfare of Schedule Castes & Tribes and other Backward Classes, Tribal subplan, Director Social Welfare Jammu and Kashmir respectively) sub-ordinate to Major Head 2225-Welfare of Schedule Caste, Schedule Tribe and Other Backward Classes, the expenditure was incurred on different components, which though part of the above Schemes, were not contemplated in the Demand for Grants and against which no separate provision was provided for in the instant Demand for Grants depriving the Audit to make comparison of excess / saving Sub-Head wise.
- 3. Excess over the provision occurred mainly under the following Heads; reasons for which were not communicated.

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Excess (+)
2225 03	102	0099	General		, ,	
		1827	Welfare of Schedule Caste / Tri O 34.33 S -	34.33	69.58	(+)35.25
		1828	Welfare of Pahari Speaking Peo O 1,06.60 S -	ple 1,06.60	1,12.83	(+)6.23
2225 03	277	0099	General	,	,	( )
2225 80	800	1444 0099	Pre-Matric Scholarship O 3.00 S - General	3.00	6,96.53	(+)6,93.53
2225 60	800	1099				
		1099	Ladies Vocational Centres, Jam O 24.61			
		2026	S -	24.61	30.84	(+)6.23
		2036	Development of Cottage Indus O 1,20.53	tries Centre, Jamm	u	
			S -	1,20.53	1,91.14	(+)70.61

Head			Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Excess (+)
2235 02 001	0099 1106	General Tehsil Level Offices Kashmir O 1,95.76 S 19.10	2,14.86	2,59.70	(+)44.84
2235 02 102	2038 2 0099	Direction and Administration, O 86.88 S 2.52 General	Kashmir 89.40	2,72.15	(+)1,82.75
	0379 2044	Other Social Security & Welfar O 96.64 S - Establishment of Bal Ashram, O 93.04	96.64	1,33.93	(+)37.29
2235 02 102	2 0031	S 37.42 Centrally Sponsored Schemes	1,30.46	2,75.16	(+)1,44.70
	1829	Post-Matric Scholarship O 2,40.00 S -	2,40.00	5,70.15	(+)3,30.15
2235 02 104	4 0099	General			
	1101	Old Age Pension (OAP) (ISSS Kashmir O 32,59.12 S 37.42	) Children 32,96.54	99,77.25	(+)66,80.71

			GR	ANT NO. 18 (0	Contd.)		
Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Excess (+)
2235 02	800	0099	General				
		1107	Stipend to Destitu	ıte, Kashmir			
			-	.00			
			S	-	1.00	11.19	(+)10.19
		1109	State Social Welfa	re Board 50%			
			O 34	.80			
			S 6	.67	41.47	50.00	(+)8.53
		1112	Welfare of Hand	icapped , Kashm	ir		
			O	1.30			
			S	-	1.30	18.27	(+)16.97
		2048	Chairman State B	Board (100%)			
			O 2.	5.67			
			S	-	25.67	82.32	(+)56.65
2235 60	800	0099	General				
		2046	Monitoring and I	Evaluation Cell ,l	Kashmir		
			_	8.18			
			S	us.	8.18	9.92	(+)1.74
		2047	Monitoring and I	Evaluation Cell, J	lammu		
			0	7.94			
			S	-	7.94	12.98	(+)5.04
2236 80	800	0099	General				
		1839	Applied Nutrition				
				0.00	0.02.05	0.40.55	(1)4.40.50
			S 4,23	3.05	8,23.05	9,42.57	(+)1,19.52

4. Expenditure was incurred under the following Heads without budgetary provision; reasons for which were not communicated.

Head					Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)
2225	03	001	0099	General	
			2039	Direction & Administration, Jammu	3.42
2225	03	102	0099	General	
			1793	Economic Betterment	89.70
2235	02	001	0099	General	
			2216	Hospitals & Dispensaries/ Director Animal Husbandry, Jammu	52.69
2235	02	102	0099	General	
			1444	Pre-Matric Scholarship	39.74
2235	02	102	0031	Centrally Sponsored Schemes	
			1287	Integrated Child Development	77.19
			1833	Implementation of Bharat Samarithi Yojana	19.10
			0520	UDISHA	16.13
			0515	Constructions	39.48
			1840	Special Component Plan Anganwari	2.20
2235	02	104	0011	State Plan Normal	
			1101	Old Age Pension (OAP) (ISSS) Children	39,37.14
2235	02	800	0011	State Plan Normal	
			1444	Pre-Matric Scholarship	2,60.54
			2045	Establishment of Bal Ashram, Jammu	4.26
			2280	District Level Offices, Jammu	66.40
2235	60	107	0099	General	
			0965	Pension to Freedom Fighters & their dependents etc.	1.91
2235	60	800	0031	Centrally Sponsored Schemes	
			0561	Vocational Training Programme/Dir. Social Welfare, Kashmir	3.31
			2251	Merit-cum-Meals Base Scholarship	6,42.59

Head					Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)
2236 02 102	2 003	Centrally Sponsored Schemes			
	128	7 Integrated Child Development	Schemes		2,28.20
2236 02 800					
	0063	, 0	reservation		1.36
2236 80 800	001	Centre, Jammu 1 State Plan Normal			
2230 00 000	1839				1,76.46
5. Significant		occurred mainly under the fol	louring Heads:	reasons for w	•
communica	_	occurred manny under the for	iowing ricads,	icasons for wi	men were not
Head				Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
2070 105	0099	General		(₹ in Lakh)	
2070 103					
	0502	State Commission for Backward	Classes		
		O 87.54 S -	87.54	79.87	()7.67
	1791	State Commission for Women	07.54	19.01	(-)7.67
	1//1	O 64.67			
		S -	64.67	43.17	(-)21.50
2225 03 102	0011	State Plan Normal			,
	1796	Welfare of Gujjar and Backarwals	•		
	_,,,	O 12,00.00			
		S -	12,00.00	3,75.31	(-)8,24.69
	0099	General			
	1796	Welfare of Gujjar and Backarwals	<b>;</b>		
		O 4,00.74			
		S -	4,00.74	2,82.93	(-)1,17.81
2225 03 277	0099	General			
	1080	Establishment of Markaz Bahboo Miskeen Bagh	odi Khawteen,		
		O 84.07			
		S -	84.07	47.51	(-)36.56

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
2225 80	800	0099	General		,	
		2037	Development of Cottage Industr Kashmir	ries Centre,		
			O 69.87			
			S -	69.87	32.00	(-)37.87
2235 02	001	0099	General			
		1092	District Level Offices/ Kashmir			
			O 1,74.62			
			S 13.37	1,87.99	1,53.60	(-)34.39
		2039	Direction & Administration, Jam	ımu		
			O 1,40.77			
			S 1.57	1,42.34	1,30.91	(-)11.43
		2281	Tehsil Level Offices, Jammu			
			O 2,21.41			
			S -	2,21.41	1,19.58	(-)1,01.83
2235 02	102	0099	General			
		2045	Establishment of Bal Ashram, Ja	mmu		
			O 1,04.49			
			S 34.84	1,39.33	1,30.47	(-)8.86
2235 02	103	0099	General			
		2040	Social Welfare Centres, Kashmir	r		
			O 3,31.44			
			S 2.08	3,33.52	3,00.34	(-)33.18
		2041	Social Welfare Centres, Jammu			
			O 4,07.43			
			S	4,07.43	3,56.53	(-)50.90

Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
2235 02	102	0099	General				
		2042	Homes for	Destitutes & Deser	rted Women		
			Nari Niket	an,, Kashmir			
			O	38.63			
			S	13.46	52.09	40.69	(-)11.40
2235 02	104	0099	General				
		2282	Old Age Po (Jammu)	ension (OAP) (ISSS	) Children		
			O	17,47.00			
			S	5,49.74	22,96.74	11,32.23	(-)11,64.51
2235 02	800	0099	General				,,
		1834	State Share	to Border Area Pro	oject 33%		
			O	1,08.15	,		
			S	19.05	1,27.20	50.00	(-)77.20
2235 60	800	0031	Centrally S	ponsored Schemes	,		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
		1872		ocial Assistance Pro	gramme		
			O	35,00.00	O		
			S	-	35,00.00	3,50.82	(-)31,49.18
2236 80	800	0099	General		,	,	( ) ,
		2307	Applied No	atrition, Kashmir			
			0	5,27.00			
			S	5,00.12	10,27.12	2,17.70	(-)8,09.42
			-	-,	,	_, ♡	( )=,==

<sup>6.</sup> Against a Lumpsum provision of ₹ 86,45.21 lakh (Plan ) placed at the disposal of Director Social Welfare Jammu/Kashmir under Minor Head 102- Child Welfare, subordinate to Major Head 2235-Social Security and Welfare, an expenditure of ₹ 3,70.77 lakh was incurred under different Heads not contemplated in the approved Demand for Grant resulting in saving of ₹ 82,74.44 lakh; reasons for which were not communicated.

7. Entire provision under the following Schemes remained unutilized throughout the year; reasons for which were not communicated

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation
				(₹ in Lakh)
2225 01	102	0031	Centrally Sponsored Schemes	
		2243	Special Component Plan SC/ST	5,60.00
2225 03	277	0099 1094	General Gujjar & Bakarwal Hostel, Miskeen bagh Srinagar	16.57
2235 02	102	0099	General	
		2130	Other Social Security Programme	1,37.06
2235 02	800	0099	General	
		1113	Training & Research Grant-In-Aid (Kashmir)	7.00

8. Against lumpsum provision of ₹ 10,00.00 Lakh (Plan) placed for Welfare of Pahari Speaking people under Major Head 2225-Welfare of Schedule Caste, Schedule Tribe and Other Backward Classes, an expenditure of ₹ 6.85 lakh was incurred on Office Expenses resulting in Saving of ₹ 9,93.15 lakh; reasons for which were not communicated.

#### **Capital Section**

- 9. Supplementary Grant of ₹ 25,36.90 lakh proved inadequate in view of final excess of ₹ 16,91.44 lakh. The excess requires regularization .
- 10. Excess over the provision occurred mainly under the following Heads; reasons for which were not communicated.

Head		Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Excess (+)
4225 02 800	0011 State Plan Normal			
	1827 Welfare of Schedule Caste/Tribe			
	O 1,05.38			
	S	1,05.38	1,20.39	(+)15.01
	1828 Welfare of Pahari Speaking Peopl	e		
	O 95.00			
	S	95.00	1,38.43	(+)43.43

Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Excess (+)
4235	02	102	0031	Centrally Sponsored Scheme		,	
1200	-	102		Integrated Child Development Sc	hemes		
			0	39,50.00			
			S	-	39,50.00	1,30,35.84	(+)90,85.84
11.	Evr	senditu	_	er the following Heads was mad	,	, ,	. , -
11.			ommur		e without budge	i provision, reasc	mis for which
Head	***************************************	.0 1100 0	011111101	active.			Actual
110114							Expenditure
							(₹ in Lakh)
4225	02	800	0031	Centrally Sponsored			( 111 2.0.11)
	_			Scheme			
			2311	Special Central Assistance to SC	/ST(Sub Plan)		25.00
			2242	Tribal Sub Plan			1.00
			2243	Special Component Plan SC/ST			2.59
4235	60	800	0031	Centrally Sponsored Scheme			
			2240	Schemes for Development of Sp	ecially Backward		5,33.32
				Areas/Director Animal Husband	•		,
12.	Savi	ng occ	urred m	nainly under the following Head ; 1		were not commu	nicated.
Head		O		,	Total Grant/		Saving (-)
Ticad					Appropriation		Saving ()
					r r	(₹ in Lakh)	
4235	01	201	0011	State Plan Normal		( THE LANDING	
1233	01	201	2158	Council for Rehabilitation for Vi	ctim of Militancy		
			O	3,00.00	emin or ivinitaries		
			S	-	3,00.00	2,58.75	(-) 41.25
4235	02	190	0011	State Plan Normal	3,00.00	2,30.73	() 11.23
1233	02	170	1951	Investment in Women's Develop	ment Corporatio	an Ltd	
			0	3,00.33	ment corporation	1	
			S	-	3,00.33	2,69.02	(-)31.31
			_		5,00.55	2,00.02	( )51.51

13. Entire provision under the following Head remained unutilized throughout the year; reasons for which were not communicated.

Head

Total Grant/ Appropriation (₹ in Lakh)

4225 02 800 0011 State Plan Normal

2286 SC/ST DEV.CORP.

1,20.00

2308 Welfare of Schedule Castes/Tribes, Kashmir.

1,09.39

- 14. Against lumpsum Plan provision of ₹ 31,77.27 lakh (Original ₹ 23,61.46 lakh & Supplementary ₹ 8,15.81 lakh) placed with Director Social Welfare J & K under Major Head 4225-Capital Outlay on Social Security and Welfare, Tribal Sub-Plan and Welfare of Schedule Caste and Tribes, an expenditure of ₹ 5,55.24 lakh was incurred on different schemes not mentioned in Demand for Grants deprived Audit to make comparison of excess/ saving sub-head wise.
- 15. Against lumpsum Plan provision of ₹ 34,60.03 lakh placed with Director Social Welfare under Major Head 4235- Capital Outlay on Social Security and Welfare, the expenditure was incurred on different Schemes thereby depriving the Audit to make comparison of excess/saving sub head wise.
- Against the lumpsum provision of ₹ 69,84.69 lakh (Original ₹ 52,63.60 lakh & Supplementary ₹ 17,21.09 lakh) placed with Director Social Welfare Jammu and Kashmir under Major Head 4236-Capital Outlay on Nutrition, an expenditure of ₹ 47,86.39 lakh was incurred under different Schemes resulting in saving of ₹ 21,98.30 lakh. Placement of lumpsum provision deprived Audit in making comparison of excess /saving Sub-Head wise.

### GRANT NO.19 - HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

MAJOR :	HEADS
---------	-------

2217	Urban Development			
4216	Capital Outlay on Housing			
4217	Capital Outlay on Urban Develop	oment		
6216	Loans for Housing			
7610	Loans to Government Servants e	tc.		
		Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess (+) Saving (-)
			(₹ in thousand)	
Reven	ue:		,	
Voted-				
Origina	al 2,12,31,7	2,54,19,86	2,51,54,22	(-)2,65,64
Supple	mentary 41,88,0	99		
Amour	nt surrendered during the year			
Capita	ıl:			
Voted-				
Origina	al 3,31,79,5	3,76,79,55	2,80,69,66	(-)96,09,89
Supple	mentary 45,00,0		_,,,,,,,,	(), 2,27,97
Amour	nt surrendered during the year			•••

## Notes and Comments:

#### **Revenue Section**

1. Supplementary Grant of ₹ 41,88.09 lakh proved excessive in view of final saving of ₹2,65.64 lakh. No portion of final saving was anticipated and surrendered.

2. Significant saving in the Grant occurred mainly under the following Schemes; reasons for which have not been communicated

	טנ טכנ	ii con	imumcated			
Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	_	Saving (-)
					(₹ in Lakh)	
2217 03	001	0099	General			
		0999	Chief Town Planner			
			O 1,94.14			
			S -	1,94.14	1,25.62	(-)68.52
		1148	Chief Architect, J&K		,	· · ·
			O 2,44.88			
			S -	2,44.88	2,00.79	(-)44.09
		1149	Chief Town Planner, Jammu	,	,	()
			O 2,38.07			
			\$ -	2,38.07	1,75.24	(-)62.83
2217 03	191	0099	General	<b>2,</b> 50.0.	1,73.21	()02.00
2217 03	171					
		1438	Srinagar Municipality			
			O 66,74.00			
			S 18,06.00	84,80.00	73,33.18	(-)11,46.82
2217 05	001	0099	General			
		2293	Chief Engineer UEED, Jammu			
			O 4,19.68			
			\$ -	4,19.68	4,10.05	(-)9.63
		2294	Town Drainage Division, Jammu		,,10,00	(),,,,,
			O 1,53.92	•		
			S -	1,53.92	1,41.01	(-)12.91
2217 05	101	0000	General	1,55.72	1,11.01	()12.71
2217 03	1/1					
		2034	Grant to Municipalities and Loca Kashmir	al Bodies,		
			O 37,72.00			
			S 10,18.09	47,90.09	24,65.93	(-)23,24.16
		2035	Grant to Municipalities and Loca	•	2.,00000	( )=0,=
		_000	Jammu	<u> </u>		
			O 25,28.00			
			S 2,52.00	27,80.00	20,24.21	(-)7,55.79
			*	,	,	( / /

Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
2217 05	191	0011	State Plan Norr	mal		(	
2217 05	800		Urban Poverty O 2,15.0 S General	Alleviation (NRT 00 -	) State Plan 2,15.00	15.00	(-)2,00.00
		1139	Director Local O 2,09.8				
3. Exces	s in th	ne Gra	S nt occurred mai	- nly under the follo	2,09.82 owing Schemes;	1,95.04 ceasons for which	(-)14.78
		nicate		,	0 /		
Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess(+)
						(₹ in Lakh)	
2217 03	191	0099	General			,	
		1437	Jammu Munici O S	ipality 41,08.00 11,12.00	52,20.00	76,91.93	(+)24,71.93
2217 05	800	0099	General				
		1439	Director Local	Bodies, Kashmir			
			O	2,64.97			
2217 00	0.04	0000	S	-	2,64.97	8,59.84	(+)5,94.87
2217 80	001	0099					
		1138	O .	r UEED J&K , S	rinagar		
			0	6,68.73	( (0.72	10.27.72	(1)10 E0 00
			S	-	6,68.73	19,26./3	(+)12,58.00

4 Expenditure under the following Schemes was incurred without budgetary provision; reasons for which were not communicated.

Head	W12011 W	0,000						Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)
2	2217 03	800	0011	State plan Norma	l			,
			1299	Sewerage				5.68
2	2217 05	191	0011	State plan Norma				
			1297	Urban Developm				42.64
					Capita	al Section		
5.	upto the	level	of orig		1,79.55	,		lid not come even of ₹ 96,09.89 lakh
6.	Persister	it savin Year	g in th	e Grant occurred d Total ( Approp	Grant /		Actual	ow Saving (-)
						(₹ in Lak	h)	
	2	2007-08	}	3,9	4,82.21	3,34	,41.51	(-)60,40.70
	2	2008-09	)		5,99.37	1,66	,09.84	(-)2,79,89.53
7.	Significa		ing oc		*	following Schem	es; reasons for	which were not
Head						Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure ((₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
4217	03 80	0 0013	1 State	Plan Normal				
4217	03 80		O S	Development 40,00.00 - rally Sponsored Scl	neme	40,00.00	11,19.22	(-)28,80.78
		1443	l Inte	grated Small and Mo	edium T	owns		
			0	1,09.00				
			S	-		1,09.00	37.50	(-)71.50

8. Entire provision in respect of below noted Schemes remained un-utilized throughout the year; reasons for which were not communicated.

Head						Total Grant/
						Appropriation
						(₹ in Lakh)
4217 03	800	0031 2150	Centrally Sponsored Scheme Augmented Urban Water Supply (AUWSP)	Programme		1,00.00*
		2232	Jawahar Lal Nehru National Urb (JNNURM)	an Renewal Missi	on	70,00.00
7610	201	2298 0099	Basic Services of Urban Poor General	0.055		22,00.00
0.6:		1144	House Building Advances to IA		6.1	20.00
	_	partly c mmuni	counterbalanced by the excess un cated	ider the following	Schemes; reaso	ons for which have
Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Excess(+)
4216 01	70	0 0011	State Plan Normal		,	
4217 03	80		Other Housing Schemes O 9,00.00 S - State Plan Normal	9,00.00	9,32.22	(+)32.22
			Urban Poverty Alleviation (NR)	Γ) State Plan		
		0002	O 3,00.00	i) State I lan		
			S -	3,00.00	24,01.81	(+)21,01.81
		1296	Drainage O 20,00.00			
		4.00	S -	20,00.00	22,53.92	(+)2,53.92
		1297	Urban Development O 1,60,00.00			
			S 45,00.00	2,05,00.00	2,06,91.20	(+)1,91.20
		1299	Sewerage and Drainage			
			O 5,00.00	<b>5</b> 00 00	e 4 4 4 4	Z. N. A. Z. Z.
			S -	5,00.00	5,14.41	(+)14.41

<sup>\*</sup>Expenditure has been incurred under Major Head 4215-Capital Outlay on Water Supply and Sanitation on the basis of sanction issued by Administrative Department which is in contravention to the Financial Rules as per Para 15.4 and 15.5 of J & K Budget Manual.

Head				Total Grant/ oppropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Excess(+)
7610	201 0099	General				
		House building Adva O 50.00	nce (Govt Emp	<b>o</b> )		
		S -		50.00	1,19.38	(+)69.38
p ar G	ercentage of exp nd Urban Depar overnment in 1 utside bodies etc	and Plant Establishrenditure on Establish tment during the yea 955 for supervision arges depending on	ment and Tool or 2009-2010 is charges recover and 15 for Est	s and Plant to indicated bel erable for wo ablishment ch	the Works Outla ow, (The percen rks done for ot	ay in the Housing tage fixed by the her departments,
Year and	Head of Accou		ablishment charges c	Percentage Establishme charges to Wo out	rks Charges	Percentage of Tools and Plant Charges to Works Outlay
		(₹ in Lak	h)	(₹ in Lakh)		
2217	Urban Develo	pment Department				
	2009-2010	1,10.02	2,50,43.93	2,27,63	.07 0.26	0.24
4216	Capital Outlay	on Housing				
	2009-2010	9,32.21	-			-
4217	Capital Outlay Department	on Urban Developm	ient			
	2009-2010	2,45,38.32	8,91.12	3	.63 15,88.60	6.47

#### **GRANT NO. 20 - TOURISM DEPARTMENT**

### **MAJOR HEADS**

2406 3452 4406 5452	Forestry and Wild Life Tourism Capital Outlay on Forestry an Capital Outlay on Tourism	nd Wild Life	Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in thousand)	Excess (+) Saving (-)		
Revenue	:						
Voted-							
Original		74,43,06	74,43,06	69,23,31	(-)5,19,75		
Suppleme	entary	74,43,00		()0,12,10			
Amount s	surrendered during the year						
Capital:							
Voted-							
Original		98,54,10	4.42.02.22	4 54 55 20	(1) 55 0 4 00		
Suppleme	entary	15,28,22	1,13,82,32	1,71,77,30	(+)57,94,98		
Amount surrendered during the year							
Notes and	Notes and Comments:						

#### **Revenue Section**

- 1. Original Grant of ₹ 74,43.06 lakh proved excessive in view of the final saving of ₹ 5,19.75 lakh. No portion of the final saving of ₹5,19.75 lakh was anticipated and surrendered.
- 2. Significant saving occurred mainly under the following Heads/Schemes; reasons for which were not intimated.

Head			Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
2406 02 001	0099	General		,	
	1135	Provincial and District Offices, Ka O 8,05.19	shmir		
		S -	8,05.19	4,84.95	(-)3,20.24
2406 02 112	0099	General	3,00723	.,	( )=,==:= :
	1130	Public Gardens, Director Floricult	ure, Kashmir		
	1130	O 7,18.59	,		
		S -	7,18.59	6,83.10	(-)35.49
	1887	Cut Flower Project, Director Flori	culture, Kashmir		
		O 1,82.37			
		S -	1,82.37	1,32.52	(-)49.85
	2275	Public Gardens, Director Floricult	ure, Jammu		
		O 2,21.20 S -	2 21 20	1 00 00	( ) 22 21
3452 01 101	0099	General	2,21.20	1,98.89	(-)22.31
	1121	Director Tourism, Kashmir			
		O 1,31.34			
		S -	1.31.34	76.62	(-)54.72
3452 01 102	0099	General			
	0474	Director Tourism, Kashmir			
		O 3,93.96	2.02.07	2 22 20	()=4 (=
	2270	S -	3,93.96	3,22.29	(-)71.67
	2278	Director Tourism, Jammu O 1,08.34			
		S -	1,08.34	68.00	(-)40.34
3452 01 800	0099	General	1,00.51	00.00	()10.51
		Convention Complex			
		O 4,67.55			
		S -	4,67.55	75.00	(-)3,92.55
	1127	Gulmarg Project Organization			
		O 2,90.20			
			2,90.20	2,13.70	(-)76.50

Head		Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
3452 01 800 0099 1232	General Sonamarg Development Authority O 48.32 S -	48.32	36.24	(-)12.08
3452 80 001 0099	General			
2183 3452 80 104 0099	Director Tourism, Jammu O 1,60.98 S - General	1,60.98	1,47.68	(-)13.30
2279 3452 80 800 0011	Director Tourism, Jammu O 3,20.27 S - State Plan Normal	3,20.27	2,55.50	(-)64.77
2091	Kokernag Achabal Development Ar O 66.90 S -	uthority 66.90	12.50	(-)54.40

3. Entire provision under the following Head /Schemes remained unutilized throughout the year; reasons thereof were not communicated.

Head			Total Grant/
			Appropriation
			(₹ in Lakh)
3452 01 800	0099	General	,
	0118	Pahalgam Project Organization	3,89.00
	2299	Mubarak Mandi Jammu Heritage Society	26.00

4. Significant excess occurred mainly under the following Heads / Schemes; reasons for which were not intimated.

Head		Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Excess (+)
2406 02 001 0099	General		( —)	
	Director Floriculture, Kashm	ir		
	O 3,37.30			
	S -	3,37.30	4,11.39	(+)74.09
2203	Provincial and District Office	es, Jammu		
	O 7,36.01	-		
	S -	7,36.01	7,37.38	(+)1.37
2406 02 112 0099	General			
2276	Cut Flower Project, Director Jammu	Floriculture,		
	O 8.20			
	S -	8.20	9.23	(+)1.03
	General			
2277	Director Tourism, Jammu			
	O 1,07.66			
	S -	1,07.66	1,92.13	(+)84.47
	General			
0650	Patnitop Development Author	ority		
	O 68.99	<b>40.00</b>	02.22	(1)1422
1020	S -	68.99	83.32	(+)14.33
1932	Royal Spring Golf Course			
	O 84.26 S -	04.26	1.07.27	(+\22.11
3452 80 001 0099	General	84.26	1,06.37	(+)22.11
	Director Tourism, Kashmir			
2104	O 10,70.92			
	S -	10,70.92	15,22.45	(+)4,51.53
	5 -	10,70.72	15,22.75	(+)4,51.55
3452 80 104 0099	General			
1115	Tourism Information and Pul	blicity		
	O 1,65.51	•		
	S -	1,65.51	1,66.62	(+)1.11

Head	Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess (+)
		(₹ in Lakh)	
3452 80 800 0011 State Plan Normal			
2198 Other Development Authorities			
O 5,34.00			
S -	5,34.00	7,39.41	(+)2,05.41

5 Expenditure was incurred in respect of following Sub-Head without Budgetary provisions; reasons thereof were not communicated.

Head

Actual Expenditure

(₹ in Lakh)

2406 02 112 0099

1136 Director Floriculture 2,47.93

### **Capital Section**

6. Supplementary Grant of ₹ 15,28.22 Lakh proved insufficient in view of final excess of ₹57,94.98 lakh which requires regularization. Excess in the Grant occurred during the last three years as detailed below:

Year	Total Grant / Appropriation	Actual expenditure	Excess (+)
		(₹ in Lakh)	
2006-07	73,38.35	78,91.42	(+)5,53.07
2007-08	85,15.50	1,09,82.51	(+)24,67.01
2008-09	1,10,16.34	1,42,60.36	(+)32,44.02

7. Significant excess occurred mainly under the following Heads / Schemes; reasons for which were not communicated.

	not com	nmunic	ated.			
Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Excess (+)
4406	02 112	0011	State Plan Normal		,	
			Director Floriculture, Kashmir			
			O 7,50.00			
			S 7,08.00	14,58.00	15,81.50	(+)1,23.50
		2203	Director Floriculture, Jammu			. , -
			O 6,50.00			
			S 1,28.00	7,78.00	8,45.18	(+)67.18
5452	80 800	0011	State Plan Normal			. ,
		0646	SKICC/SKIGI			
		00.0	O 2,00.00			
			\$ -	2,00.00	2,50.00	(+)50.00
		0650	Patnitop Development Authority		,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	( )
			O 3,00.00			
			S -	3,00.00	3,67.50	(+)67.50
		2198	Other Development Authorities	,	,	( )
			O 20,00.00			
			S 4,92.22	24,92.22	41,73.43	(+)16,81.21
		0652	Tourism Works Plan			
			O 36,40.00			
			S -	36,40.00	88,04.94	(+)51,64.94
8.			rtly counterbalanced by saving us t communicated.	nder the following	Heads / Scheme	es; reasons for
Head				Total Grant/	Actual	Saving (-)
				Appropriation	Expenditure	
					(₹ in Lakh)	
5452	80 800	0011	State Plan Normal			
		0651	Corporation			
			O 3,00.00			
			S -	3,00.00	1,00.00	(-)2,00.00
		1232	Sonamarg Development Authori	ty		• •
			O 3,00.00			
			S -	3,00.00	2,75.00	(-)25.00

### GRANT NO. 20 (Concld.)

Head			Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
5452 80 800	0011	State Plan Normal		,	
	1892	Gulmarg Development Authorit	ty		
		O 3,85.00			
		S 50.00	4,35.00	1.18	(-)4,33.82
	1932	Royal Spring Golf Course			
		O 3,00.00			
		S -	3,00.00	2,50.00	(-)50.00
	2091	Kokernag Achabal Developmen	nt Authority		
		O 2,00.00			
		S -	2,00.00	53.97	(-)1,46.03
	1291	Cable Car Corporation			
		O 2,79.10			
		S 1,50.00	4,29.10	3,85.10	(-)44.00

9. Expenditure was incurred in respect of following Heads without budgetary provision; reasons thereof were not communicated

Head		Actual Expenditure
		(₹ in Lakh)
4406 01 800 0	0011 State Plan Normal	
2	2175 Director Forest Protection Force	48.16
4406 02 112 0	0031 State Plan Normal	
2	2297 Rashtriya Kissan Vikas Yojna	39.99
5452 80 800 0	0011 State Plan Normal	
1	054 Land Acquisition	1.36
	vision in respect of below noted Scheme remained un-utilized	throughout the year;
reasons the	reof were not communicated.	
Head		Total Grant/
		Appropriation
		(₹ in Lakh)
5452 80 800 00	011 State Plan Normal	
18	891 Pahalgham Development Authority	5,50.00

#### **GRANT NO. 21 – FOREST DEPARTMENT**

### **MAJOR HEADS**

<ul> <li>Soil and Water Conservat</li> <li>Forestry and Wild Life</li> <li>Ecology and Environmer</li> <li>Capital Outlay on Soil and</li> </ul>	nt	ation						
	Capital Outlay on Forestry and Wild Life Capital Outlay on Other Scientific and Environmental Research							
5425 Capital Odday off Office S	cientine and En	Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure  (₹ in thousand)	Excess (+) Saving (-)				
Revenue:			,					
Voted-								
Original	3,35,54,87	3,35,54,87	2,89,13,36	(-)46,41,51				
Supplementary	-	3,33,31,07	2,07,13,30	()10,11,31				
Amount surrendered during the	year			•••				
Capital:								
Voted-								
Original	96,36,00	96,36,00	48,41,15	( )47 04 95				
Supplementary  Amount surrendered during the y	- year	90,30,00	40,41,13	(-)47,94,85				
Notes and Comments:								

#### **Revenue Section**

1. Original provision of ₹ 3,35,54.87 lakh proved excessive in view of the final saving of ₹ 46,41.51 lakh. No portion of the final saving of ₹ 46,41.51 lakh was anticipated and surrendered. The saving to the tune of ₹ 26,08.57 lakh occurred during the year 2008-09 also.

2. Significant saving has occurred under the following Heads; reasons for which were not communicated.

COH	min	catcu.					
Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
						(₹ in Lakh)	
2402	102	0099	General				
		0355	Soil and Water ( Basis	Conservation on	Water Shed		
				,07.27			
			S.	_	4,07.27	53.95	(-) 3,53.32
		2178	Project Director	: IWDP Hills II	.,	00,70	() 0,000
			,	1,14.74			
			S	-	14,14.74	9,17.88	(-)4,96.86
2406 01	001	0099	General		,	,	( ) ,
		0349	Principal Chief	Conservator's O	ffice		
			O 1,84	1,67.06			
			S	-	1,84,67.06	1,37,89.36	(-)46,77.70
2406 01	101	0099	General				
		0352	Forest Conserva	ition and Develo	ppment		
			O	71.00			
			S	-	71.00	55.95	(-)15.05
2406 01	800	0099	General				
		2175	Director Forest	Protection Force	e		
			O 35	5,44.44			
			S	-	35,44.44	29,72.81	(-)5,71.63
		2176	Director Social I	Forestry			
			O 43	3,88.96			
			S	-	43,88.96	40,72.48	(-)3,16.48
		2177	Director State F	orest Institute			
				1,01.42			
			S	-	4,01.42	3,61.33	(-)40.09

Head		Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
3435 04 800 0	0099 General		(VIII Laxii)	
2	Secretary Pollution Control Bos O 6,42.27			() (/ 00
	S -	6,42.27	5,75.44	(-)66.83
	e Grant was partly counterbalanced lere not communicated.	by the excess under	the following H	eads; reasons
Head		Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess (+)
2402 001 0	0000 Conount		(₹ in Lakh)	
	0099 General			
1	O 11,97.59 S -		14.02.04	(1) 2 05 25
2406 01 070 0	0099 General	11,97.59	14,82.84	(+) 2,85.25
0	OSS Communication & Building OSS 47.00	45.00	(( (0	(1)40.60
2406 01 105 0	S - 0099 General	47.00	66.68	(+)19.68
0	O 12,99.50			
2406 01 800 0	S - 0031 Centrally Sponsored Scheme	12,99.50	13,53.43	(+)53.93
2	2295 Hokersar/ Surinsar/ Mansar/ I O 5.00	Pangong		
2406 02 110 0	S - 0031 Centrally Sponsored Scheme	5.00	6.60	(+)1.60
1	730 National Parks & Sanctuaries O 30.00			
	S -	30.00	2,26.09	(+)1,96.09

- 4. Against the Lumpsum provision of ₹ 2,69.14 lakh under Plan placed at the disposal of Director Ecology and Environment and Remote Sensing against the Sub-Head 2179 subordinate to Major Head 3435-Ecology and Environment, an expenditure of ₹16,30.68 lakh was incurred by different Drawing and Disbursing Officers under various schemes not contemplated in the Demand for Grants resulting in excess expenditure of ₹13,61.54 lakh which requires regularization.
- 5. Expenditure was incurred without Budgetary provision under the following Scheme; reasons for which were not communicated.

Head Expenditure

(₹ in Lakh)

2406 01 800 0031 Centrally Sponsored Schemes

0441 Development of Wild life

14.70

6. Entire provision in respect of the following Sub-Head remained unutilized throughout the year; reasons thereof have not been communicated.

Head					Total Grant/
Ticau					Appropriation
					(₹ in Lakh)
2406	01	800	0031	Centrally Sponsored Scheme	
			0480	T.S.D. Morari	5.00
			1005	National Aforestation Programme	30.00

#### **Capital Section**

- 7. Original provision of ₹96,36.00 lakh proved excess in view of final saving of ₹47,94.85 lakh. No portion of saving was anticipated and surrendered.
- 8. Persistent saving occurred during the last two years also.

Year	Total Grant/	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
	Appropriation		
		(₹ in Lakh)	
2007-08	53,21.83	34,96.64	(-)18,25.19
2008-09	68,55.25	44,54.62	(-)24,00.63

- 9. Entire provision of ₹ 38,44.00 lakh under 0871-Integrated Water Shed Development subordinate to MH 4402-Capital Outlay on Soil & Water Conservation has remained unutilized throughout the year; reasons thereof were not communicated.
- 10. Significant saving occurred mainly under the following Heads; reasons thereof have not communicated.

Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
						(₹ in Lakh)	
4406 01	800	0011	State Plan N	Vormal			
		0213	Wild life Pro	eservation			
			O	3,50.00			
			S	-	3,50.00	1,81.86	(-)1,68.14
		2175	Director Fo	rest Protection Forc	e		
			О	5,00.00			
			S	-	5,00.00	4,23.98	(-)76.02
4406 02	110	0031	Centrally Sp	onsored Scheme			
		0441	Developme	nt of Wild life			
			О	3,10.00			
			S	-	3,10.00	2,30.47	(-)79.53
5425	800	0011	State Plan N	Vormal			
		2152	Secretary Po	ollution Control Boa	rd		
			O	1,00.00			
			S	-	1,00.00	52.68	(-)47.32

11. Saving was counterbalanced by the excess under the following Sub- Heads; reasons for which were not communicated.

Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess (+)
						(₹ in Lakh)	
4402	102	0011	State Plan 1	Normal			
		0266	Soil Conser	rvation (Kashmir)			
			O	4,50.00			
			S	-	4,50.00	4,85.17	(+)35.17
4406 01	800	0011	State Plan 1	Normal			
		0200	Forest Terr	ritorial			
			O	12,00.00			
			S	-	12,00.00	19,38.39	(+)7,38.39

Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Excess (+)
4406	01	800	0011	State Plan Normal			
			2176	Director Social Forestry			
				O 5,50.00			
				S -	5,50.00	7,71.81	(+)2,21.81
			2177	Director State Forest Institute			
				O 1,50.00			
				S -	1,50.00	2,47.50	(+)97.50
12.		-		in respect of the following Sub we not been communicated.	-Head remained u	nutilized through	out the year;
	ieas	ons me	1601 112	ive not been communicated.		,	Total Grant/
Head							ppropriation
							(₹ in Lakh)
4406	01	800	0031	Centrally Sponsored Scheme			
			0434	Conservation of Wullar lake			41.00
			2295	Hokersar/ Surinsar/ Mansar/ I	Pangong		60.00
			1005	National Afforestation Program	nme		19,40.00
			1032	Conservation of TDS Morari W	Vetland		41.00
13.	Ex	penditu	ıre was	incurred without budgetary gr	ants under the fol	llowing Schemes;	
		-		communicated.			
Head							Actual
							Expenditure
							(₹ in Lakh)
4406	01	800		Centrally Sponsored Scheme			
				Prevention & Control of Fores	Fire Lines		20.85
				NAP-IAEP Chenani			64.74
4406	02	110		Centrally Sponsored Scheme			
				Wild life Sanctuaries			24.24
4406	02	800		State Plan Normal			
				Forest Territorial			6.69
			0213	Wild life Preservation			2,92.39

#### GRANT NO. 22 – IRRIGATION AND FLOOD CONTROL DEPARTMENT

MAJO	R HEADS			
2700	Major Irrigation			
2701	Medium Irrigation			
2702	Minor Irrigation			
2711	Flood Control and Drainage			
4701	Capital Outlay on Medium Irrigation			
4702	Capital Outlay on Minor Irrigation			
4711	Capital Outlay on Flood Control Projects			
		Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess (+) Saving (-)
			(₹ in thousand)	
Revenu	ue:		,	
Voted-				
Origina	d 2,86,56,03			
O		2,86,56,03	2,50,46,82	(-)36,09,21
Suppler	mentary -			
Amoun	nt surrendered during the year			
Capital	1:			
Voted-				
Origina	4,53,32,61			
0	, , ,	4,53,32,61	3,89,09,40	(-)64,23,21
Suppler	mentary -			
Amoun	nt surrendered during the year			•••
Notes a	and Comments:			

#### **Revenue Section**

- 1. Original provision of ₹2,86,56.03 lakh proved excessive in view of the final saving of ₹ 36,09.21 lakh. No portion of the final saving of ₹ 36,09.21 lakh was anticipated and surrendered.
- 2. Persistent saving as detailed below occurred during the last five years also.

  Total Grant/ Actual Saving (-)

Year	Total Grant/	Actual	Saving (-)
1 Cai	Appropriation	Expenditure	
		(₹ in lakh)	
2004-2005	2,14,88.49	2,09,04.05	(-)5,84.44
2005-2006	1,84,43.94	1,75,19.92	(-)9,24.02
2006-2007	1,99,05.51	1,88,62.09	(-)10,43.42
2007-2008	2,30,38.89	2,09,63.93	(-)20,74.96
2008-2009	2,28,14.46	2,15,67.50	(-)12,46.96

3. Significant Saving occurred mainly under the following Heads; reasons for which were not communicated.

con	nmunic	cated.					
Head						Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
						(₹ in Lakh)	
2700 01	001	0099	General				
		0855	Irrigation	ı, Jammu			
			О	4,59.41			
			S	-	4,59.41	3,51.57	(-)1,07.84
2701 04	001	0099	General				
		0849	Irrigation	,Kashmir			
			O	22,62.81			
			S	-	22,62.81	17,14.50	(-)5,48.31
		0855	Irrigation	ı, Jammu			
			O	13,87.04			
			S	_	13,87.04	11,66.22	(-)2,20.82
2702 80	001	0099	General				,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
		0342	Divisiona	al and Sub Div	risional Offices		
			Irrigation	ı, Jammu			
			O	67,49.42			
			S	-	67,49.42	56.15.32	(-)11,34.10
		0845	Ravi Taw	i Irrigation Co	omplex, Jammu		
			O	20,74.54			
			S	-	20,74.54	15,37.66	(-)5,36.88
		1448	Divisiona	al and Sub Div	risional Offices		.,
				ı, Kashmir			
			O	94,09.30			
			S	_	94,09.30	87,05.45	(-)7,03.85
2711 01	001	0099	General		,	,	() )
		0858	Divisiona	al and Sub Div	risional Offices, Jammu		
			О	19,49.40			
			S	_	19,49.40	15,96.41	(-)3,52.99
		1449	Flood Co	ontrol Departn	nent, Kashmir	•	.,,
			О	28,13.11	,		
			S	, _	28,13.11	26,35.03	(-)1,78.08
			~		20,10,11	_0,00.00	( ) - , , , , , , ,

- 4. Lumpsum provision of ₹4,59.41 lakh under Major Head 2700-Major Irrigation and ₹51,70.85 lakh under Major Head 2701- Medium Irrigation placed with the Controlling Officers without schematic break up deprived Audit in making comparison of excess/saving Sub-Head wise.
- 5. Entire provision under the following Heads has remained un-utilized throughout the year; reasons thereof have not been intimated

Head Total Grant/
Appropriation

(₹ in Lakh)

2702 80 001 0031 Centrally Sponsored Scheme

2702 80 001 0031 Centrally Sponsored Scheme

1448 Divisional and Sub Divisional Offices Irrigation Kashmir 30.00

6. Against the estimated recoveries of ₹ 0.50 lakh, ₹ 10.50 lakh and ₹ 0.50 lakh under Major Heads 2701-Medium Irrigation, 2702-Minor Irrigation and 2711-Flood Control and Drainage, recoveries to the tune of ₹ 2.93 lakh, ₹ 1.20 lakh and Nil respectively were effected.

#### **Capital Section**

- 7. The original provision of ₹ 4,53,32.61 lakh proved excessive in view of final saving of ₹ 64,23.21 lakh. No portion of the final saving of ₹ 64,23.21 lakh was anticipated and surrendered.
- 8. Lumpsum Plan provision of ₹ 1,03,40.00 lakh, ₹ 2,88,16.61 lakh and ₹ 61,76.00 lakh under Major Head 4701- Capital Outlay on Medium Irrigation, 4702-Capital Outlay on Minor Irrigation and 4711-Capital Outlay on Flood Control and Drainage without giving detailed schematic break up, deprived Audit in making comparison of excess/saving Sub- Head wise; reasons thereof were not communicated.
- 9. Suspense transactions: The expenditure in this Grant includes ₹ Nil under the Head "Suspense". An analysis of transaction accounted for under the Head in this Grant during 2009-2010 together with the Opening and Closing balances is given below:-

Particulars / Major Head of Account	Opening balance as on 1 <sup>st</sup> April 2009	Debits	Credits	Closing Balance as on 31 <sup>st</sup> March 2010.
		(₹ in Lal	kh)	
2701- Medium Irrigation-				
Purchases	(-) 60.663	-	-	(-)60.663
Stock	2,49.285	-	(-)2.93	2,46.355
Misc. P.W. Advance	54.187	-	_	54.187
Workshop Suspense	(-)0.27	-	_	(-)0.27
Total	2,42.539	-	(-)2.93	239.609

Particu	ılars / Major Head of Account	Opening balance as on 1st April 2009	Debits	Cred	lits	Closing Balance as on 31 <sup>st</sup> March 2010.
			(4	₹ in Lakh)		
2702-	Minor Irrigation-					
	Purchases	(-) 2.032		-	-	(-)2.032
	Stock	78,976		-	(-)1.20	77.776
	Misc. P.W. Advance	36.190		-	-	36.190
	Workshop Suspense	-		-	-	-
	Total	1,13,134		-	(-)1.20	1,11.934
2711-	Flood Control and Drainage					
	Purchases	0.110		-	-	0.110
	Stock	2,07.000		-	-	2,07.000
	Misc. P.W. Advance	3.137		-	-	3.137
	Workshop Suspense	-		-	-	-
	Total	2,10.247		-	-	2,10.247
4701-	Capital Outlay on Medium Irrigation-					
	Purchases	(-) 2,02.40		-	-	(-) 2,02.40
	Stock	2,96.279		-	-	2,96.279
	Misc. P.W. Advance	45.391		-	-	45.391
	Workshop Suspense	18.16		-	-	18.16
	Total	1,57.430		-	-	1,57.430
4711-	Capital Outlay on Flood Control Projects-					
	Purchases	-		-	-	
	Stock	6.83		-	-	6.83
	Misc. P.W. Advance	0.12		-	-	0.12
	Workshop Suspense	-		-	-	-
	Total	6.95		-	-	6.95

#### GRANT NO. 22 (Concld.)

10. Review of Tools and Plant Establishment charges of the Irrigation and Flood Control Department: The percentage of expenditure on Establishment and Tools and Plant to the Works Outlay in the Irrigation and Flood Control Department during 2007-2008 to 2009-2010 are indicated below, (The percentage fixed by the Government in 1955 for supervision charges recoverable for works done for other departments, outside bodies etc. range between 7.5 and 15 for Establishment charges and between 0.5 and 1 for Tools and Plant charges depending on the cost of works).

Year and Head of Account		Works Outlay	Establishment charges	Percentage of Establishment charges to Works outlay	Tools and Plant Charges	Percentage of Tools and Plant Charges to Works Outlay
			(₹ in Lakh)		(₹ in Lakh)	
2700-	Major Irrigation-					
	2007-2008	1,65.48	1,90.54	115.14	-	-
	2008-2009	33.56	3,29.97	983.22	-	-
	2009-2010	1,08.69	2,96.17	272.49	-	-
2701-	Medium Irrigation-					
	2007-2008	31,18.22	10,55.97	33.86	7.49	0.24
	2008-2009	5,85.45	37,02.16	632.36	8.00	1.36
	2009-2010	4,79.87	40,70.31	848.21	-	-
2702-	Minor Irrigation-					
	2007-2008	19,91.34	1,09,50.27	549.89	10.71	0.53
	2008-2009	7,83.56	1,26,38.64	1612.97	9.02	1.15
	2009-2010	8,46.47	1,49,88.56	1770.71	24.07	2.85
2711-	Flood Control and Draina	ge-				
	2007-2008	6,01.79	28,53.45	474.16	12.63	2.09
	2008-2009	5,11.33	29,51.67	577.25	15.27	2.98
	2009-2010	5,43.11	36,74.80	676.62	13.49	2.48
4701-	Capital Outlay on Medium	-				
	2007-2008	49,76.61	· ·	21.84	44.77	0.89
	2008-2009	35,78.41		175.88	22.57	0.63
	2009-2010	10,62.37	62,53.05	588.68	-	-
4702	Capital Outlay on Minor Is	rrigation				
	2007-2008	84,36.49	-	-	-	-
	2008-2009	1,24,80.86	-	-	-	-
	2009-2010	2,65,46.76		-	-	-
4711-	Capital Outlay on Flood C	,				
	2007-2008	28,70.00	29.56	1.02	-	
	2008-2009	56,26.63	1,38.14	2.45	-	-
	2009-2010	50,47.20	-	-	-	-

### GRANT NO.23 – PUBLIC HEALTH ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT

### MAJOR HEADS

Police			
Water Supply and Sanitation			
* * *	d Sanitation		
1		/ 1	T (1)
			Excess (+)
	Арргорпацог	•	Saving (-)
		(₹ in thousand)	
5 19 41	1 51		
3,17,11		4,96,60,82	(-)25,32,43
tary 2.51		, , ,	(, , ,
•	-,		
rrendered during the year			•••
3,34,00	0,00		
	3,45,31,00	5,05,00,28	(+) 1,59,69,28
11,31	1,00		
rrendered during the year			
Comments:			
t	Water Supply and Sanitation Capital Outlay on Water Supply an Capital Outlay on Other Social Ser  5,19,42  tary 2,52  crendered during the year  3,34,00  tary 11,32  crendered during the year	Water Supply and Sanitation Capital Outlay on Water Supply and Sanitation Capital Outlay on Other Social Services  Total Grant, Appropriation  5,19,41,51  5,21,93,25  tary 2,51,74  rrendered during the year  3,34,00,00  3,45,31,00  tary 11,31,00  rrendered during the year	Water Supply and Sanitation Capital Outlay on Water Supply and Sanitation Capital Outlay on Other Social Services  Total Grant / Appropriation Expenditure (₹ in thousand)  5,19,41,51 5,21,93,25 4,96,60,82  tary 2,51,74  rrendered during the year  3,34,00,00 3,45,31,00 5,05,00,28  rary 11,31,00  rrendered during the year

#### **Revenue Section**

1. Supplementary Grant of ₹ 2,51.74 lakh proved injudicious as the expenditure did not come even upto the level of original provision of ₹ 5,19,41.51 lakh resulting in saving of ₹ 25,32.43 lakh. No portion of final saving of ₹ 25,32.43 lakh was anticipated and surrendered.

				GRANT	<b>NO. 23</b> (Contd.)		
2.	_	cant sav unicated.	_	d mainly under	the following Head	ls; reasons ther	eof were not
Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation		Saving (-)
						(₹ in Lakh)	
2055	00 1	117 0099	General			,	
		0957	7 Internal Se Kashmir)	ecurity (Chief Eng	gineer PHE,		
			O Nasimini,	40.00			
			S	10.00	50.00	45.00	(-) 5.00
		1003			Department, Jammu	13.00	( ) 3.00
		1001	0	4,55.19	o cparament, jamma		
			S	53.72	5,08.9	1 4,87.86	(-)21.05
2215	01 (	001 0099	) General		,	,	()
		1003	l Public He	alth Engineering	Department, Kashmir	• -	
				2,15,55.81	1		
			S	1,88.02	2,17,43.83	3 2,11,54.64	(-)5,89.19
		1002	2 Public He	alth Engineering	Department, Jammu		
			O	2,83,90.51			
			S	-	2,83,90.5	2,75,42.63	(-)8,47.88
2215	01 1	101 0013	l State Plan	Normal			
		1003	l Public He O	alth Engineering 8,00.00	Department, Kashmi	:	
			S	-	8,00.0	4,30.62	(-)3,69.38
3.	Entire pro		emained un	utilized under tl	ne following Heads;	*	
Head	commune	acco					Total Grant/
11044							Appropriation
							(₹ in Lakh)
2215	01 101	0011 S	State Plan No	ormal			,
		1002 F	Public Health	n Engineering			6,00.00
			Department [				,
2215	01 102	0031	Centrally Spo	onsored Scheme			
		0693 A	Accelerated V	Water Supply Scho	eme		1,00.00

#### **Capital Section**

- 4. Supplementary provision of ₹11,31.00 lakh proved inadequate in view of final excess of ₹1,59,69.28lakh. The excess requires regularization.
- 5. Excess in the Grant occurred mainly under the following Head/Scheme which requires regularization.

Head				Total Grant/	Actual	Excess(+)
				Appropriation	Expenditure	
					(₹ in Lakh)	
4215	01 102	0031	Centrally Sponsored Scheme			
		0693	Accelerated Water Supply Scheme			
			O 1,97,00.00			
			S -	1,97,00.00	3,18,88.99	(+)1,21,88.99

- 6. Entire original provision of ₹ 2,00.00 lakh under Major Head 4215-Capital Outlay on Water Supply and Sanitation placed for Swajaldhara (Centrally Sponsored Scheme) and Supplementary provision of ₹1,31.00 lakh under Major head 4250- Capital Outlay on Other Social Service placed for Earthquake related work has remained unutilized throughout the year; reasons for which were not communicated
- 7. The State Government has placed the budgetary provision of ₹ 1,45,00.00 lakh (Original ₹ 1,35,00.00 lakh and supplementary ₹ 10,00.00 lakh) under Major head 4215-Capial Outlay on Water Supply and Sanitation against the controlling officers viz., Chief Engineer Public Health Engineering Department, Kashmir and Chief Engineer Public Health Engineering Department Jammu, but the subordinate officers incurred the expenditure on different schemes having no provision in the Demand for Grants as approved by the Legislature thereby violating basic Govt. Accounting Principle as established in the J&K State Budget Manual. The deviation from prescribed procedure in formulating the actual Demand for Grants and incurring of expenditure by the subordinate officers on the schemes not contemplated in the approved Demand for Grants deprived audit from ascertaining whether the expenditure was incurred on any New Services/ New Instrument of Service and also in making comparison of excess/ saving sub-head wise.
- 9. Suspense Transactions: The expenditure in the Grant includes ₹ Nil under the Head "Suspense". The nature of transactions under the Head Suspense and the accounting procedure have been explained in Note:- 12 of Grant No: 5-Ladakh Affairs Department. An analysis of transactions accounted for under this Head in the Grant during 2009-2010 together with the Opening and Closing balance is given below:-

Particu		RANT NO. 23 (C Opening balance as on 1 <sup>st</sup> April 2009	ontd.) Debits	Credits	Closing Balance as on 31 <sup>st</sup> March 2010
			( <b>₹</b> in ]	Lakh)	
2215	Water Supply and Sanitation-		`	,	
	Purchases	72.82	-	_	72.82
	Stock	(-)3,09.31	-	90.86	(-)4,00.17
	Miscellaneous Public Works Advance	ce 2,54.75	-	-	2,54.75
	Workshop Suspense	(-) 9.94	-	-	(-) 9.94
	Total	(+)8.32	-	90.86	(-)82.54
4215-	Capital Outlay on Water Supply & S	Sanitation-			
	Purchases	(-) 6,78.11	-	-	(-) 6,78.11
	Stock	4,05.27	-	-	4,05.27
	Miscellaneous Public Works Advance	94.05	-	-	94.05
	Workshop Suspense	0.01		_	0.01
	Total	(-) 1,78.78	-	-	(-) 1,78.78

10. Review of Establishment of Tools and Plant Charges of the Public Health Engineering Department: - The percentage which the expenditure on Establishment of Tools and Plant bore to the Works Outlay in the Public Health Engineering Department during 2007-2008 to 2009-2010 are indicated below: (The percentage fixed by the Government in 1955 for supervision charges recoverable for works done for other departments, outside bodies etc. range between 7.5 and 15 for Establishment Charges and between 0.5 and 1 for Tools and Plant Charges depending on the cost of works).

Year and He	ad of Account	Works Outlay	Establishment Charges	Percentage of Establishment Charges to Works Outlay	Tools and Plant Charges	Percentage of Tools and Plant Charges to Works Outlay
		(₹ :	in Lakh)		(₹ in	Lakh)
2215-	Water Supply and Sanitation-					
	2007-2008	69,71.58	2,00,81.07	2,88.04	35.64	0.51
	2008-2009	20,30.31	4,10,66.62	2022.67	1,08.45	5.34
	2009-2010	19,58.69	4,70,90.05	24,04.16	81.42	4.16

194

### GRANT NO. 23 (Concld.)

Year and He	ead of Account	Works E Outlay	Establishment Charges	Percentage of Establishment Charges to Works Outlay	Tools and Plant Charges	Percentage of Tools and Plant Charges to Works Outlay
		(₹ in	Lakh)		(₹	in Lakh)
4215-	Capital Outlay on Water Supply & Sanitation					
	2007-2008	2,88,56.62	-	-	4,12.95	1.43
	2008-2009	4,96,30.16	6,83.06	1.38	2,91.11	0.59
	2009-2010	4,96,60.76	1,51.03	0.30	6,88.48	1.39

## GRANT NO. 24 – HOSPITALITY, PROTOCOL AND TOSHAKHANA DEPARTMENT MAJOR HEADS

2055	Police				
2059	Public Works				
2070	Other Administrative Services				
2216	Housing				
4059	Capital Outlay on Public Works				
			Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in thousand)	Excess (+) Saving (-)
Reven	ue:			,	
Voted-					
Origin	al 1,00,2	28,50	1,06,45,79	1,01,29,68	(-)5,16,11
Supple	ementary 6,	17,29	1,00,10,77	1,01,22,00	( )5,10,11
	nt surrendered during the year				
Capita	ıl:				
Voted-					
Origin	al	-			
			-	46,91	(+)46,91
	mentary	-			
Amou	nt surrendered during the year				

### Notes and Comments:

#### **Revenue Section**

- 1. Supplementary Grant of ₹ 6,17.29 lakh proved excessive in view of the final saving of ₹5,16.11 lakh. No portion of final saving was anticipated and surrendered.
- 2. Persistent saving in the Grant occurred during the last five years also as detailed below:-

Year	Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
		(₹ in Lakh)	
2004-2005	20,43.53	11,37.32	(-)9,06.21
2005-2006	21,70.73	20,05.27	(-)1,65.46
2006-2007	79,83.49	71,55.69	(-)8,27.80
2007-2008	88,79.84	71,87.14	(-)16,92.70
2008-2009	95,66.13	89,11.14	(-)6,54.99

3. Saving in the Grant occurred under the following Heads/Schemes; reasons for which were not intimated.

mu	macc	1.					
Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
2055	117	0099	General			()	
		0464	Resident Co	ommissioner, N	Iew Delhi		
			O	14,86.63			
			S	_	14,86.63	14,66.98	(-)19.65
2059 80	103	0099	General		,	,	``
		0459	Furnishing				
			0	85.00			
			S	12.70	97.70	55.70	(-)42.00
2070	800	0099	General				()
		0464		ommissioner, N	Jew Delhi		
		0.0.	0	6,29.71			
			S	-	6,29.71	5,46.09	(-)83.62
		0486	Trade Agen	cv Mumbai	3,=,,,,	2,13137	()00102
		0.00	0	59.07			
			S	-	59.07	44.71	(-)14.36
		0791	Hospitality :	and Protocol E	Department, Jammu		()
			O	2,11.37	1 - ,,		
			S	-	2,11.37	1,91.80	(-) 19.57
		0792	Hospitality	and Protocol F	Department, Kashmir		
		0172	O O	3,46.31	repartment, Rasimin		
			S	5,40.51	3,46.31	2,96.13	(-)50.18
2216 01	700	0099	General	_	5,70.51	2,70.13	(-)30.10
2210 01	700	0481	Maintenanc				
		0401	O	8,00.00			
			S	*	0.50.00	5.54	( ) 0 44 46
		0515		1,50.00	9,50.00	5.54	(-)9,44.46
		0515	Constructio				
			O	3,80.00	F 00 00	25/55	()1.02.42
			S	1,20.00	5,00.00	3,76.57	(-)1,23.43

### GRANT NO. 24 (Concld.)

4. Saving was partly counterbalanced by the excess under the following Heads/Schemes; reasons thereof were not communicated.

Head	creor	were no	st communicated.	Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Excess (+)
2055	117	0099	General		,	
		1824	Director Estates O 34,00.00 S 2,72.61	36,72.61	37,57.74	(+)85.13
2070	800	0099	General			
2216 01	700	0793 0099	Director Hospitality and Protocol O 2,68.50 S - General	2,68.50	2,82.59	(+)14.09
		0417	Estates Divisions			
		0502	O 11,55.35 S 12.26	11,67.61	16,90.59	(+)5,22.98
		0583	Dy. Director Estates O 8,30.39			
			S 36.44	8,66.83	8,68.55	(+)1.72
		1824	Director Estates			
			O 3,60.33 S 13.28	3,73.61	5,31.20	(+)1,57.59

### **Capital Section**

5. Entire Expenditure of ₹ 46.91 lakh { ₹0.82 lakh on Non Functional Buildings (PWD) Kashmir, ₹ 6.09 lakh on Non-Functional Buildings (PWD) Jammu and ₹ 40.00 lakh on Acquisition of Land-Buildings and construction} under Major Head 4059-Capital Outlay on Public Works has been incurred without Budgetary provision; reasons thereof have not been communicated.

### GRANT NO. 25 –LABOUR, STATIONERY AND PRINTING DEPARTMENT

### MAJOR HEADS

2058 2230	Stationery and Printing Labour and Employment				
4058	Capital Outlay on Stationery an	_			
4250	Capital Outlay on Other Social	1 Services			
			Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess (+) Saving (-)
				(₹ in thousand)	
Reven	ue:			,	
Voted-					
Origina	al	36,02,92			
Supple	mentary	-	36,02,92	83,71,60	(+)47,68,68
Amou	nt surrendered during the year				•••
Capita	վ։				
Voted-					
Origin	al	69,65,27			
Supple	mentary	2,11,01	71,76,28	1,96,51	(-)69,79,77
Amour	nt surrendered during the year				•••
Notes	and Comments				

#### **Revenue Section**

- 1. Original provision of ₹ 36,02.92 lakh proved meagre in view of excess of ₹ 47,68.68 lakh. The final excess of ₹ 47,68.68 lakh needs regularization.
- 2. Persistent excess in the Grant occurred during the last five years also.

Year	Total Grant/	Actual	Excess (+)
	Appropriation	Expenditure	
		(₹ in Lakh)	
2004-2005	25,39.95	29,67.45	(+)4,27.50
2005-2006	23,74.60	34,95.24	(+)11,20.64
2006-2007	25,19.84	36,69.46	(+)11,49.62
2007-2008	27,71.22	39,29.73	(+)11,58.51
2008-2009	32,07.18	41,79.73	(+) 9,72.55

3. Significant excess occurred mainly under following Heads; reasons for which have not been communicated.

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess(+)
2058	001	0099 1625	General Director Stationery and Supp	lies	(₹ in Lakh)	
2058	001	0011 1625	O 68.57 S - State Plan Nomal Director Stationery and Supp	68.57	3,28.15	(+)2,59.58
2230 01	001	0099	O 10.63 S - General	10.63	14.47	(+)3.84
		1633	Labour Commissioner O 1,14.72 S -	1,14.72	28,33.80	(+)27,19.08
2230 01	102	0099 1639	General District Labour Welfare Scheme			
2230 02	001	0099 1641	O 35.69 S - General Director Employment	35.69	42.18	(+)6.49
			O 5,90.64 S -	5,90.64	32,09.67*	(+)26,19.03

<sup>\*</sup>The expenditure includes ₹ 6,86.50 lakh as subsidy, ₹ 15,98.14 lakh as Margin Money and ₹ 1,25.00 lakh as Plan expenditure transfer against which there is no separate provision provided in the Demand for Grants.

200

4. Saving occurred mainly under the following Heads; reasons for which have not been communicated.

CO	mmumc	atea.				
Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
2058	101	0099	General		,	
		1626	Stationery Depot, Jammu			
			O 2,39.82			
			S -	2,39.82	0.01	(-)2,39.81
		1627	Stationery Depot, Srinagar			
			O 2,29.31			
			S -	2,29.31	1,76.11	(-)53.20
2058	103	0099	General			
		1630	Government Press, Jammu			
			O 8,37.47			
			S -	8,37.47	6,42.44	(-)1,95.03
		1631	Government Press, Srinagar			
			O 7,84.76			
			S -	7,84.76	6,73.76	(-)1,11.00
2230 01	001	0099	General			
		1634	Regional Office's Labour			
			O 4,16.93			
			S -	4,16.93	1,75.90	(-)2,41.03
2230 01	102	0099	General			
		1638	Factories			
			O 38.29			
			S -	38.29	14.03	(-) 24.26
2230 01	103	0099	General			
		1645	Employment Insurance			
			O 2,02.00			
			S -	2,02.00	95.18	(-) 1,06.82

#### GRANT NO. 25 (Concld.)

5. Expenditure was incurred without budgetary provision under the following Head/ Schemes; reasons for which were not communicated.

Head			Actual
			Expenditure
			(₹ in Lakh)
2230	01 800	Other expenditure	67.46
2230	02 101	Employment Scheme	71.70

#### **Capital Section**

- Supplementary Grant of ₹ 2,11.01 lakh proved unjustified as the expenditure did not come even up to the level of original provision of ₹ 69,65.27 lakh. No portion of the final saving of ₹69,79.77 lakh was anticipated and surrendered.
- 7. Persistent saving occurred during the last five years also, details of which are given below.

0	0	,		0
Year		Total Grant/	Actual	Saving (-)
		Appropriation	Expenditure	
			(₹ in Lakh)	
2004-2005		19,63.50	50.79	(-)19,12.71
2005-2006		16,63.50	1,30.42	(-)15,33.08
2006-2007		16,63.50	1,15.29	(-)15,48.21
2007-2008		36,16.07	1,45.95	(-) 34,70.12
2008-2009		78,04.26	3,60.72	(-) 74,43.54

8. Significant excess occurred mainly under the following Head/ Schemes; reasons for which were not intimated.

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Excess (+)
4058	103	0011	State Plan Normal		,	
		1630	Government Press, Jammu			
			O 46.00			
			S -	46.00	52.98	(+)6.98
		1631	Government Press, Srinagar			
			O 1,00.00			
			S -	1,00.00	1,24.66	(+)24.66
4058	800	0011	State Plan Normal			. ,
		1625	Director Stationery and Supplies			
			O 13.05			
			S -	13.05	18.88	(+)5.83

9. Entire provision of ₹ 70,17.23 lakh (Original ₹ 68,06.22 lakh and Supplementary ₹2,11.01 lakh) under Major Head 4250-Capital Outlay on Other Social Services remained unutilized throughout the year; reasons for which were not communicated.

### **GRANT NO. 26 – FISHERIES DEPARTMENT**

### MAJOR HEADS

2405	Fisheries	

4405 Capital Outlay on Fisheries				
		Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess (+) Saving (-)
			(₹ in thousand)	
Revenue:				
Voted-				
Original	29,42,44	20.00.04	20.70 ((	()1 20 10
Supplementary	66,40	30,08,84	28,78,66	(-)1,30,18
Amount surrendered during the year				
Capital:				
Voted-				
Original	10,05,00	40.05.00	40.50.00	(1) <b>=</b> 4.00
Supplementary	-	10,05,00	10,59,80	(+)54,80
Amount surrendered during the year				
Notes and Comments:				

#### **Revenue Section**

- 1. Supplementary Grant of ₹ 66.40 lakh proved injudicious as the expenditure did not come even upto the level of Original provision of ₹ 29,42.44 lakh resulting in saving of ₹ 1,30.18 lakh . No portion of final saving was anticipated and surrendered
- 2. Persistent saving in the Grant occurred during the last five years also.

Year	Total Grant/	Actual	Saving (-)
	Appropriation	Expenditure	
		(₹ in Lakh)	
2004-2005	16,53.87	15,73.33	(-)80.54
2005-2006	19,43.85	18,18.69	(-)1,25.16
2006-2007	19,37.41	18,97.97	(-)39.44
2007-2008	21,64.30	21,54.31	(-)9.99
2008-2009	23,14.70	22,62.94	(-) 51.76

3.	_		Grant occurred mainly under the	e following Scheme; re	asons for which h	ave not been
Head	commu	nicated	•	Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving (-)
					(₹ in Lakh)	
2405	001		General Dy. Director Fisheries	7,16.41	11.37	(-)7,05.04
4.			tly counterbalanced by the exce	ss under the following	Head; reasons fo	r which have
Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess(+)
					(₹ in Lakh)	
2405	001		General Director Fisheries O 22,21.03			
5.			S 66.40 nder the following Head was t been communicated.	22,87.43 incurred without Buc		(+)5,00.31 reasons for
Head	winch	iave no	been communeated.			Actual
						Expenditure
2405	800	0031	Centrally Sponsored Scheme			(₹ in Lakh)
		0874		mplementation		76.55
			Capital	Section		
6.			ion of ₹ 10,05.00 lakh proved uires regularization.	insufficient in view of	of the excess of	₹ 54.80
7.		over th	e provision occurred under th	e following Head; reas	sons for which ha	ave not been
Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess(+)
					(₹ in Lakh)	
4405	800	0011	State Plan Normal			
		0904	Building Work Programme O 8,50.00			
			S	8,50.00	9,44.67	(+)94.67

8.

4405

800

0031

### GRANT NO. 26 (Concld.)

Expenditure under the following Schemes was incurred without Budgetary provision; reasons for

	which have	ve not	been communicated.	
Head				Actual
				Expenditure
				(₹ in Lakh)
4405	001	0011	State Plan Normal	
		1000	Dy. Director Fisheries	11.26
4405	800	0031	Centrally Sponsored Schemes	
		2297	Rashtriya Krishi Vikas Yojna	1,03.88
9.			n under the following Schemes remained un-utilized throughot been communicated.	ghout the year; reasons
Head				Total Grant/
				Appropriation

Centrally Sponsored Scheme

Programme

0914 Welfare of Fishermen

0874 Assistance for Wild Life and Implementation

(₹ in Lakh)

1,00.00

55.00

#### **GRANT NO. 27 - HIGHER EDUCATION DEPARTMENT**

MAJC	OR HEADS			
2202	General Education			
2203	Technical Education			
2205	Art and Culture			
2215	Water Supply and Sanitation			
2230	Labour and Employment			
4202	Capital Outlay on Education, Sports, A	rt and Culture		
4250	Capital Outlay on Other Social Services			
		Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess (+) Saving (-)
			(₹ in thousand)	
Rever	nue:		(	
Voted	-			
Origin	2,75,95,84	2,75,95,84	4,50,25,47	(+)1,74,29,63
Supple	ementary -			
Amou	int surrendered during the year			
Capit	al:			
Voted	-			
Origin	nal 1,91,72,00	1,91,72,00	1,28,23,16	(-)63,48,84
Supple	ementary -			
Amou	int surrendered during the year			
Notes	and Comments:			

#### **Revenue Section**

- 1. Original provision of ₹ 2,75,95.84 lakh proved meagre in view of the excess of ₹ 1,74,29.63 lakh. The final excess of ₹ 1,74,29.63 lakh needs regularization. Excess of ₹ 8,29.85 lakh and ₹ 39,04.07 lakh occurred during the last two years also.
- 2. Provision of ₹ 46,00.18 lakh (Non-Plan) and ₹ 5,13.86 lakh (Plan)under Major Head 2203-Techinical Education, had been placed in lumpsum with Controlling Officers, in the approved Demand for Grant. The Drawing and Disbursing Officers have incurred the expenditure on the Schemes not contemplated in the approved Demand for Grants. This has deprived Audit in making comparison of excess/saving Sub-Head wise; reasons for placing the funds with the Controlling Officers have not been intimated.

3. Excess over the provision occurred mainly under the following Head/ Schemes; reasons for which have not been intimated.

	nave	not be	en mu	nated.			
Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess(+)
					(₹	in Lakh)	
2202	03	102	0099	General	( -		
	0.5	102		Grants to Jammu University			
			0550	O 43,81.00			
				S -	43,81.00	50,85.80	(+)7,04.80
2202	03	104	0099	General	+5,01.00	50,05.00	(1)7,04.00
2202	0.5	10-1	0531	Grant-in-aid for other Colleges			
			0331	O 1,25.47			
				S -	1,25.47	3,30.56	(+)2,05.09
			0541		1,23.71	3,30.30	(1)2,03.07
			0371	O 7,73.36			
				S -	7,73.36	8,91.00	(±\1.17.64
							(+)1,17.64
4.				counterbalanced by the saving ur	nder the following	g Heads; reason	is for which have
	not l	been in	itimateo	d.	Total Grant/	Agtaval	Sazina ()
Head					Total Grant/	Actual	Saving(-)
Head					Appropriation	Expenditure	
TICACI					Appropriation	_	
	0.2	4.02	0000			Expenditure in Lakh)	
2202	03	102		General		_	
	03	102	0099 0549	Grants to Kashmir University		_	
	03	102		Grants to Kashmir University O 52,49.00	(₹	in Lakh)	
	03	102	0549	Grants to Kashmir University O 52,49.00 S -		in Lakh)	(-)8,00.46
	03	102		Grants to Kashmir University O 52,49.00 S - Grants to PG Class of KU	(₹	in Lakh)	(-)8,00.46
	03	102	0549	Grants to Kashmir University O 52,49.00 S - Grants to PG Class of KU O 16.03	( <b>₹</b>	in Lakh) 44,48.54	<b>\</b>
2202			0549 1258	Grants to Kashmir University O 52,49.00 S - Grants to PG Class of KU O 16.03 S -	(₹	in Lakh)	(-)8,00.46 (-)11.03
		102	<ul><li>0549</li><li>1258</li><li>0099</li></ul>	Grants to Kashmir University O 52,49.00 S - Grants to PG Class of KU O 16.03 S - General	( <b>₹</b>	in Lakh) 44,48.54	<b>\</b>
2202			0549 1258	Grants to Kashmir University O 52,49.00 S - Grants to PG Class of KU O 16.03 S - General Government Degree College	( <b>₹</b>	in Lakh) 44,48.54	<b>\</b>
2202			<ul><li>0549</li><li>1258</li><li>0099</li></ul>	Grants to Kashmir University O 52,49.00 S - Grants to PG Class of KU O 16.03 S - General Government Degree College O 92,25.82	52,49.00 16.03	44,48.54 5.00	(-)11.03
2202	03	103	0549 1258 0099 0534	Grants to Kashmir University O 52,49.00 S - Grants to PG Class of KU O 16.03 S - General Government Degree College O 92,25.82 S -	( <b>₹</b>	44,48.54 5.00	<b>\</b>
2202	03		0549 1258 0099 0534 0011	Grants to Kashmir University O 52,49.00 S - Grants to PG Class of KU O 16.03 S - General Government Degree College O 92,25.82 S - State Plan Normal	52,49.00 16.03	44,48.54 5.00	(-)11.03
2202	03	103	0549 1258 0099 0534 0011	Grants to Kashmir University O 52,49.00 S - Grants to PG Class of KU O 16.03 S - General Government Degree College O 92,25.82 S - State Plan Normal Government Degree College	52,49.00 16.03	44,48.54 5.00	(-)11.03
2202	03	103	0549 1258 0099 0534 0011	Grants to Kashmir University O 52,49.00 S - Grants to PG Class of KU O 16.03 S - General Government Degree College O 92,25.82 S - State Plan Normal	52,49.00 16.03	5.00 44,48.54 5.00	(-)11.03

Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Saving(-)
						(₹ in Lakh)	
2202	03	104	0099 2264	General Gandhi Memorial College Srinagar O 1,38.00	(Non-Migrant),		
2202	0.2	107	0000	S -	1,38.00	49.80	(-)88.20
2202	03	107	0099 0545	General Bad Pocket O 10.00			
2205		102	0099	S - General	10.00	1.14	(-)8.86
2203		102	0555	Grants to Academy of Art Languages O 10,18.00	ts, Culture and		
5.	Evn	anditu	ra unda	S - er the following Heads was	10,18.00	9,93.50	(-)24.50
٥.	_		itimate		mearred without bu	agetary provision	; leasons meleor
Head							Actual Expenditure
							(₹ in Lakh)
2202	03	001	0011	State Plan Normal			
			1340	Education Commissioner			1,93,11.15
2202	03	107	0011	State Plan Normal			
			0296	Merit-cum-Poverty			2.28
2215	01	001	0099	General			2.22
			1001	Public Health Engineering	g Department, Kmr.		2.22
6.		-		under the following Scher communicated.	nes remained unutili	zed throughout t	the year; reasons
Head							Total Grant/ Appropriation (₹ in Lakh)
2202	03	104		General Vishwabharti Women Coll Rainawari Srinagar	ege		93.00

#### GRANT NO. 27. (Concld.)

Head Total Grant/
Appropriation
(₹ in Lakh)

2230 02 001 0011 State Plan Normal 1644 Craftsman Training

2,50.00

#### **Capital Section**

- 7. In the Capital section, Original provision of ₹ 1,91,72.00 lakh proved excessive in view of final saving of ₹ 63,48.84 lakh. No portion of final saving of ₹ 63,48.84 lakh was anticipated and surrendered.
- 8. Persistent saving as detailed below has occurred during the last four years also.

Year	Total Grant/ A Appropriation Expend		Saving (-)
		(₹ in Lakh)	
2005-2006	73,83.16	59,62.19	(-)14,20.97
2006-2007	83,03.53	61,87.76	(-)21,15.77
2007-2008	1,01,20.00	45,72.00	(-)55,48.00
2008-2009	1,69,48.10	89,73.46	(-)79,74.64

- 9. Lump sum provision of ₹ 1,78, 22.00 lakh under Major Head 4202-Capital Outlay on Education, Sports and Art and Culture without giving detailed break-up deprived Audit in making comparison of Excess/Saving Sub-Head wise. Out of this provision an amount of ₹ 9,00.00 lakh kept for Modernisation of ITIS under Group Head 0031-Centrally Sponsored Schemes remained unutilized throughout the year.
- 10. Entire provision of ₹ 13,50.00 lakh under Major Head 4250-Capital Outlay on Other Social Services remained unutilized throughout the year; reasons for which were not communicated. Entire provision for the years 2004-05 to 2008-09 also remained un-utilized during these years; reasons for which were not communicated.

#### GRANT NO. 28 - RURAL DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

MAJOR HEADS			
<ul> <li>Nutrition</li> <li>Special Programme for Rural Development</li> <li>Other Rural Development Programme</li> </ul>			
4515 Capital Outlay on Other Rural Development	t Programmes		
	Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess (+) Saving (-)
Revenue:		(₹ in thousand)	
Revenue:			
Voted-			
Original 1,49,22,64	4 40 00 44	4.07.47.00	() 4.4 <b>==</b> 0.7
Supplementary -	1,49,22,64	1,37,45,29	(-)11,77,35
Amount surrendered during the year			•••
Charged			
Original -			
	2,22	2,22	-
Supplementary 2,22			
Amount surrendered during the year			•••
Capital:			
Voted-			
Original 1,74,01,44	1 74 01 44	1 (1 01 50	()12.10.05
Supplementary -	1,74,01,44	1,61,81,59	(-)12,19,85
Amount surrendered during the year			
Notes and Comments:			

### **Revenue Section**

1. Original provision of ₹ 1,49,22.64 lakh proved excessive in view of the final saving of ₹ 11,77.35 lakh. No portion of final saving of ₹ 11,77.35 lakh was anticipated and surrendered. Saving of ₹ 2,57.82 lakh occurred during the last year also.

2. Significant saving occurred mainly under the following Heads/Schemes; reasons for which were not communicated.

	ποι	COIIIII	umcatt	1.			
Head					Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
2236	80	800	0099	General		(VIII Lanni)	
			1839	Applied Nutrition O 3,68.44 S -	3,68.44	2,63.49	(-)1,04.95
2501	02	800	0011	State Plan Normal			
			0003	IRDP, Jammu O 3,50.00			
			0004	S - IRDP, Kashmir O 5,76.00	3,50.00	10.25	(-)3,39.75
2515		001	0099	S - General	5,76.00	1,07.91	(-)4,68.09
			0105	Agriculture Producti Jammu O 23,85.47		20.07.00	( ) <b>2</b> 00 50
2515		102	0099	S - General	23,85.47	20,85.89	(-)2,99.58
			0051	Community Develop O 41,83.31 S -	oment and Panchayat, Kash 41,83.31	mir 25,45.83	(-) 16,37.48
			0107	Bench Mark Survey	·	,	
				O 14.76 S -	14.76	8.79	(-)5.97
			0109		r Development , Jammu		
				O 1,15.30		07.51	() 40 5 (
				S -	1,15.30	96.54	(-) 18.76

211

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
2515	102	0099	General		,	
		0111	Director Rural Development, Jammu			
			O 2,91.19			
			S -	2,91.19	1,67.89	(-)1,23.30
		0376	Community Development and Jammu(CDP)	d Panchayats,		
			O 22,56.95			
			S -	22,56.95	19,28.15	(-)3,28.80
		0574	Bench Mark Survey, Kashmir			
			O 14.76			
			S -	14.76	4.04	(-) 10.72
2515	800	0099	General			
		0097	Rural Engineering Department, Jammu			
			O 7,40.14			
			S -	7,40.14	6,19.77	(-)1,20.37
		0099	Distt. Panchayat Officer, Jammu			
			O 94.05			
			S -	94.05	56.49	(-)37.56
		0487	Rural Engineering Department Kashmir	,		
			O 2,94.14			
			S -	2,94.14	2,38.79	(-)55.35
		0548	District Panchayat Officer, Kashmir			
			O 1,76.23			
			S -	1,76.23	81.56	(-)94.67

3. The saving was partly counterbalanced by the excess under the following Heads/Schemes; reasons for which were not communicated.

Head						Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Excess (+)
2501	01	800	0099	General			,	
			0230		tion 18.34	1,18.34	1,65.58	(+) 47.24
2501	02	800	0011	Sate Plan N	ormal			, ,
			0059	,	la 44.76 -	44.76	54.54	(+) 9.78
2515		001	0099			11.70	31.31	(1) 7.10
			0029	Kashmir	ommissioner I 23.38	Development,		
			0055	S Agriculture Kashmir	- production of	1,23.38 ficers /BDOs,	1,31.27	(+) 7.89
2515		102	0099	S		25,89.14	33,39.10	(+) 7,49.96
			0118		ural Developn 18.61	nent, Kashmir		
				S	-	1,18.61	1,34.70	(+) 16.09
4.				incurred witho		ovisions under the	e following Sub-l	neads; reasons
Head	are.	leor na	ave not	been communic	ateu.			Actual Expenditure (Lakh of ₹)
2236	02	102	0031	Centrally Spons	sored			,
2501	01	800	1287 0011	Scheme Integrated Child State Plan Norr		nt Schemes		1.37
			1956	DRDA				51.28

			GRANT NO. 28 (Contd.)
Head			Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)
2515	- 001	0011	State Plan Normal
2515	- 102	0376	Community Development and 16,20.70 Panchayat General
2010	102	0235	Upgrading of Community Assets Kashmir  1.68
2515	- 800	0031	Centrally Sponsored Scheme
		0230	Rural Sanitation 28.72
			nder following Heads remained unutilized throughout the year; the reasons for en intimated.
Head			Total Grant/ Appropriation
			(₹ in Lakh)
2501	02 80	001	1 State Plan Normal
		005	2 DPAP, Udhampur 37.67
2515	- 8	00 003	1 Centrally Sponsored Scheme
		9866	Assistance under Backward Region Grant 30.00 Fund (BRGF)
			Capital Section
6.	lakh. N	lo portio	on of $\mathbb{Z}$ 1,74,01.44 lakh proved excessive in view of final saving of $\mathbb{Z}$ 12,19.85 n of final saving was anticipated and surrendered. Saving of $\mathbb{Z}$ 74,44.63 lakh the last year also.
7.	Significa intimate		g occurred mainly under the following Heads; reasons for which have not been
Head			Total Grant/ Actual Saving (-) Appropriation Expenditure
4545	4 /	001	(₹ in Lakh)
4515	10	02 001	1 State Plan Normal
		070	4 Community Development, Kashmir

5,00.00 1,20.92 (-) 3,79.08

Ο

S

5,00.00

214

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
4515	102	2 001	1 State Plan Normal			
		182	1 Swaran Jayanti Shehri Rozga:	r Yojana		
		Ο	90,00.00			
		S	=	90,00.00	1,08.16	(-) 88,91.84
4515	103	001	1 State Plan Normal			
		000	3 IRDP, Jammu			
		О	2,63.36			
		S	-	2,63.36	25.00	(-)2,38.36
4515	800	0011				
		2050	0	lopment Progran	nme	
		О	2,31.00			
		S	-	2,31.00	1,06.37	(-) 1,24.63
		2304	O			
		О	9,00.00			
		S	-	9,00.00	8.56	(-) 8,91.44
8.		_	ras partly counterbalanced by thich were not communicated.	he excess under	the following H	ead/Schemes;
Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation		Excess (+)
					(₹ in Lakh)	
4515	103	0011	State Plan Normal			
		0023	Employment Assurance Schem	e (Kashmir)		
		Ο	9,00.00			
		S	-	9,00.00	69,94.21	(+) 60,94.21
		0024	Employment Assurance Schem	e (Jammu)		
		Ο	8,80.00			
		S	-	8,80.00	29,13.80	(+) 20,33.80
4515	800	0031	Centrally Sponsored Scheme			
		9866	Assistance under Backward Region Grant Fund (BRGF)			
		Ο	15,00.00			
		S	-	15,00.00	24,95.54	(+)9,95.54

9.	1	on under following Heads remained unutilized throughout not been intimated.	t the year; the reasons
Head			Total Grant/ Appropriation
			(₹ in Lakh)
4515	102 0011	State Plan Normal	
	0046	DPAP, Udhampur	2,44.58
	0059	DPAP, Doda	1,87.50
	0230	Rural Sanitation	6,06.70
	0384	Community Development, Jammu	5,00.00
4515	103 0011	State Plan Normal	
	0004	IRDP, Kashmir	2,68.00
	0064	JRY, Jammu	4,68.65
	0341	JRY, Kashmir	9,51.65
10.	_	as incurred without Budget provisions under the following been communicated.	ng Sub-Heads; reasons
10. Head	_	as incurred without Budget provisions under the following been communicated.	ng Sub-Heads; reasons  Actual
	_	0 1	
	thereof have no	0 1	Actual Expenditure
Head	thereof have no	ot been communicated.	Actual Expenditure
Head	103 0011 S 0025 F	State Plan Normal Rural Development, Kashmir Community Development and Panchayat	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)
Head	103 0011 S 0025 F 0376 C	State Plan Normal Rural Development, Kashmir	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh) 11,57.71
Head	103 0011 S 0025 F 0376 C 1670 S	State Plan Normal Rural Development, Kashmir Community Development and Panchayat (State Plan) Jammu	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)  11,57.71  1.10
Head	103 0011 S 0025 F 0376 C 1670 S 2090 F 800 0011 S	State Plan Normal Rural Development, Kashmir Community Development and Panchayat (State Plan) Jammu S.G.S.Y RSVY State Plan Normal	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)  11,57.71  1.10  5,79.14 15,00.00
Head 4515	103 0011 S 0025 F 0376 C 1670 S 2090 F 800 0011 S 1349 C	State Plan Normal Rural Development, Kashmir Community Development and Panchayat (State Plan) Jammu S.G.S.Y RSVY State Plan Normal Other Expenditure	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)  11,57.71  1.10  5,79.14 15,00.00  52.10
Head 4515	103 0011 S 0025 F 0376 C 1670 S 2090 F 800 0011 S 1349 C 1671 I	State Plan Normal Rural Development, Kashmir Community Development and Panchayat (State Plan) Jammu S.G.S.Y RSVY State Plan Normal	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)  11,57.71  1.10  5,79.14 15,00.00

### **GRANT NO. 29 – TRANSPORT DEPARTMENT**

MAJC	OR HEADS							
2041								
2070 4059								
4070	Capital Outlay on Public Wor Capital Outlay on Other Adm		ervices					
5055	Capital Outlay on Road Trans							
7055	Loans for Road Transport	•						
			Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure	Excess (+) Saving (-)			
				(₹ in thousand)				
Reven	iue:							
Voted-	-							
Origin	al	21,67,02	24 (7.02	40.62.00	()2.02.22			
Supple	ementary	-	21,67,02	18,63,80	(-)3,03,22			
	nt surrendered during the year							
Charge					•••			
_								
Origin	al	-	1,00	50	(-)50			
Supple	ementary	1,00	1,00	50	(-)50			
Amou	nt surrendered during the year							
Capita	al:							
Voted-	-							
Origin	al	25,40,40						
Supple	ementary	-	25,40,40	54,06,97	(+)28,66,57			
Amou	Amount surrendered during the year							

### Notes and Comments:

### **Revenue Section**

1. Original provision of ₹ 21,67.02 lakh proved excessive in view of final saving of ₹ 3,03.22 lakh. No portion of the final saving was anticipated and surrendered.

2	Persist	ent sav	~	e voted sect		_		four years also.	0 : ()
			Year		Total Gran		ual Ex	penditure	Saving (-)
							(₹ in L	akh)	
			2005-2006		15,28	.75		13,09.83	(-)2,18.92
			2006-2007		15,47			13,10.59	(-)2,37.27
			2007-2008		15,58			14,85.11	(-)73.84
			2008-2009		19,32	.94		16,48.63	(-)2,84.31
	Saving of	occurre	d mainly unde	er the follow				h were not comm	unicated.
Head						Total Gra		Actual	Saving (-)
					1	Appropria	ition	Expenditure	
								(₹ in Lakh)	
2041	001		General						
		0378	Transport's	Commissio	ner Office				
			O	2,83.26					
			S	-		2,	83.26	1,85.12	(-)98.14
2041	101	0099	General						
		0373	Regional Tra	insport Off	ice, Kashmi	r.			
			O	1,62.72					
			S	-		1,0	62.72	1,13.91	(-)48.81
		0395	Regional Tra	nsport Off	ice, Jammu.				
			O	1,58.44					
			S	-		1,	58.44	1,35.71	(-)22.73
2070	114	0099	General						
		0393	Motor Garag	ges					
			0	15,62.60					
			S	-		15,	62.60	14,29.05	(-)1,33.55
					Capital Sec	ction			<b>、</b> ,
4.	_		rision of ₹ 25, ess of ₹ 28,66.		-	_	ew of th	ne final excess of	₹ 28,66.57 lakh.
5.	Excess	occur	red under the	following F	Head; reason	s for which	ch were	not communicate	ed.
Head						Total Gra	ant/	Actual	Excess (+)
						Appropri	ation	Expenditure	
								(₹ in Lakh)	
5055	190	0011	State Plan No						
		0944	Investments	in J&K Ro	ad Transpor	t Corpora	tion.		
			O	5,00.00					
			S	-		:	5,00.00	38,58.33	(+)33,58.33

### GRANT NO. 29 (Concld.)

Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Excess (+)
5055	190	0011	State Plan Normal		( TIT EMMI)	
	800	0011	State Plan Normal			
		0255	State Motor Garages			
			O 1,00.00			
			S	1,00.00	1,12.76	(+)12.76
6.	Excess not co		partly counterbalanced by the sa	ving under the following	g Head; reasons f	or which were
Head				Total Grant/ Appropriation	Actual Expenditure (₹ in Lakh)	Saving (-)
7055	101	0099	) General		( III Lamii)	
7033	101	1210				
			O 16,93.40			
7.	-		S under the following Head was nmunicated.	16,93.40 incurred without budge	13,71.65 tary provisions, re	(-)3,21.75 easons thereof
Head						Actual Expenditure
						(₹ in Lakh)
4070	800	0011	State Plan Normal			
		0378	3 Transport Commissioner's C	Office		64.24
8.			sions under the following He not been communicated.	ad remained unutilized	throughout the	year; reasons
Head						Total Grant/
						Appropriation
						(₹ in Lakh)
4059	60 800					
		025	5 State Motor Garages.			2,47.00



#### **APPENDIX-I**

(Referred to in the Summary of Appropriation Accounts on Page-10 )

Expenditure met out of advances from the Contingency Fund not recouped to the fund till the close of the year.

S.No	Number and name of the Grant	Major Head of Account	Amount of Advance sanctioned	Date of Sanction	Expenditure not recouped to the fund
		(₹in thousand)			(₹in thousand)
1.	14-Revenue Department	2029-Land Revenue	2,00	30.04.1999	2,00
2.	02-Home Department	2055-Police	200	31.05.2000	2,00
3.	12-Agriculture Department	2401-Crop Husbandry	3,31	20.03.2007	3,31
4.	02-Home Department	2055-Police	6,72	15.01.2008	6,72
5.	02-Home Department	2055-Police	21,43	30.06.2008	21,43
6.	02-Home Department	2055-Police	25	30.06.2008	25
7.	06-Power	2801-Power Development Department	2,81	16.03.2009	2,81
8.	02-Home Department	2055-Police	8,40	11.11.2009	8,40
9.	02-Home Department	2055-Police	8,91	18.05.2009	8,91
10.	02-Home Department	2055-Police	28,54	17.06.2009	28,54
11.	02-Home Department	2055-Police	9,21	07.11.2009	9,21
12.	02-Home Department	2055-Police	13,72	03.09.2009	13,72
13.	02-Home Department	2055-Police	12,75	05.06.2009	12,75
14.	02-Home Department	2055-Police	17,79	23.06.2009	17,79
			Total		1,37,84

Note: Against the Credit Balance of ₹57,78,026 ending 31-3-2009, sanction orders to the tune of ₹1,93,33,829 were issued, out of which drawals to the tune of ₹1,92,33,829 were allowed during the year 2009-10, which resulted in excess drawal from the fund amounting to ₹1,34,55,803/- against Corpus of ₹1,00.00 lakh, therefore, being in contravention to the Financial Rules. An amount of ₹96,71,412/- (₹3,69,554 and ₹93,01,858pertaining to previous years and 2009-2010 respectively) was recouped to the fund during the year resulting in un-recoupment of ₹1,37,84,391 ranging from the year April 1999 to March 2010, against which no provision for recoupment was provided for in the Demand for Grants.

# APPENDIX-GRANT-WISE DETAILS OF ESTIMATES AND ACTUALS IN RESPECT OF EXPENDI-

Number and name of Grant		Budget Estimates	EXPENDI- (Referred to
		Revenue	Capital
		(Rupees in thousand	d)
5	Ladakh Affairs Department	3,50,00	39,00
6	Power Development Department	55,00,00	-
12	Agriculture Department	-	9,26,54
15	Consumer Affairs and Public Distribution Department	-	7,47,76,79
16	Public Works Department	15,01,31,00	-
19-	Housing and Urban Development Department	-	2,16,00
22	Irrigation and Flood Control Department	11,50	-
23	Public Health Engineering	50	-

15,59,93,00

7,59,58,33

Total

II RECOVERIES ADJUSTED IN THE ACCOUNTS IN REDUCTION OF TURE at page 11)

e page 11,	Actuals		Actuals compared with	Budget Estimates
Re	venue	Capital	More(+) Less(-) Revenue	More(+) Less(-) Capital
		(Rupees in the		K.
	2,03,87	25,19	(-)1,46,13	(-)13,81
	40,67,34	-	(-)14,32,66	-
	-	3,32,94	-	(-)5,93,60
	-	7,67,03,31	-	(+)19,26,52
	2,19,26,92	-	(-)12,82,04,08	-
	-	-	-	(-)2,16,00
	4,13	-	(-)7,37	-
	90,87	-	(+)90,37	-
	2,62,93,13	7,70,61,44	(-)12,96,99,87	(+)11,03,11